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Letter to Shareholders 
 
Dear Shareholder, 
 
In 2018, BioDue continued its dimensional growth. 
 
Group turnover grew by 14.8%, from 35.7 million Euro to 41.0 million Euro. 
 
In 2018, BioDue continued to invest in its own growth. 
Investments were significant (6.1 million Euro), greater than those realized in the previous year (in 
2017 the Group invested 2.3 million Euro in fixed assets). 
The soft-gel plant will soon start its production and important results are expected from it. In fact 
the Group will enter a segment where the it was not present. 
Furthermore, important investments were realized to increase the efficiency of production plants 
(1.7 million Euro). 
 
The domestic market continues to grow and expectations for the new year are even more positive, as 
shown the first results of the new year. 
 
The strengthening of the own brands has brought important results and it is growing compared to 
2018. 
The own brands Pharcos, BiOfta and Selerbe have achieved a strong increase in turnover, thanks to 
a renewed trade structure and highly innovative products. 
The Company believes in the growth of its own brands as a key success factor. We will continue to 
invest in this direction. 
 
The foreign market is growing considerably. The Company will continue to invest in order to achieve 
higher results. The distribution agreements announced in 2018 are part of a strategy that will bring 
important results for the growth of the foreign sector. 
Therefore the REWCAPTM patent, obtained for twenty years on the most important markets, such as 
the US market and the Chinese market, brings to considerable expectations in the near future. 
 
The strengthening of the managerial structure, with the 2018-2020 incentive and loyalty plan, is an 
important step towards facing the new challenges. 
 
The new investment (of 4.8 million Euro) in an industrial plant of 2,800 square meters, in Sambuca 
Val di Pesa announced last February, whose end is scheduled for the end of 2019, is another 
important step in the Company’s growth strategy.  
 
The Group will continue to invest in the production process innovation (in line with Industry 4.0) 
and in the expansion of production spaces, to become more and more a reference player in the 
national market, with great attention to the international market. 
 
 
Vanni Benedetti 
Chairman  
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Introduction 
 

The Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018 have been prepared in accordance with the 
international accounting standards, as approved by the European Union. 
 

BioDue Group consists of BioDue S.p.A. (the Parent company) together with its subsidiary LaBiotre, 
and the affiliates Pharcomed Corp., Two Bee S.r.l. and Farcoderma S.r.l. (accounted with the equity 
method). 
 

On May 20, 2015, the Parent Company concluded the process of listing its capital at AIM (Alternative 
Investment Market), a non-regulated market of Borsa Italiana and on the 2015 dividends 
distribution (on June 8, 2016), the Company has detected a number of shareholders greater than 
500.  
From January 1, 2017 pursuant to art. 116 of Legislative Decree 58/1998 ("T.U.I.F."), given the 
simultaneous compliance with the other conditions established by art. 2-bis of the Consob Issuers 
Regulation, the Company acquired the status of “Emittente diffuso” (Relevant Issuer). 
 

Pursuant to par. 1 of art. 108 of the Consob Issuers Regulation for the purpose of applying all the 
obligations set forth in the Consolidated Law, the issuers are considered "issuers of widespread 
financial instruments", from the beginning of the financial year following the year in which the 
conditions occurred provided for in article 2-bis of the same Issuers Regulation, until the end of the 
financial year in which it was ascertained that these conditions no longer exist. 
 

According to the art. 19 bis letter a) of D.Lgs. 39/2010, as amended by D.Lgs. 135/2016, the 
successful acquisition by BioDue of the title of RelevantIssuer gives it the qualification of Entity 
Subject to Intermediate Regime ("ESRI"). 
 

Following the acquisition of the status of Relevant Issuer by BioDue, the regulations pursuant to 
D.Lgs. 38/2005, art. 2, paragraph 1, letter b) is applied. It provides for the application also to 
companies with financial instruments distributed among the public pursuant to art. 116 
Consolidation Act on financial intermediation. 
 

The provisions of Articles 3 and 4 of D.Lgs. 38/2005 are applied: the companies falling within their 
scope of application prepare the financial statements and consolidated financial statements in 
compliance with international accounting standards. 
 

The Directors’ report on operations, in addition to the indicators required for financial statements, 
in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), also includes some 
alternative performance measures used by management to monitor and assess the Group’s 
performance, as detailed in a specific section. 
 
 
Alternative performance measures 

In order to better assess its performance, the BioDue Group makes use of some alternative 
performance measures which are not identified as accounting measures under IFRS.  

Therefore, the determination criterion applied by the Group may differ from that adopted by other 
groups, and the balance may not be comparable. These alternative performance measures are 
derived exclusively from historical financial data and are determined in accordance with the 
Guidelines on Alternative Performance Measures issued by ESMA/2015/1415 and adopted by 
CONSOB with communication no. 92543 of December 3, 2015. They refer exclusively to the 
performance for the reporting period of this Year report as well as the comparative periods, and not 
to the Group’s expected performance and are not to be considered as substitutes for IFRS measures.  

The definitions of the alternative performance measures (APM) adopted in the Year report are 
provided below: 
 

• EBITDA: it is Operating profit before Amortisation and depreciation; 
• EBIT: it is Operating profit; 
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• Net working capital: is defined as the sum of Inventories, Trade receivables and Other 
current assets, net of Trade payables and Other current liabilities.  

• Net invested capital: is defined the sum of total amount of Net working capital and Net 
non current assets; 

• Net financial indebtedness: defined as the sum the sum of Non current interest-bearing 
loans and borrowings, Current portions of non current financial liabilities, and Other 
current financial liabilities, net of Cash and cash equivalents, in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in the ESMA document no. 319 of 2013, implementing 
Regulation 2004/809/EC; 

• ROE: is the return on equity, given by the ratio between net profit and previous year average 
Group shareholders’ equity. It is expressed as a percentage; 

• ROI: is the return on investment, given by the ratio between Operating profit and previous 
year net average invested capital. It is expressed as a percentage; 

• ROS: is the return on sales, given by the ratio between Operating profit and revenues from 
contracts with customers. It is expressed as a percentage. 
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Economic context and 
reference sector  
 

According to the primary findings of the International Monetary Fund, the global economy in 2018 
grew by 3.7% confirming the latest forecasts. 

The preliminary Eurostat analysis indicates that in the entire 2018 the Eurozone economy recorded 
an increase of 1.8% (+ 1.9% in EU28), against + 2.4% in 2017 and + 2.1% estimated by the European 
Commission in its latest autumn forecasts. Trade tensions between the US and China, doubts about 
Brexit and political tensions in some Eurozone countries have slowed GDP down. 

In 2018 monetary policy measures started to be normalized in the main world economies. The US 
Federal Reserve continued the gradual rise in rates with four interventions in the year up to a 2.25% 
- 2.50% range. The European Central Bank at first reduced and finally ended the activity of 
Quantitative Easing but with expected interest rates unchanged for a long time. Finally, the Bank of 
England maintains a wait-and-see position, pending clear progress on the Brexit negotiation front. 

Year 2017 closed with a large depreciation of the US dollar, in terms of nominal effective exchange 
rate, due to expectations only partially maintained by the new American Government. The 
depreciation continued in the first quarter of 2018. This trend was reversed at the end of April when 
started a downward trend with EUR / USD rising from the February highs of 1.25 to the December 
lows of 1.12. This change was affected by the tightening of the Federal Reserve’s monetary policy and 
the import duties negotiations by the US administration. Conversely, the accommodating policy of 
the ECB and internal political tensions in Italy and Spain affected the Euro’s devaluation. 

The Euro, after an initial appreciation towards the USD and the main currencies linked to it, has 
therefore depreciated over the course of the year, finding then a stability in the second half of the 
year in a range between 1.14 and 1.18, levels still significantly higher than the average exchange rate 
of the previous year (1.13). 

In 2018 GDP growth (Gross Domestic Product) in Italy was 0.9%. On the domestic demand side, in 
terms of volumes, in 2018 there was a 3.4% growth in gross fixed investments and 0.5% in national 
final consumption. As far as flows with foreign countries are concerned, exports of goods and services 
increased by 1.9% and imports by 2.3%. 

Domestic demand contributed positively to GDP growth of 1.0 percentage points (+0.9 gross of stock 
changes) and net foreign demand negatively, by 0.1 points. 

Employment remains at stable levels with a significant increase in permanent employees. Inflation 
is rising again, but the overall framework indicates a positioning on historically low values. 
Households and companies confidence has deteriorated. 
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Significant events 
occurred during 2018 
 
 

FEBRUARY 

BioDue strengthens its managerial structure 

BioDue strengthens its managerial structure through the appointment of Four managerial figures. 
Among the figures, BioDue proceeded to appoint the former administrative director as Chief 
Financial Officer, already in force to the BioDue Group since 2010. 
In addition, three new managers of external provenance, with a proven experience over ten years in 
Pharmaceutical sector, have been nominated in the role of Director of Business development 
(focused on growth strategies of new Products and markets), Director of Operations for the brand 
Pharcos Italy and Director of Operations for the brand Biofta Italy. 
This strengthening aims at an even more specific monitoring of the commercial development of its 
own brands, consistently with both the Group’s strategic orientation aimed at favoring its growth 
dynamics, and with the strengthening of the Company’s Financial Management, in view of the launch 
of the transition to the MTA market - STAR segment. 
 
 
 
 

MARCH 

BioDue obtains the certificate EN ISO 13485 

BioDue obtains the certificate of EN ISO 13485 for its plant in via Caravaggio - Tavarnelle Val di Pesa 
(Florence), for the development and production of medical devices with its own brand name and 
third-party brand for oral, nasal, topical, vaginal and rectal use in solid forms, semi-solid and liquid 
(sterile and not). 
This certification is compulsory for the registration and sale of these medical devices in some 
important markets with interesting potential such as Russia, Saudi Arabia, Yemen, United Arab 
Emirates and Lebanon. It concerns the management of the organization of the entire production and 
distribution chain, from the supply of raw materials, to production, traceability, logistics, to the 
management of human resources and to contracts. 
The ISO 13485 certificate is important for the strategic internationalization process of the Company, 
where quality, a distinctive element of made in Italy production, and its certification are competitive 
advantages recognized by the market. 
 
 
 
 

APRIL 

BioDue deliberates on Own Shares and Stock Options 

On April 6, 2018 BioDue’s Board of Directors deliberates: 
-the proposal to buyback and sale of Own shares, 
-the incentive and loyalty plan called the “Stock Option plan 2018-2020”. 
 
 
 

The reasons for the buyback and sale of own shares proposal reside:  
− in having a stock of own shares, in line with the strategy the company intends to pursue 

especially in the context of possible extraordinary transactions, including the allocation based 
on plans of loyalty of our own brands trade relations counterparts;  
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− in operating on the market with a strategy of mid-term investment period, also to seize 
opportunities for maximizing the value of the stock that can derive from the market trend. 

 
 

The Stock Option plan is an incentive program to foster the loyalty of the company and its 
subsidiaries Top management and Executives. The plan subordinates the Stock Option exercise to 
the Company’s strategic objectives, thus laying the foundations for the Stock option plan 
beneficiaries partecipate to the company results. 
 
 

BioDue signs the Patent Box Agreement  

On April 20, 2018 BioDue signs the Patent Box Agreement with the Fiscal Authority for its own 
brands Pharcos and BiOfta and for RewCapTM (innovative pharmaceutical form able to mix liquid 
and solid substances with extreme ease and with advantages compared to traditional forms, 
www.rewcap.com, see press release on March 2, 2016) 
Patent Box will allow the exclusion from taxation of a part of income deriving from the use of 
BioDue’s own trademarks and patents, to the extent of 30% in 2015, 40% in 2016, 50% in the three-
year period 2017-2019.  
The tax benefit for the 2018 financial year, determined with the aforementioned criteria applied to 
the 2015-2018 four-year period, had a significant impact on the net profitability of the Group. 
The Patent Box is in line with the strategic orientation of the Group to enhance its own brands 
Pharcos and BiOfta and the RewCapTM patent, and to increase their contribution to the net 
profitability of the Group. 
 
 
 
JULY 

BioDue buys the 43.42% ownership of the company Farcoderma S.r.l. 

On July 31, 2018 BioDue buys the 43.42% ownership of Farcoderma Srl, by 1,350,000 Euro. 
Farcoderma produces food supplements, medical devices, cosmetics and animal feed for veterinary 
use with production plants in the province of Bergamo. 
Farcoderma S.r.l. operates with 35 employees on two production plants: the first of 1,500 square 
meters located in  Calcio, the second, recently built, of 5,000 square meters located in Torre 
Pallavicina. 
 
 
 

AUGUST 

BioDue obtains the twenty-year concession of the REWCAPTM patent for the Chinese market 

After obtaining the RewCapTM patent for the national and US markets, BioDue obtains the twenty-
year concession of the RewCapTM patent for the Chinese market. 
BioDue is already present on the Chinese market with RewCapTM, having already signed an 
important contract with a leading Chinese pharmaceutical multinational industry for the supply of 
both production machines using RewCapTM, and the first important RewCapTM packaging quantities. 
The strong technical innovation of RewCapTM has contributed to important results for BioDue on the 
European markets 
RewCapTM is a new and innovative pharmaceutical form, able to give a significant competitive 
advantage on the market (www.rewcap.com). 
RewCapTM is applicable both to food supplements in liquid form, to cosmetics and to medical devices. 
The RewCapTM inverted capsule is capable of mixing liquid and solid substances with extreme ease 
and with some advantages compared to traditional forms. 
 
 
  

http://www.rewcap.com/
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SEPTEMBER 

Exclusive License and Supply agreement with a global healthcare company 

On September 5, 2018 BioDue signed an exclusive license and supply agreement covering several 
countries among which Russia, Ukraine and CIS countries. Thanks to this agreement BioDue grants 
the right to commercialize a patented Medical Device in the respiratory area to a global healthcare 
company. 
Thanks to its active components of natural origin, the Medical Device removes the excess mucus and 
related impurities, but it is also a mucus-adhesive solution that adheres to the inner surface of the 
nostrils, where it forms a thin film that protects the mucosa from external aggressions. Under the 
terms of the agreement, the licensee will take care of the distribution, commercialization and 
promotion activities with regards to the Medical Device while BioDue will manufacture the product. 
Thanks to this agreement, which sets up a five years partnership, BioDue foresees a potential 
turnover between 3,5 and 4,5 million Euro. 
 
 
 

OCTOBER 

Participation to CphI Worldwide - the world's leading trade fair for the pharmaceutical sector 

BioDue participates to CPHI Worldwide, the world’s leading trade fair for the pharmaceutical sector 
in which, in addition to multinational groups, 2,500 companies from 164 countries participate with 
over 44,000 professional visitors, of which 39,000 are international. 
This fair is an important event for the development of the Medical Devices market and food 
supplements in the international arena, one of the company’s growth objectives in the near future. 
 
 

 
Distribution agreement for the Balcan area  
On October 25, 2018 BioDue signed a distribution agreement covering some countries in the Balcan 
area. Through this agreement the company grants the commercialization rights on Pharcos portfolio 
to a local partner, Fufarma S.A. 
The long-lasting agreement foresees the launch of the majority of Pharcos products in the Balcan 
area.  
The cooperation with Fufarma is positioned in light to reinforce the strategic alliance between 
BioDue and Mr. Isuf Berberi, already partner in the joint venture Two Bee Srl.  
In the next months, this cooperation will be further reinforced through the signature of another 
distribution agreement with Fufarma for the products of Selerbe line. 
This agreement is part of the global strategic intent of the Group finalized to the internationalization 
process and to the maximization of the value of BioDue portfolio. 
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Parent company’s 
activities and the Group 
structure 
 

Parent company’s activities 
 

BioDue S.p.A. develops, manufactures and sells cosmetics, liquid and solid food supplements and 
medical devices both on behalf of national and international pharmaceutical Companies (Industrial 
division) and with its own brands Pharcos (dermatological sector), BiOfta (ophthalmic sector) and 
Selerbe (herbal Nutraceutical). 
The Company operates in 17,000 sqm own plants, dedicated to industrial production and registered 
under Reg. CE 852/2004, GMP Certification (Good manufacturing Practice) and, from 2018, 
Certification EN ISO 13485.  
With the highest quality and safety standards required by European regulations (Code of Federal 
regulations, Title 21, Volume 2, part 111, of 01-04-2013) BioDue is also registered with the U.S. FDA 
Registration No. 10725095718). The physical separation of individual establishments, though 
concentrated in a single industrial district, constitutes an important measure of disaster recovery. 
 

Consolidation area 
 

Consolidated Interim Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018 and for the period then ended 
include: 

• BioDue S.p.A. (Parent company)  
• Labiotre S.r.l., 51.2%, subsidiary (Consolidated); 
• Pharcomed Corp., 50.0%, joint venture (accounted under the equity method);  
• Two Bee S.r.l., 50.0%, joint venture (accounted under the equity method); 
• Farcoderma S.r.l., 43.42%, affiliate, (accounted under the equity method). 

 

The Consolidated Financial Statement is written on the following rules: 
 

- in 2018, financial data reflect the consolidation of the assets and liabilities of BioDue and 
LaBiotre, with the valuation of the associated companies Pharcomed Corp., Two Bee S.r.l. and 
Farcoderma S.r.l. (in the Separate Financial Statements entered at cost), and the elimination 
of intra-group transactions, in addition to the tax effects associated with previous entries; 

- in 2017, financial data include the first consolidation of LaBiotre, which took place in 
December 2017. This led to the emergence of assets mainly related to know-how and goodwill 
referable to the latter, the effects of the valuation of the associated companies Pharcomed Corp 
and Two Bee Srl on equity method (in the Separate Financial Statements entered at cost), and 
the elimination of intra-group transactions, in addition to the tax effects associated with 
previous entries; 

- in 2018, economic data reflect the income statement of the parent company BioDue and of the 
subsidiary LaBiotre, net of intercompany transactions elimination and the elimination of 
margins settled on inventories, and the valuation with the equity method of the connected 
Pharcomed Corp., Two Bee Srl and Farcoderma S.r.l. as well as the tax effects associated with 
the aforementioned entries; 

- as of December 31, 2017, the economic effects of the consolidation are limited (i) to the 
revaluation at fair value of the minority interests previously held in LaBiotre, (ii) to the 
valuation with the equity method of the associated LaBiotre (up to the acquisition of control), 
Pharcomed Corp. and Two Bee Srl, (iii) to the elimination of the inter-group margins settled 
on inventories, and (iv) to the tax effects associated with the aforementioned entries. 
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The following table highlights the consolidation area as of December 31, 2018, compared with the 
consolidation area as of December 31, 2017: 
 

Company 

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 

Group 
share 

Direct 
control 
share 

Indirect 
control 
share 

Group 
share 

Direct 
control 
share 

Indirect 
control 
share 

Parent company 
BioDue S.p.A. 100%   100%   

Subsidiaries  
Labiotre S.r.l. 51.2% 51.2%   51.2% 51.2%   
Joint venture (accounted under the equity method) 
Pharcomed Corp. 50% 50%   50% 50%   
Pharcomed Mexico 25%  25% 25%  25% 
Two Bee S.r.l. 50% 50%   50% 50%  
Two Bee Shpk (Albania) 50%  50%     

Affiliates (accounted under the equity method) 
Farcoderma S.r.l. 43.42% 43.42%       

 
Group Structure 
 

The following prospectus shows the consolidation area (delimited by the blue line for fully 
consolidated subsidiaries) of the BioDue Group as of December 31, 2018. 
 
 

 
 
  

BioDue 
S.p.A.

LaBiotre 
S.r.l.
51.2%

Pharcomed 
Corp.
50%

Pharcomed 
Mexico SA

50%

Two Bee 
S.r.l.
50%

Two Bee Shpk 
(Albania)

100%

Farcoderma 
S.r.l.

43.42%
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• LaBiotre S.r.l., 51.20% owned at December 31, 2018, was founded in 2011 in partnership 
with Labomar S.r.l. (active in the production and distribution of nutraceutical products) to 
guarantee the highest quality of raw materials in its products. LaBiotre extracts plant active 
ingredients with proprietary technology and know-how exclusively for the final customer.  
LaBiotre provides raw materials to BioDue for Selerbe products and natural vegetable 
extracts to be used in the production cycle. 
From the end of 2017 LaBiotre is consolidated line by line in the Group consolidated financial 
statements. 

• Pharcomed Corp, established in Miami (FL) with a share capital of 140.000 USD is a Joint 
Venture (50/50) with Suco Group Int. (formerly Pharcos Distributor from 1996). It 
distributes as an exclusive Pharcos branded products in the American continent:  
– directly on the US market;  
– through local distributors in other countries.  
Pharcomed Corp. is accounted under the equity method in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

• Pharcomed Mexico SA de CV, Joint Venture under Mexican law, located in Mexico City, 
held jointly by Biodue S.p.A. and Pharcomed Corporation (50% each). Pharcomed Mexico 
has been granted the exclusive Pharcomed products for Mexican territory.  

• Two Bee S.r.l. Joint venture with Fufarma Albania (IMC Group) for the realization of a 
plant for the pharmaceutical production of capsules and tablets in Tirana. Two Bee S.r.l. is 
accounted under the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. 

• Farcoderma S.r.l., 43.42% owned as of December 31, 2018, is a company active in the 
production of cosmetics and food supplements. The 43.42% ownership was purchased in July 
2018, with the aim to build a partnership that leads to industrial production synergies. The 
purchase price was 1,350,000 Euro. Farcoderma S.r.l. is accounted under the equity method 
in the consolidated financial statements.  
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Management 
performance 
 
 

Group management performance 
 

The consolidation of LaBiotre S.r.l., acquired in December 2017, took place fully integrating the 
economic and financial data of the subsidiary. 
In 2017, the effects on the consolidated income statement are limited (i) to the reassessment at fair 
value of the minority interests previously held in LaBiotre, (ii) to the valuation with the equity 
method of the joint ventures in Pharcomed Corp., Two Bee and LaBiotre (until the date of first 
consolidation), and (iii) to the elimination of intercompany settled margins on inventories. 
 
Revenues amount to 41.0 million Euro, up 14.8% compared to 2017. The following table provides the 
breakdown by category and brand: 
 
 

(in thousands of euro)           

Revenues December 31, 
2018 % December 31, 

2017 % Change % 

Industrial 20,413 49.8% 19,451  54.4% 4.9% 
Pharcos 8,429 20.6% 8,199  23.0% 2.8% 
Selerbe 6,294 15.3% 5,326  14.9% 18.2% 
BiOfta 3,275 8.0% 2,692  7.5% 21.7% 
Others 127 0.3% 55  0.2% >100.0% 

Total revenues of BioDue 38,538 94.0% 35,723 100.0% 7.9% 

Revenues of LaBiotre (third parties 
only) 2,469 6.0%    

Total consolidated revenues 41,007  100.0% 35,723  100.0% 14.8% 
 
 

As for the Parent Company BioDue, revenues increased by + 7.9% and, specificly: 
• Industrial revenues amount to 20.4 million Euro, (+4.9%), improving the growth path 

recorded in the first nine months of 2018;  
• Pharcos revenues amount to 8.4 million Euro (+2.8%);  
• Selerbe revenues amount to 6.3 million Euro (+18.2%). The growth is mainly due to the sales 

of private-label products to pharmacists and herbalists; 
• BiOfta revenues amount to 3.3 million Euro revenues, (+21.7%), confirming the work 

undertaken by the commercial network on ophthalmologists.  

The analysis of these values therefore highlights the important growth of the own brands Pharcos, 
Selerbe and BiOfta, which recorded an increase of +11.0% compared to 2017, in line with the 
Company’s objectives and strategies.  
 
Furthermore, is important the contribution made by the subsidiary LaBiotre (consolidated since 
December 31, 2017, and with no effects in the consolidated income statement of the prior period). In 
2018 LaBiotre has achieved 2.5 million Euro revenues with third parties (+1.3% compared to the 
results of year 2017). 
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Finally, the geographical breakdown of consolidated revenues shows an increase in the foreign 
revenues of +32.3%, higher than that recorded by the domestic revenues of +12.4%, in line with the 
strategic orientation aimed at strengthening the process of internationalization and opening of new 
markets. 
 

Secondly, the geographical distribution of revenues shows a growth trend of the foreign component 
of + 9.2% greater than that recorded by the domestic component of 3.6%, in line with the strategic 
orientation aimed at strengthening the process of internationalization and opening of new markets 
 

The following table shows their geographic breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of euro)           

Revenues December 31, 
2018 % December 31, 

2017 % Change % 

Domestic 35,438 86.4% 31,515 88.2% 12.4% 
Rest of the world 5,569 13.6% 4,208 11.8% 32.3% 

Total consolidated revenues 41,007  100.0% 35,723  100.0% 14.8% 
 

"Other revenues", amounting to 0.5 million Euro, are mainly composed of the Research and 
development tax offset Law 190/2014, that amounted to 165 thousand Euro in 2017 and to 202 
thousand Euro in 2018. ("Other revenues" amounting to 0.6 million Euro in 2017, including 56 
thousand Euro deriving from the granting of the REWCAPTM production license to third parties and 
279 thousand Euro deriving from the sale of REWCAPTM machines self built by BioDue. 
 

EBITDA reaches 7.4 million Euro, equal to 17.8% of total revenues, showing strong growth compared 
to 2017 (4.6 million Euro, 12.6% of total revenues), due to (i) the greater efficiency of the 
management of production lines compared to 2017, (ii) greater incidence of own brands on the 
parent company’s revenues and (iii) to the consolidation of LaBiotre’s income data. 
 

After depreciation and amortization of 2.1 million Euro, up from 1.4 million Euro in 2017, 
consolidated EBIT amounts to 5.4 million Euro, 12.9% of revenues (3.2 million Euro in 2017, 8.7% 
of revenues). 
The results of the joint ventures and the associated companies valued with the equity method 
amounted to 0.1 million Euro. 
 

In 2017, the revaluation at fair value of the interests held in the subsidiary LaBiotre, as required by 
IFRS 3, led to the recognition of an income from revaluation of 2.0 million Euro in the income 
statement. 
Income taxes, amounting to 1.2 million Euro, account for 3.0% of revenues, both due to the effect of 
the Patent Box, applied for the first time, and to the effect of the reversal of deferred taxes from 2017. 
 

The incidence of current taxes, equal to 1.4 million Euro (ca. 1.0 million Euro in 2017), on the pre-
tax result is 26.5% (compared to 19.0% in 2017, also for effect of the revaluation of the interests in 
LaBiotre). 
Net profit amounts to 4.0 million Euro, equal to 9.6% of total revenues (4.1 million Euro in 2017, 
11.4% of total revenues). 
 

Capital structure of the Group as of December 31, 2018 is even more solid than in the previous period, 
with a Net invested capital of 35.0 million Euro (27.6 million Euro in 2017). 
Group equity was further strengthened to 23.5 million Euro (net of dividend distribution 2017 for 
0.7 million Euro), due to the net profit of 2018. 
Share capital, reserves and net profit of non-controlling interests amount to 2.2 million Euro. 
 

The book value and fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of LaBiotre at the date of 
acquisition (December 2017) amounted to 2.4 million Euro and 4.2 million Euro respectively (of 
which 2.0 million Euro attributable to minority interests).  
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Net of the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired, the residual value allocated to goodwill 
deriving from the acquisition amounts to 1.4 million Euro. The impairment test carried out on the 
preparation of these financial statements confirmed that there are no indicators of impairment, and 
therefore the initial recognition assumptions with reference to expected cash flows were confirmed. 
 

Equity is able to cover almost entirely net non-current assets, amounting to 23.8 million Euro (17.9 
million Euro in 2017). 
Net working capital, equal to 11.2 million Euro (9.7 million Euro in 2017) increased due to both the 
higher volumes and the lower trade payables. 
 

Looking to cash flows, during the period considered, the Group generated cash flows from operations 
in the amount of 4.4 million Euro (compared to 2.4 million Euro in 2017), increased if compared to 
2017. 
 

Investment activity required 7.4 million Euro, as a consequence of: 1.4 million Euro for the purchase 
of 43.42% of Farcoderma and 6.0 million Euro for net investments in plants, machines and 
equipment. 
 

The latter are the result of the increases in fixed assets in 2018, due to: the purchase of the production 
plant for soft-gel by 2.4 million Euro, machinery and equipment by 1.0 million Euro, other assets by 
0.2 million Euro and assets under construction by 2.4 million Euro mainly attributed to investments 
in LaBiotre for the production of soft-gel. 
 

Net cash flows from financing activities amounted to 5.5 million Euro, due to: an increase in bank 
debts of 6.8 million Euro, a decrease in non-current bank debts by 1.5 million Euro, the net leasing 
variation and other financial liabilities of 1.6 million Euro, the 0.7 million Euro dividends 
distribution and buybacks of 0.3 million Euro. 
As a result, cash and cash equivalents reached 3.5 million Euro, increasing by 2.5 million Euro, from 
1.0 million Euro as of December 31, 2017. 
 

Net financial indebtedness as of December 31, 2018 amounted to 10.5 million Euro (6.1 million Euro 
as of December 31, 2017). It consists of: 

- non-current financial indebtedness, 11.3 million Euro (4.3 million Euro in 2017); 
- current financial debts, 2.8 million Euro (2.9 million Euro in 2017); 
- cash and cash equivalents, 3.5 million Euro (1.0 million Euro in 2017). 
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Parent company management performance 
 
 

Revenues amount to 38.5 million Euro, up 7.9% compared to 2017. In the previous paragraph their 
composition is indicated. 
 

"Other revenues", amounting to 0.4 million Euro, are mainly composed of the Research and 
development tax offset Law 190/2014, that amounted to 128 thousand Euro in 2017 and to 165 
thousand Euro in 2018. ("Other revenues" amounting to 0.6 million Euro in 2017, including 56 
thousand Euro deriving from the granting of the REWCAPTM production license to third parties and 
279 thousand Euro deriving from the sale of REWCAPTM machines self built by BioDue. 
 

EBITDA reaches 6.5 million Euro, equal to 16.8% of total revenues, showing strong growth compared 
to 2017 (4.7 million Euro, 12.9% of total revenues), due to (i) the greater efficiency of the 
management of production lines compared to 2017, (ii) greater incidence of own brands on the 
parent company’s revenues. 
 

After depreciation and amortization of 1.5 million Euro, up from 1.4 million Euro in 2017, EBIT 
amounts to 5.0 million Euro, 12.8% of revenues (3.3 million Euro in 2017, 9.0% of revenues). 
The results of the joint ventures and the associated companies valued with the equity method 
amounted to 0.1 million Euro. 
 

Income taxes, amounting to 1.2 million Euro, account for 3.0% of revenues, both due to the effect of 
the Patent Box, applied for the first time, and to the effect of the reversal of deferred taxes from 
previous years. 
 

The incidence of current taxes, equal to 1.3 million Euro (ca. 1.0 million Euro in 2017), on the pre-
tax result is 25.9% (compared to 31.5% in 2017. 
 

Net profit amounts to 3.8 million Euro, equal to 9.7% of total revenues (2.1 million Euro in 2017, 
5.7% of total revenues). 
 

Capital structure of the Parent Company as of December 31, 2018 is even more solid than in the 
previous period, with a Net invested capital of 27.1 million Euro (23.6 million Euro in 2017). 
Equity was further strengthened to 19.0 million Euro (net of dividend distribution 2017 for 0.7 
million Euro), due to the net profit of 2018. 
Equity is able to cover both net non-current assets, amounting to 16.7 million Euro, and a significant 
amount of net working capital. 
Net working capital, equal to 10.4 million Euro (8.5 million Euro in 2017) increased due to both the 
higher volumes and the lower trade payables. 
 

Looking to cash flows, during the period considered, the Parent company generated cash flows from 
operations in the amount of 3.4 million Euro (compared to 2.2 million Euro in 2017),  
as a consequence of the income and financial trends described above). 
 

Investment activity required 2.9 million Euro, as a consequence of: 1.4 million Euro for the purchase 
of 43.42% of Farcoderma and 1.5 million Euro for net investments in plants, machines and 
equipment (1.0 million Euro), in assets under construction (0.3 million Euro) and in other tangible 
assets (0.2 million Euro)  
 

Net cash flows from financing activities amounted to 4.8 million Euro, due to: an increase in non-
current bank debts of 6.0 million Euro, the 0.7 million Euro dividends distribution, the net leasing 
variation and other financial liabilities of 1.4 million Euro, loans granted to investment in joint 
ventures for € 0.1 million and buybacks of 0.3 million Euro. 
As a result, cash and cash equivalents reached 3.3 million Euro, increasing by 2.8 million Euro, from 
0.5 million Euro as of December 31, 2017. 
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Net financial indebtedness as of December 31, 2018 amounted to 7.1 million Euro (6.3 million Euro 
as of December 31, 2017). It consists of: 

- non-current financial indebtedness, 8.7 million Euro (4.1 million Euro in 2017); 
- current financial debts, 1.6 million Euro (2.6 million Euro in 2017); 
- cash and cash equivalents, 3.3 million Euro (0.5 million Euro in 2017). 

The increase in Net financial indebtedness by 0.8 million Euro is mainly attributable to the liquidity 
used in the investments of the period, in the acquisition of the investment in Farcoderma S.r.l. and 
for the payment of dividends, net of operating flows of 3.4 million euros. 
 
 
 

Management performance of the subsidiary, joint ventures 
and associated companies 
 
 

LaBiotre S.r.l. (51.2%) 
 

Revenues amount to 4.4 million Euro (1.9 million Euro are intercompany), up 3.5 million Euro, 
compared to 2017 (4.3 million Euro, of which 1.8 intercompany). 
EBITDA reaches 0.8 million Euro, equal to 18.6% of total revenues (0,7 million Euro in 2017, equals 
to 15.3% of total revenues).  
Net financial indebtedness as of December 31, 2018 amounted to 3.6 million Euro. The company did 
not have financial indebtedness in 2017. The increase is due to the investments in the soft-gel 
production plant. 
 
 
 

Pharcomed Corp. (50%) 
 

Revenues amount to 1.5 million USD, in line with last year. 
EBITDA reaches 0.2 million USD, equal to 13.3% of total revenues (0.3 million USD in 2017, equals 
to 17.1% of total revenues).  
Net financial indebtedness as of December 31, 2018 amounted to 0.3 million Euro. The company had 
a positive financial indebtedness in 2017.  
 
 
 

Two Bee S.r.l. (50%) 
 

Two Bee S.r.l., holding of the pharmaceutical production company in Albania, was founded on June 
9, 2017 with a share capital pro-quota paid for 50 thousand Euro according to the agreements made 
with the partner Isuf Berberi (holder of the other 50% of the capital - for more details see press 
release of 9 June 2017). The company is not yet fully operational. 
 
 
 

Farcoderma S.r.l. (43.42%) 
 

Revenues amount to 6.9 million EURO, up 15.5%, compared to 2017. 
EBITDA reaches 1.2 million EURO, equal to 17.9% of total revenues (1.6 million EURO in 2017, 
equals to 26.7% of total revenues).  
Net financial indebtedness as of December 31, 2018 amounted to 3.9 million Euro (0.7 million EURO 
in 2017). 
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Subsequent events 
 
 
 
 

JANUARY 2019 
 
Appointment of Banca Intermobiliare as a new Nominated Adviser 
 
On January 31, 2019, the Company appointed Banca Intermobiliare di Investimenti e Gestioni S.p.A. 
("BIM")  as Nominated Adviser, with effect from February 4, 2019. 
 
 
 
 

FEBRUARY 2019 
 

 
Expansion of the industrial plant in Sambuca Val di Pesa for 2,800 square meters and 
construction of the automated warehouse 
 
In February 2019, the Board of Directors deliberated the 2,800 square meters wide expansion of an 
existing production plant (of which 300 square meters for offices) and the construction of a 400 
square meters wide new annexed automated warehouse, in the industrial area of Sambuca Val di 
Pesa (Florence), where all Group’s plants insist. This expansion completes the purchase of the 5,300 
square meters wide entire industrial building where liquid food supplements are currently produced. 
With this purchase, the plants owned by the group will have a total surface of about 21,000 square 
meters (of which 1,500 square meters for offices), with 5,400 square meters wide service areas.  
 
The investment will be completed before December 31, 2019. It amounts in total to 4.7 million Euro 
divided as follows:  

- 2.0 million Euro for the purchase of the industrial building;  
- 0.7 million Euro for the purchase of a new automated warehouse annexed to and serving 

the entire industrial building; 
- 2.0 million Euro for the purchase of new production lines compliant to industry 4.0. 
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Future management 
development 
 
The Company expects, for year 2019, basing also on positive sales trend of the first months of the 
year, to continue to record a growing turnover and to improve its profit margins. 
 
The Group expects to benefit from the growth in turnover and margins of the Parent Company and 
the economic results of the subsidiary LaBiotre, also thanks to the contribution of new soft-gel 
productions. 
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Group Income and financial 
highlights  
 

Consolidated income performance 
 

The table below shows the main economic data of the Group. 
 

(in thousands of Euro)      
 

 Notes December 31,  
2018 % December 31,  

2017 % Change  
%  

Revenues 5.1 41,007 98.8% 35,723 98.5% 14.8% 

Other revenues 5.2 513 1.2% 557 1.5% -7.9% 

TOTAL REVENUES  41,520 100.0% 36,280 100.0% 14.5% 

Cost of goods sold 5.3 (17,344) -41.8% (16,496) -45.5% 5.1% 

Service costs 5.4 (9,066) -21.8% (8,767) -24.2% 3.4% 

Personnel costs 5.5 (6,747) -16.3% (5,573) -15.4% 21.1% 

Other operating costs 5.6 (960) -2.3% (883) -2.4% 8.7% 

EBITDA  7,403 17.8% 4,561 12.6% 62.3% 

Depreciation and amortization 5.7 (2,053) -4.9% (1,398) -3.9% 46.9% 

EBIT (**)  5,350 12.9% 3,163 8.7% 69.1% 

Financial Income 5.8 112 0.3% 20 0.1% >100% 

Financial Expenses 5.8 (194) -0.5% (172) -0.2% 12.8% 

Reassessment of previously held 
interests in a subsidiary measured 
at fair value 

   2,015 5.6% -100.0% 

Share of profit of associates and 
joint ventures  84 0.2% 140 0.4% -40.0% 

PROFIT BEFORE TAXES  5,352 12.9% 5,166 14.2% 3.6% 

Income taxes 5.9 (1,239) -3.0% (1,040) -2.9% 19.2% 

NET PROFIT  4,113 9.9% 4,126 11.4% -0.3% 

Net profit attributable to non-
controlling interests 5.9 124 0.3%    

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE 
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 
THE PARENT 

 3,989 9.6% 4,126 11.4% -3.3% 

 

(*) EBITDA indicates the result before financial income and expenses, income taxes and depreciation and amortization. EBITDA is used by Directors 
to monitor and evaluate the operational performance of the business. Since EBITDA is not identified as an accounting measure within the International 
IFRS accounting standards, it should not be considered an alternative measure for evaluating the performance of the Company’s operating results. 
Since the composition of EBITDA is not regulated by the accounting Standards, the criterion of determination applied by the company may not be 
homogeneous with that adopted by other entities and therefore not be comparable with them. 
(**) EBIT indicates the result before the financial income and expenses and income taxes. EBIT is the indicator used by Directors to monitor and 
evaluate the operational performance of the business. Since EBIT is not identified as an accounting measure within the International IFRS accounting 
standards, it should not be considered an alternative measure for evaluating the performance of the Company’s operating results. Since the composition 
of EBIT is not regulated by the accounting Standards, the criterion of determination applied by the company may not be homogeneous with that adopted 
by other entities and therefore not be comparable with them. 
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Consolidated financial performance 
 
The scheme of the reclassified balance sheet aggregates the assets and liabilities of the balance sheet 
according to the criterion of functionality to the management of the company considered 
conventionally divided into the three fundamental functions: investment, operation and financing. 
Management believes that the proposed scheme represents useful information because it allows the 
identification of sources of financial resources (own resources and third-party assets) and their uses 
in fixed assets and in the operating capital. 
  

(thousands of Euro) 
December 31,  

2018 
December 31, 

2017 
CURRENT ASSETS   

Inventories 5,926 5,901 
Trade receivables 12,373 11,299 
Other current assets 911 834 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 19,210 18,034 
CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Trade payables (6,588) (7,131) 
Other current liabilities (1,383) (1,222) 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES (7,971) (8,353) 
NET WORKING CAPITAL (A) (*) 11,239 9,681 
Tangible and Intangible assets 22,830 17,130 
Goodwill 1,381 1,381 
Other non current assets and liabilities (378) (587) 
NET NON-CURRENT ASSETS (B) (**) 23,833 17,924 

NET INVESTED CAPITAL (A+B) (***) 35,072 27,605 

GROUP SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY   
Share capital 3,675 4,006 
Reserves 13,721 10,362 
Net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 3,989 4,126 
TOTAL GROUP SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 21,385 18,494 
Share capital, reserves and net profit of non-controlling interests 2,158 2,033 
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 23,543 20,527 
Provisions for risks and charges and Employees’ benefit liabilities 1,005 935 
Net financial indebtedness (****) 10,524 6,143 

TOTAL SOURCES OF FINANCING 35,072 27,605 
 
 

(*) Net working capital is obtained as a difference between current assets and current liabilities excluding financial assets and liabilities. Net working 
capital is not identified as an accounting measure under reference accounting standards. It is specified that it was determined in accordance with the 
recommendations set out in the ESMA update of the CESR Recommendations. The consistent implementation of Commission Regulation (EC) No 
809/2004 Implementing the Prospectus Directive” of March 20, 2013 (already recommendation of CESR 05-054b of February 10, 2005). The criterion 
of determination applied by the company may not be homogeneous with that adopted by other entities and, therefore, the balance obtained by the 
company may not be comparable with that determined by the latter. 

 
 (**) Net non-current assets are obtained as the sum of: tangible and intangible assets (with separate indication of goodwill), and other non-current assets 
and liabilities. 

 

 (***) Net invested capital is obtained as the sum of Net working capital and Net non.current assets. Net invested capital is not identified as an accounting 
measure under reference accounting standards. The criterion of 
determination applied by the company may not be homogeneous with that adopted by other entities and, therefore, the balance obtained by the company 
may not be comparable with that determined by the latter. 
(****) In accordance with the communication N. DEM/6064293 of July 28, 2006 issued by CONSOB, it is stated that net financial indebtedness is 
obtained as the sum of Non current interest-bearing loans and borrowings, Current portions of non current financial liabilities, net of Cash and cash 
equivalents. 
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Consolidated Statement of cash flows 
and Net financial indebtedness 
 

(in thousands of Euro)   
 

  December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 

NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 4,113 4,126  
Adjustments to reconcile net profit for the period to net 
cash from operating activities 3,121 531  

Depreciation and amortization 2,059 1,398  
Income taxes 999 1,072  
Financial income and expenses 82 154  
Provision for bad debt 65 62  
Reassessment of controlling interests in a subsidiary at fair value, 
previously held as an associate 0 (2,015)  

Share of profit of associates and a joint venture (84) (140)  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: (1,835) (1,256)  
Inventories  (25) (850)  
Trade receivables (1,139) (267)  
Trade payables  (543) (326)  
Employees’ benefits payments 39 43  
Other assets and liabilities (167) 144  
Other adjustments: (1,022) (1,014)  
Financial expenses: paid net of financial income (82) (154)  
(Taxes paid) (940) (860)  

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4,377 2,387  

of which with Related parties (3,611) (7,112)  
Cash flow used in investing activities:     
Additions to property, plant and equipment (6,081) (2,253)  
Additions to intangible assets (78) (48)  
Investments in affiliates (1,350) (667)  
Share capital increase in joint ventures (46) (69)  
Proceeds from the sale of tangible assets 132 337  

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (7,423) (2,700)  

of which with Related parties (52)  

Cash flow from financing activities:    

Increase in interest-bearing loans and borrowings 6,750 2,585  
(Decrease in interest-bearing loans and borrowings) (1,515) (2,105)  
New interest-bearing loans to affiliates (121)  

Net change in other non-current financial liabilities (247) (242)  
Net change in other financial liabilities 1,668 1,014 
Treasury Shares’ purchase (331)  

Dividends Paid (669) (668)  

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 5,535 584  

of which with Related parties (121)   
INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 2,489 271  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
YEAR 1,035 764  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 
PERIOD 3,524 1,035 
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The aforementioned cash flow data therefore determined a net financial debt (determined in 
accordance with the Consob prescriptions DEM / 6064293) at the end of December 2017 as per the 
following table. 
 
(in thousands of Euro)     

  December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

A. Cash 1 27 
B. Cash Equivalents 3,523 1,008 

C. Trading and Available for Sale Securities   

D. Liquidity (A) + (B) + (C) 3,524 1,035 
E. Current financial assets 26  
F. Current bank debt 581 1,381 

G. Current portions of non current debt 2,176 1,238 

Leasing 444 158 

Bank loans 1,732 1,080 

H. Other current financial  247 
Current liabilities to a shareholder for the purchase of  
treasury shares 

 247 

I. Current financial debt (F) + (G) + (H) 2,757 2,866 
J. Net current financial indebtedness  (I) – (E) – (D) (793) 1,831 
K. Non current loans and borrowings 11,317 4,312 

Leasing 2,615 226 

Bank loans 8,702 4,086 

L. Issued bond   

M. Other non current loans   

N. Non current financial indebtedness (K) + (L) + (M) 11,317 4,312 

O. Net financial indebtedness  (J) + (N) 10,524 6,143 

 
 
 
  

https://context.reverso.net/traduzione/inglese-italiano/Trading
https://context.reverso.net/traduzione/inglese-italiano/Available-for-Sale+Securities
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Parent company Income 
and financial highlights  
 
 

Income performance 
 
 

The table below shows the main income data of the Parent Company. 
 

(in thousands of Euro)           

  
December 31, 

2018 
% December 31, 

2017 
% Change 

%  

Revenues 38,544 99.0% 35,723 98.5% 7.9% 

Other Revenues 390 1.0% 557 1.5% -30.0% 

TOTAL REVENUES 38,934 100.0% 36,280 100.0% 7.3% 

Cost of goods sold (16,936) -43.5% (16,377) -45.1% 3.4% 

Service costs (8,356) -21.5% (8,767) -24.2% -4.7% 
Personnel costs (6,294) -16.2% (5,573) -15.4% 12.9% 
Other operating costs (823) -2.1% (883) -2.4% -6.8% 

EBITDA (*) 6,525 16.8% 4,680 12.9% 39.4% 

Depreciation and amortization (1,548) -4.0% (1,398) -3.9% 10.7% 

EBIT (**) 4,977 12.8% 3,282 9.0% 51.7% 

Financial income 106 0.3% 20 0.1% >100% 

Financial expenses (127) -0.3% (173) -0.5% -26.6% 

PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 4,956 12.7% 3,129 8.6% 58.4% 

Income taxes (1,180) -3.0% (1,072) -3.0% 10.1% 

NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 3,776 9.7% 2,057 5.7% 83.6% 
 
 

(*) EBITDA indicates the result before financial income and expenses, income taxes and depreciation and amortization. EBITDA is used by Directors 
to monitor and evaluate the operational performance of the business. Since EBITDA is not identified as an accounting measure within the International 
IFRS accounting standards, it should not be considered an alternative measure for evaluating the performance of the Company’s operating results. 
Since the composition of EBITDA is not regulated by the accounting Standards, the criterion of determination applied by the company may not be 
homogeneous with that adopted by other entities and therefore not be comparable with them. 

 
(**) EBIT indicates the result before the financial income and expenses and income taxes. EBIT is the indicator used by Directors to monitor and 
evaluate the operational performance of the business. Since EBIT is not identified as an accounting measure within the International IFRS accounting 
standards, it should not be considered an alternative measure for evaluating the performance of the Company’s operating results. Since the composition 
of EBIT is not regulated by the accounting Standards, the criterion of determination applied by the company may not be homogeneous with that adopted 
by other entities and therefore not be comparable with them. 
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Financial performance 
 

The scheme of the reclassified balance sheet aggregates the assets and liabilities of the balance sheet 
according to the criterion of functionality to the management of the company considered 
conventionally divided into the three fundamental functions: investment, operation and financing. 
Management believes that the proposed scheme represents useful information because it allows the 
identification of sources of financial resources (own resources and third-party assets) and their uses 
in fixed assets and in the operating capital. 
 

(in thousands of euro)   
 December 31,  

2018 
December 31,  

2017 
CURRENT ASSETS   

Inventories 5,045 5,271 
Trade receivables 11,763 10,678 
Other current assets 419 825 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 17,227 16,774 
CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Trade payables (5,543) (7,209) 
Other current liabilities (1,305) (1,045) 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES (6,848) (8,254) 
NET WORKING CAPITAL (A) (*) 10,379 8,520 
Tangible and Intangible assets 16,575 15,028 
Other non current assets and liabilities 150 19 
NET NON-CURRENT ASSETS (B) (**) 16,726 15,047 

NET INVESTED CAPITAL (A+B) (***) 27,104 23,567 
 

(in thousands of euro)  
 

  December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

EQUITY    

Share capital 3,674 4,006 

Reserves 11,597 10,309 
Net profit  3,776 2,057 
TOTAL EQUITY 19,047 16,372 
Provisions for risks and charges and Employees’ benefit liabilities 942 867 
Net financial indebtedness (****) 7,115 6,328 

TOTAL SOURCES OF FINANCING 27,104 23,567 
 

(*) Net working capital is obtained as a difference between current assets and current liabilities excluding financial assets and liabilities. Net working 
capital is not identified as an accounting measure under reference accounting standards. It is specified that it was determined in accordance with the 
recommendations set out in the ESMA update of the CESR Recommendations. The consistent implementation of Commission Regulation (EC) No 
809/2004 Implementing the Prospectus Directive” of March 20, 2013 (already recommendation of CESR 05-054b of February 10, 2005). The criterion 
of determination applied by the company may not be homogeneous with that adopted by other entities and, therefore, the balance obtained by the 
company may not be comparable with that determined by the latter. 
 
(**) Net non-current assets are obtained as the sum of: tangible and intangible assets (with separate indication of goodwill), and other non-current assets 
and liabilities. 
 

(***) Net invested capital is obtained as the sum of Net working capital and Net non.current assets. Net invested capital is not identified as an accounting 
measure under reference accounting standards. The criterion of 
determination applied by the company may not be homogeneous with that adopted by other entities and, therefore, the balance obtained by the company 
may not be comparable with that determined by the latter. 
(****) In accordance with the communication N. DEM/6064293 of July 28, 2006 issued by CONSOB, it is stated that net financial indebtedness is 
obtained as the sum of Non current interest-bearing loans and borrowings, Current portions of non current financial liabilities, net of Cash and cash 
equivalents. 
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Statement of cash flows and Net 
financial indebtedness 
 

(in thousands of euro)      

Statement of cash flows December 31, 
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 3,776 2,057 
Adjustments to reconcile net profit for the period to net cash 
from operating activities 2,809 2,679 

Depreciation and amortization 1,548 1,398 
Income taxes 1,180 1,072 
Financial income and expenses 21 154 
Provision for bad debt 60 55 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: (2,454) (1,503) 
Inventories  226 (968) 
Trade receivables (1,145) (822) 
Trade payables  (1,666) 169 
Employees’ benefits payments (23) 43 
Other assets and liabilities 154 76 
Other adjustments: (728) (1,014) 
Financial expenses: paid net of financial income (21) (154) 
(Tax paid) (707) (860) 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,403 2,220 

Cash flow used in investing activities:     
Additions to intangible assets (62) (48) 
Additions to property, plant and equipment (1,527) (2,253) 
Investments in affiliates (1,350) (1,000) 
Share capital increase in joint ventures (45) (69) 
Proceeds from the sale of tangible assets 128 338 
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,856) (3,032) 
Cash flow from financing activities:     
Increase (decrease)in interest-bearing loans, borrowings and lease (1,340) 1,058 
New interest-bearing loans 6,000 2,585 
(Decrease in interest-bearing loans and borrowings) (1,271) (2,105) 
New interest-bearing loans to affiliates (120) 0 
New lease operation 351 167 
(Decrease and refund of lease operations) (245) (211) 
New derivate operations 45 0 
Treasury shares purchase (331) 0 
Dividends Paid (669) (669) 
Net change in other non-current financial liabilities (247) (242) 

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,173 583 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
YEAR 534 763 

INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,720 (229) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 
PERIOD 3,254 534 
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The aforementioned cash flow data therefore determined a net financial debt (determined in 
accordance with the Consob prescriptions DEM / 6064293) at the end of December 2017 as per the 
following table. 
 

(in thousands of euro)     

  December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

A. Cash 1 27 
B. Cash Equivalents 3,253 507 
C. Trading and Available for Sale Securities   

D. Liquidity (A) + (B) + (C) 3,254 534 

E. Current financial assets 26  
F. Current bank debt 50 1,378 
G. Current portions of non current debt 1,641 1,117 

Leasing 180 158 
Bank loans 1,461 959 

H. Other current financial  247 
Current liabilities to a shareholder for the purchase of  
treasury shares 

 247 

I. Current financial debt (F) + (G) + (H) 1,691 2,742 

J. Net current financial indebtedness  (I) – (E) – (D) (1,589) 2,208 

K. Non current loans and borrowings 8,704 4,120 
Leasing 551 227 
Bank loans 8,153 3,893 

L. Issued bond   

M. Other non current loans   

N. Non current financial indebtedness (K) + (L) + 
(M) 8,704 4,120 

O. Net financial indebtedness  (J) + (N) 7,115 6,328 
 
 

 
  

https://context.reverso.net/traduzione/inglese-italiano/Trading
https://context.reverso.net/traduzione/inglese-italiano/Available-for-Sale+Securities
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Reconciliation between 
Group shareholders’ 
equity and result with the 
same values of the Parent 
Company 
 

Si riporta di seguito il prospetto di raccordo fra il risultato del periodo ed il patrimonio netto di 
gruppo con gli analoghi valori della capogruppo ai sensi della Comunicazione n. DEM/6064293 del 
28 Luglio 2006. 
 

The table below shows the reconciliation between the Group shareholders' equity and result with the 
same values of the Parent Company pursuant to Communication n. DEM / 6064293 of 28 July 2006. 
 

(in thousands of euro)         

 December 31, 
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

 Equity Net 
profit Equity Net 

profit 

     

Parent company values 19,047 3,776 16,373 2,058 
     

- Assessment of consolidated subsidiaries 2,141 130 2,015 2,015 

- Assessment of investments in affiliates and joint ventures using the 
equity method 276 84 192 140 

- Elimination of unrealized profits, deriving from transactions between 
Group companies, relating to inventories net of the deferred tax effect (87) (1) (86) (86) 

- Other movements 8    

     
Consolidated Shareholders’ equity and result 21,385 3,989 18,494 4,127 
 
Shareholders' equity and result attributable to minority interests 
 

2,158 124    2,033 -    

Group Shareholders’ equity and result 23,543 4,113 20,527 4,127 
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Financial and income 
indicators 
 
The following table shows the trend of the main financial and income indicators as of December 31, 
2018 and as of December 31, 2017. 
These indicators are calculated from the Financial and Income Statements and, in order to allow a 
better understanding of their trend, they must be read together with the alternative performance 
indices and the indicators envisaged by the Reference Accounting Standards (IFRS) described in this 
document. 
 

Parent company financial and income indicators December 31, 
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

ROE  23.1% 13.7% 
(Net profit - / Previous year shareholders’ equity)     
ROI 21.1% 15.4% 
(EBIT / Previous year net invested capital)     
ROS  12.9% 9.2% 
(EBIT / Revenues from contracts with customers)     
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Main risks and 
uncertainties affecting 
Group operations and 
financial conditions 
 
BioDue’s Group has developed risk management procedures in the most exposed areas which could 
negatively impact the economic and financial conditions of the Parent company and the Group itself. 
 
Risks related to the field of activity  
 
 

Risks related to macroeconomic and economic situation of activity 
The world economy is slowing down with dynamics differentiated in the geographic areas. 
The Group, in order to mitigate the negative effects of the world macroeconomic scenario, continues 
its strategies, expanding its presence in those markets where the growth rates of the economy still 
remain high and consolidating the Competitive positioning of its products, leveraging research 
activity and production efficiency.  
 
 

Risks related to the high level of market competition  
In recent years, the competitiveness of markets in which the Group operates has increased 
significantly, especially in terms of price, also by the world demand contraction. 
The group sought and seeks to tackle this risk through an offer of high-quality, innovative, 
economical, reliable and safe products.  
 
 
 

Risks related to the increase in the price of raw materials  
Production costs are exposed to the risk of fluctuation in commodity prices. In the event that the 
group would be unable to translate on the sale prices commodity price increases, its economic and 
financial situation would be affected.  
 
 

Risks related to market seasonal fluctuations 
Group business is not exposed to market seasonal fluctuations. 
 
 

Risk related to the regulatory framework 
Group products are subject to numerous national and international rules and safety regulations. 
Group’s production sites are also subject to stringent regulations on waste disposal, water discharges 
and other pollutants. 
The issuing of stricter rules could put current products out of the market, forcing producers to 
support investment in product renewals and/or the production plants restructure/adaptation. 
In order to cope with these risks, the Group always invested in research and development of 
innovative products, anticipating any restriction in current regulations. 
 
 

 
Risks related to the Group operations 
 
 

Risks associated with changing customer preferences  
Group success depend on offering products that meet consumer tastes and needs. If the Group 
products would not meet the customer’s liking, revenues would decrease. As a result of more 
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aggressive trade policies in terms of discounts, there would be lower margins, with negative impacts 
on the economic and financial situation.  
The Group, in order to cope with these risks, always invest in intense research and development 
activities and introduce innovative products, in order to meet customer needs and to anticipate 
market trends.  
 

Risks related to the legal protection of trademarks, licenses and patents  
The Group legally protects its products and brands all over the world. In some countries where the 
Group operates there is no legislation aimed at guaranteeing certain levels of intellectual property 
protection.  
This could make the Group implemented measures insufficient in order to have a protection from 
phenomena of misuse by third parties. Illegal actions of plagiarism by competitors could adversely 
affect the Group sales.  
 

Risks related to supplier dependence  
For its activities, the Group uses several raw materials suppliers. Group activity is conditioned by its 
suppliers capacity to guarantee quality standards and specifications required for products, as well as 
delivery times.  
Any unavailability of the supplied products, or any quality standards failure, specifications failure or 
delivery times failure by suppliers could increase supply prices, causing interruptions and prejudices 
to the Group activities.  
Although the Group’s revenue component generated by the contribution of third parties and strategic 
partners is limited, the use of products from third-party suppliers entails certain additional risks and 
charges for the Group. These risks include possible delays in supplies, failures in quality control or 
level of diligence and lack of adequate resources.  
In addition, interruptions in the supply of raw materials or finished products could jeopardise the 
Group production and distribution, with consequent adverse effects on the Group’s image and 
activity. 
 

At the same time, other factors, such as the loss of business relationships or the inability to develop 
new relationships, or even factors beyond the control of the Group, such as strikes, interruptions in 
transport, political events or catastrophes may cause delays in supplies, or give rise to significant 
adverse effects on the Group’s economic and financial situation. 
 

Risks related to industrial plants  
Group industrial plants are subject to operational risks, including, without limitation, plant failures, 
failure to comply with applicable legislation, revocation of permits and licences, lack of manpower, 
catastrophes , sabotage, attacks or significant interruptions in the supply of raw materials or 
components.  
Any interruption in the production activity could have a negative impact on the Group’s economic 
and financial situation. 
Operative risks associated with industrial plants are managed by insurance covers specified on each 
plant on the basis of their importance.  
 

Country risk  
The Group is exposed to risks associated with internationalization, such as exposure to local 
economic and political conditions, compliance with different tax regimes, the creation of customer 
barriers or, more generally, the introduction of new restrictions.  
All these factors may have negative influences on the Group’s economic and financial situation.  
 

Risks associated with product liability and risks associated with defects in products 
In the countries where the Group operates, it is exposed to product liability actions risks. 
Any future acceptance of claims that exceed the existing insurance cover on product liability may 
have adverse effects on the Group’s economic and financial situation.  
Nowadays there is no relevant economic dispute. In recent years, only cases of disputes arising in 
compensation from defective products have seen the activation of insurance coverage. 
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Risks related to trade unions 
The Group operates in an industrial context with the presence of trade unions, and it is potentially 
exposed to the risk of strikes and interruptions in production activity. 
The Group has not undergone significant blocks of production due to strikes. 
In order to avoid, as far as possible, the risk of interruption in production, the Group has always 
established a confrontation and dialogue relationship with the trade unions.  
 

Data management risks 
The Group is exposed to the risk of unauthorized access/use of its data, which may have a negative 
impact on its profitability.  
The Group developed operational policies and technical security measures to ensure adequate 
protection of its business data. 
 

Risks related to the lack of adoption of the D. Lgs. 231/2001 organization, management and control 
models.  
Nowadays the Group did not adopt the model of organization, management and control provided by 
the D. Lgs. 231/2001. 
So, the Group may be exposed to the risk of any penalties provided for by the regulations on the 
liability of institutions. 
However, the Group’s activity is carried out in compliance with the regulations on occupational 
safety and environmental protection.  
 
 

Financial risks 
 

Risks related to financial indebtedness 
The financial indebtedness, the Group is exposed to, could in the future negatively affect its activity, 
limiting the Group possibility to get more funding or making the Group able to obtain more funding 
only under more adverse conditions.  
 

Liquidity risk  
This risk is linked to the possible difficulties that the Group may encounter in obtaining, in the right 
time, funding to support operational activities. 
Cash flows and financing needs are highly monitored, with the aim of guaranteeing efficient and 
effective management of financial resources. 
The Company does not have any covenant on the interest-bearing loans and receivables. 
 

Exchange rate risks 
The Group carries out operations in currencies other than Euro. This exposes the Group to the risk 
arising from fluctuations in exchange rates between different currencies. 
 

Risks related to interest rates 
The Group holds assets and liabilities sensitive to changes in interest rates. These assets and 
liabilities are necessary for the management of liquidity and financial requirements.  
These assets and liabilities are subject to a rate risk that is in part mitigated through fixed rate 
financing contracts. 
and through the stipulation of derivative contracts to cover variable rate loans. 
 

Credit risk 
The Group is exposed to the risk that the claims may not be honored at maturity, because of the 
obligator financial conditions. 
So credit risk is related to the increase in seniority of credits, the risk of insolvency and the increase 
in claims under insolvency proceedings. 
The consequent loss of value may result in partial or total cancellation from the Financial Statements. 
The Group adopts a credit management policy aimed to: assess customers reliability, monitor 
expected recovery flows, issue payment reminders, allow extended credit conditions where deemed 
necessary or appropriate and manage legal claims litigation.  
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Research and 
development 
 
Under paragraph 1, third subparagraph, of art. 2428 of Civil Code, the Group attests that during the 
first year 2018 research and development activities continue on projects deemed to be particularly 
innovative, both through employees and consultants. 
Costs incurred for research and development are not capitalized, but are naturally allocated in the 
operating costs. So they are debited in Profit and Loss statement. 
During the year, research and development activities continued on projects deemed particularly 
innovative, both through its own staff and through consulting activities. 
The positive outcome of these innovations will generate good results in terms of turnover with 
positive effects on the Company’s financial results. 
Considering that these activities are a part of the operating activities of the company, the related 
costs are charged to the income statement. 
This activity also generated following tax receivable amounts: 

- Parent Company: 128 thousand Euro in 2017 and 165 thousand Euro in 2018 
- LaBiotre Srl: 37 thousand Euro in 2017 and 37 thousand Euro in 2018 

 
 
 
 
 

Related parties 
 
Related parties transactions are exposed both in separate than in consolidated financial statements. 
They do not include atypical or unusual operations. They are regulated under market conditions and 
described in the relevant note to which it is referred. 
For comments on the main income and financial data of the investments in subsidiaries, affiliates 
and joint ventures, please refer to the information already provided in the previous paragraph on the 
management performance. 
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Other information on the 
Parent Company 
 

Below is some general information about the company: 
The company has its registered office in Via Ambrogio Lorenzetti n. 3 / A, Barberino Tavarnelle (FI) 
The tax code and the VAT number of the company are: 02084930482. 
The company is registered with the Florence Company Register with the following registration 
number: 02084930482. 
The company is registered with R.E.A. of Florence with the following registration number: 383657. 
The company has a subscribed and fully paid-up share capital of 4,005,540.00 Euro. 
The company has no secondary offices. 
 
The share capital is divided into 11,148,900 euro shares, each of which represents an equal fraction 
of the share capital. 
 
The company holds n. 61,000 treasury shares. 
 
The company has not undertaken particular environmental impact policies because they are not 
necessary in relation to the activity carried out. 
 
The Company adopts all appropriate measures to protect the health and safety of work environments 
through the application of traditional procedures (risk assessment, health surveillance plan) and 
with the support of competent professional figures. 

 
Prevention of working risks is a fundamental principle that inspires the Company and represents an 
opportunity to improve the quality of life in the plants and offices of the Company. 
In this perspective, training and awareness-raising initiatives continued for employees and, in 
general, for all workers on issues concerning safety in the workplace. The activity was implemented 
through training and information interventions (carried out with specific courses), the 
implementation of the health surveillance plan, the disclosure of notices and circulars as required by 
the relevant regulations. In compliance with the provisions of the Legislative Decree 81/2008, 
further investments were made to improve the adequacy of the plants and equipment to the 
provisions of the aforementioned legislation. 
 
 

In order to comply with the provisions of the AIM Italia / Alternative Capital Market Regulations in 
force from time to time, the Company has adopted specific corporate governance procedures such 
as: 
- procedure for transactions with related parties; 
- procedure for the management and processing of privileged information; 
- Internal Dealing procedure; 
- procedure for the fulfillment of reporting obligations to the Nomad. 
 
 
Barberino Tavarnelle (FI), March 28, 2019 
 
 
Vanni Benedetti 
Chairman 
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Consolidated statement of 
financial position 

 
 

 

Assets 
 
 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)      

 Notes December 
31, 2018 

of which with 
related parties 

(See Note 8) 

December 
31, 2017 

of which with 
related 
parties 

(See Note 8) 
NON CURRENT ASSETS      
Property, plant and equipment 5.1 18,960 49 14,444  

Goodwill 5.2 1,381  1,381  

Intangible assets 5.2 2,200  2,484  

Investment property 5.3 86  98  
Investment in associates and joint 
ventures 5.4 1,584  104  

Other non current assets 5.5 33  51  

Other non current financial assets 5.6 95 95   

Deferred tax assets 5.7 157  171  
TOTAL NON CURRENT 
ASSETS  24,496  18,733  

CURRENT ASSETS      

Inventories  5.8 5,926  5,901  

Trade receivables 5.9 12,373 926 11,299 762 
Tax receivables 5.10 826  779  

Other current assets 5.11 85  55  

Other current financial assets 5.12 26 26   

Cash and cash equivalents 5.13 3,524  1,035  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  22,760  19,069  

TOTAL ASSETS  47,256  37,802  
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Consolidated statement of 
financial position 
 
 

Liabilities and shareholders’ 
equity 
 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)           

 Notes December 31, 
2018 

of which 
with 

related 
parties 

(See Note 
8) 

December 31, 
2017 

of which with 
related 
parties 

(See Note 8) 

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY      
Share capital  3,675  4,006  
Reserves  13,721  10,362  
Net profit attributable to equity 
holders of the parent  3,989  4,126  

TOTAL GROUP 
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  21,385  18,494  

Share capital and reserves of non-
controlling interests  2,034  2,033  

Net profit of non-controlling 
interests  124  -  

TOTAL NON-CONTROLLING 
INTERESTS  2,158                       

2,033   

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ 
EQUITY 5.14 23,543  20,527  

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES       
Non current interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings 5.15 11,317  4,312  

Provisions for risks and charges 5.16 636  605  
Employees’ benefit liabilities 5.17 369  330  
Deferred tax liabilities 5.18 663  809  
TOTAL NON CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

 12,985  6,056  

CURRENT LIABILITIES      
Trade payables 5.19 6,588 1,350 7,131 1,777 
Current interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 5.20 2,757  2,619  

Other current financial liabilities 5.20   247  
Tax payables 5.21 549  318  
Other current liabilities 5.22 834  904  
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  10,728  11,219  
TOTAL LIABILITIES  23,713  17,275  
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  47,256  37,802  

 
  



 

 
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018   Pag.  7 

Consolidated statement of 
income 
 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)           

  Notes December 31, 
2018 

of which with 
related 
parties 

(See Note 8) 

December 31, 
2017 

of which with 
related parties 

(See Note 8) 

Revenues  6.1 41,007 1,113 35,723 713 
Other revenues 6.2 513 0 557 96 

TOTAL REVENUES  41,520  36,280  

Cost of goods sold 6.3 (17,344) (3,990) (16,495) (6,231) 

Service costs 6.4 (9,066) 13 (8,767) (187) 
Personnel costs 6.5 (6,747)  (5,573)  

Other operating costs 6.6 (960) (173) (883) (86) 
Depreciation and amortization 6.7 (2,053)  (1,398)  

OPERATING PROFIT  5,350  3,164  

Financial expenses 6.8 (194) (17) (173) (27) 
Financial income 6.8 112 23 20  

Reassessment of controlling 
interests in a subsidiary 
measured at fair value 

6.8   2,015  

Share of profit of associates and a 
joint venture 6.8 84  140  

PROFIT BEFORE TAX  5,352  5,166  

Income taxes 6.9 (1,239)  (1,040)  
NET PROFIT FOR THE 
PERIOD  4,113  4,126  

Net profit attributable to non-
controlling interest  124    

NET PROFIT 
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 

 3,989  4,126  

      
Basic earnings per share – 
ordinary shares 6.10 0.36  0.37  

Diluted earnings per share – 
ordinary shares 6.10 0.36  0.37  
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Consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)    

  Notes December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

Net profit for the period  4,113  4,126  
  

 
  

Other comprehensive income/losses   

Profit / (loss) on cash flow hedge  (32)  

- Other comprehensive income/losses that will be 
subsequently reclassified to profit/loss for the period  (32)  

Pofit / (loss) on employees’ benefit liabilities  (71)  (1)  

- Other comprehensive income/losses that will not be 
subsequently reclassified to profit/loss for the period  (71)  (1)  

  

5.14 

  

Total other comprehensive income/losses for the 
period, net of taxes (103)  (1)  

     
Total other comprehensive income/losses for the 
period, net of taxes 

 4,010  4,125  

Non-controlling interest  3,886 4,125 

Equity holders of the Parent  124  
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Consolidated statement of cash flows 
 

(in thousands of Euro)   
 

  December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 

NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 4,113 4,126  
Adjustments to reconcile net profit for the period to net 
cash from operating activities 3,121 531  

Depreciation and amortization 2,059 1,398  
Income taxes 999 1,072  
Financial income and expenses 82 154  
Provision for bad debt 65 62  
Reassessment of controlling interests in a subsidiary at fair value, 
previously held as an associates 0 (2,015)  

Share of profit of associates and a joint venture (84) (140)  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: (1,835) (1,256)  
Inventories  (25) (850)  
Trade receivables (1,139) (267)  
Trade payables  (543) (326)  
Employees’ benefits payments 39 43  
Other assets and liabilities (167) 144  
Other adjustments: (1,022) (1,014)  
Financial expenses: paid net of financial income (82) (154)  
(Taxes paid) (940) (860)  

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4,377 2,387  

of which with Related parties (3,611) (7,112)  
Cash flow used in investing activities:     
Additions to property, plant and equipment (6,081) (2,253)  
Additions to intangible assets (78) (48)  
Investments in affiliates (1,350) (667)  
Share capital increase in joint ventures (46) (69)  
Proceeds from the sale of tangible assets 132 337  

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTI (7,423) (2,700)  

of which with Related parties (52)  

Cash flow from financing activities:    

Increase in interest-bearing loans and borrowings 6,750 2,585  
(Decrease in interest-bearing loans and borrowings) (1,515) (2,105)  
New interest-bearing loans to affiliates (121)  

Net change in other non-current financial liabilities (247) (242)  
Net change in other financial liabilities 1,668 1,014 
Treasury Shares’ purchase (331)  

Dividends Paid (669) (668)  

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 5,535 584  

of which with Related parties (121)   
INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 2,489 271  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
YEAR 1,035 764  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 
PERIOD 3,524 1,035 



 

 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)                   

 Share 
capital  

Share capital 
contributions 

Other 
reserves 

IAS 19 
Reserve 

Cash flow 
Hedge 

Reserve 

Net profit 
for the 
period 

Group’s  
equity 

Minority 
interests Total equity 

As of January 1, 2017 4,006 3,594 5,317 (85)  2,206 15,038  15,038 
Allocation of results   2,206   (2,206) -   

Net profit for the period      4,126 4,126  4,126 
Other comprehensive income   (1)   (1)  (1) 
Total comprehensive income   2,206 (1)  1,920 4,125  4,125 
Dividends paid   (669)    (669)  (669) 
Allocation of business combinations effects to third parties       - 2,033 2,033 
Treasury Shares’ purchase           

Other movements   1    1  1 
As of December 31, 2017 4,006 3,594 6,855 (86)  4,125 18,494 2,033 20,527 

          
(in thousands of Euro)          

 Share 
capital  

Share capital 
contributions 

Other 
reserves 

IAS 19 
Reserve 

Cash flow 
Hedge 

Reserve 

Net profit 
for the 
period 

Group’s  
equity 

Minority 
interests Total equity 

As of January 1, 2018 4,006 3,594 6,855 (86)  4,125 18,494 2,033 20,527 
Allocation of results   4,125   (4,125)    

Net profit for the period      3,989 3,989 124 4,113 
Other comprehensive income   (71) (32)  (103)  (103) 
Total comprehensive income   4,125 (71) (32) (136) 3,886 124 4,010 
Dividends paid   (669)    (669)  (669) 
Allocation of business combinations effects to third parties          

Treasury Shares’ purchase (331)      (331)  (331) 
Other movements   5    5 1 6 
As of December 31, 2018 3,675 3,594 10,316 (157) (32) 3,989 21,385 2,158 23,543 

 
 
 



 

 

 

Notes to the Consolidated 
financial statements 
 
 
 

1. Introduction 
1.1 Company notes 

BioDue S.p.A., parent company, is a legal entity subject to the laws of the Republic of Italy, registered 
office in Via Ambrogio Lorenzetti 3/A, Barerino Tavarnelle (già Tavernelle Val di Pesa) (Florence), 
listed on AIM Italy (Alternative Investment Market). 
The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2018 have been approved by the Board of 
Directors on March 28, 2019. 
 

BioDue S.p.A. develops, manufactures and sells cosmetics, liquid and solid food supplements and 
medical devices both on behalf of national and international pharmaceutical Companies (Industrial 
division) and with its own brands Pharcos (dermatological sector), BiOfta (ophthalmic sector) and 
Selerbe (herbal Nutraceutical). 
The Company operates in 17,000 sqm own plants, dedicated to industrial production and registered 
under Reg. CE 852/2004, GMP Certification (Good manufacturing Practice) and, since 2018, 
Certification EN ISO 13485.  
 

With the highest quality and safety standards required by European regulations (Code of Federal 
regulations, Title 21, Volume 2, part 111, of 01-04-2013) BioDue is also registered with the U.S. FDA 
(Registration No. 10725095718). The physical separation of individual establishments, though 
concentrated in a single industrial district, constitutes an important measure of disaster recovery. 
 

The following prospectus shows the consolidation area (delimited by the blue line for fully 
consolidated subsidiaries) of the BioDue Group as of December 31, 2018. 
 

 
 
  

BioDue 
S.p.A.

LaBiotre 
S.r.l.
51.2%

Pharcomed 
Corp.
50%

Pharcomed 
Mexico SA

50%

Two Bee 
S.r.l.
50%

Two Bee Shpk 
(Albania)

100%

Farcoderma 
S.r.l.

43.42%
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• LaBiotre, 51.20% owned at December 31, 2018, was founded in 2011 in partnership with 
Labomar S.r.l. (active in the production and distribution of nutraceutical products) to 
guarantee the highest quality of raw materials in its products. LaBiotre extracts plant active 
ingredients with proprietary technology and know-how exclusively for the final customer.  
LaBiotre provides raw materials to BioDue for Selerbe products and natural vegetable 
extracts to be used in the production cycle. In December 2017 the Parent company Biodue 
S.p.A., as a result of the subscription of a private capital increase of 1 million Euro, obtained 
the majority of the capital. From the end of 2017, therefore, LaBiotre is consolidated line by 
line in the Group consolidated financial statements. 

• Pharcomed Corp., established in Miami (FL) with a share capital of 40,000 USD on 
January 2017 in joint venture (50/50) with the Suco Group Int. (formerly Pharcos Distributor 
from 1996). It distributes as an exclusive Pharcos branded products in the American 
continent:  
– directly on the US market;  
– through local distributors in other countries.  
Pharcomed Corp. is accounted under the equity method in the consolidated financial 
statements. 

• Pharcomed Mexico SA de CV, Joint Venture under Mexican law, located in Mexico City, 
held jointly by Biodue S.p.A. and Pharcomed Corporation (50% each). Pharcomed Mexico 
has been granted the exclusive Pharcomed products for Mexican territory.  

• Two Bee S.r.l. was established on March 10, 2017 in joint venture with Fufarma Albania 
(IMC Group) for the realization of a plant for the pharmaceutical production of capsules and 
tablets in Tirana. Two Bee S.r.l. is accounted under the equity method in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

• Farcoderma S.r.l., 43.42% owned December 31, 2018, is a company active in the 
production of cosmetics and food supplements. The 43.42% ownership was purchased in July 
2018, with the aim to build a partnership that leads to industrial production synergies. The 
purchase price was 1,350,000 euro. Farcoderma S.r.l. is accounted under the equity method 
in the consolidated financial statements.  
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1.2 Consolidation area 
 
The following table highlights the consolidation area as of December 31, 2018, compared with the 
consolidation area as of December 31, 2017: 
 

Company 

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 

Group 
share 

Direct 
control 
share 

Indirect 
control 
share 

Group 
share 

Direct 
control 
share 

Indirect 
control 
share 

Parent company 
BioDue S.p.A. 100%   100%   

Subsidiaries  
Labiotre S.r.l. 51.2% 51.2%   51.2% 51.2%   
Joint venture (accounted under the equity method) 
Pharcomed Corp. 50% 50%   50% 50%   
Pharcomed Mexico 25%  25% 25%  25% 
Two Bee S.r.l. 50% 50%   50% 50%  
Two Bee Shpk (Albania) 50%  50%     

Affiliates (accounted under the equity method) 
Farcoderma S.r.l. 43.42% 43.42%       

 
 
 

The subsidiary LaBiotre S.r.l. is consolidated in the financial statements and in the statement of 
income since 2018, while in 2017 it was consolidated only in the financial statements. This is due to 
the purchase of the majority ownership by the parent company at the end of 2017. 
So the statement of income as of December 31, 2017 does not include LaBiotre’ income values. It only 
includes the consolidation of LaBiotre with the equity method. 
 
 

2. Directors’ evaluation on 
going concern requirements 
 

On the basis of the good performance and the solid financial statements, Directors believe that the 
Group is able to continue its operating activity in the future. So they have approved the Consolidated 
financial statements as of December 31, 2018 on the base of going concern requirements. 
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3. Basis for preparation 
3.1 Expression of compliance with IFRS  
The consolidated financial statements of BioDue S.p.A. have been prepared in accordance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board ("IASB"), approved by the European Union and in force at the balance sheet date. 
The explanatory notes to the financial statements have been supplemented with the additional 
information required by Consob and the Italian Civil Code. With "IFRS" is meant also the 
International Accounting Standards ("IAS") still in force, as well as all the interpretative documents 
issued by the IFRS Interpretation Committee, previously known as the International Financial 
Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") and, before that, the Standing Interpretations 
Committee ("SIC"). 
 
For the first time, the Group applies IFRS 15 Revenues from customer contracts, IFRS 9 Financial 
instruments and, as permitted, IFRS 16 Leases; the nature and effects of these changes are set out 
below. 
 
 

3.2 Content and structure of the financial statements  
 

The statements adopted by the Group are made up as follows : 
• Consolidated Statement of Financial Position - The consolidated statement of 

financial position is presented by distinguishing between current and non-current assets and 
liabilities and by distinguishing, for each item of assets and liabilities, the amounts expected 
to be settled or recovered within or after 12 months from the date of reference of the financial 
statements; 

• Consolidated Income Statement - The consolidated income statement contains the 
items by function, since it is considered the one that provides the most explanatory 
information; 

• Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income - The consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income includes items recognised directly in equity when IFRS allow it; 

• Consolidated Cash flow statement - The consolidated cash flow statement presents the 
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flows from operating 
activities are represented by the indirect method, whereby the result for the year or period is 
adjusted by the effects of non-monetary transactions, by any deferment or allocation of 
previous or future operating cash receipts or payments, and by revenue or cost items 
associated with cash flows from investing or financing activities; 

• Consolidated Statement of changes in shareholders' equity - The consolidated 
statement of changes in shareholders' equity shows the overall result for the year and the 
effect, for each item of shareholders' equity, of changes in accounting principles and 
corrections of errors as required by the International Accounting Standard n. 8. Furthermore, 
the scheme shows the balance of accumulated profits or losses at the beginning of the period, 
the movements of the year and the end of the year. 

The format used for the consolidated income statement is "scalar", with the individual items analysed 
by function. It is believed that this exposure, followed also by the main competitors and in line with 
international practice, is the one that best represents the Group's results. 
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As allowed by IAS 1 revised, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is presented in a 
separate document from the income statement, distinguishing between components that can be 
reclassified and those that cannot be reclassified to the income statement.  
The other components of comprehensive income are also shown separately in the consolidated 
statement of changes in shareholders' equity. 
The consolidated statement of financial position distinguishes between current and non-current 
assets and liabilities as described below. The consolidated cash flow statement is prepared using the 
indirect method, as follows  allowed by IAS 7. 
 
The financial statements are presented in Euro; all the values reported in the explanatory notes and 
in the report on operations are presented and rounded in thousands of euro.  
The financial statements provide comparative information for the previous period: the situation as 
at 31 December 2017.  
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3.3 Consolidation principles  
 
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of BioDue S.p.A. and its 
subsidiary LaBiotre S.r.l. at 31 December 2018. 
The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are valued using the equity method.  
 
Control is reached when the Group is exposed or has the right to variable returns, deriving from its 
relationship with the entity being invested in and, at the same time, has the capacity to affect those 
returns by exercising its power over that entity. 
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:  

► power over the invested entity (i.e., it holds valid rights that give it the current ability to direct 
the significant activities of the invested entity); 

► exposure or rights to variable returns arising from the relationship with the invested entity;  
► the ability to exercise its power over the invested entity to affect the amount of its returns 

Generally, there is a presumption that the majority of voting rights involve control. In support of this 
presumption and when the Group holds less than a majority of the voting rights (or similar rights), 
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances to determine whether it controls the 
investing entity, including:  

► contractual arrangements with other holders of voting rights;  
► rights arising from contractual agreements; 
► voting rights and potential voting rights of the Group. 

The Group reconsiders whether or not it has control of an investee company if the facts and 
circumstances indicate that there have been changes in one or more of the three elements relevant 
to the definition of control. The consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control 
and ends when the Group loses control. The assets, liabilities, revenues and costs of the subsidiary 
acquired or sold during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date 
on which the Group obtains control until the date on which the Group no longer exercises control 
over the company.  
 
The profit (loss) for the period and each of the other components of the comprehensive income 
statement are allocated to the shareholders of the parent company and to the minority interests, even 
if this implies that the minority interests have a negative balance. When necessary, appropriate 
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure compliance with the 
Group's accounting policies. All assets and liabilities, shareholders' equity, income, expenses and 
cash flows within the group relating to transactions between group entities are eliminated completely 
on consolidation. 
 
Changes in the interest held in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for in 
equity. 
 
If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it must eliminate the related assets (including goodwill), 
liabilities, minority interests and other components of shareholders' equity, while any gain or loss is 
recognised in the income statement. Any retained interest is recognised at fair value. 
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3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
a) Business combinations and goodwill 
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is 
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date 
fair value, and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business 
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at 
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related 
costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses. 
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for 
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic 
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of 
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. 
In case of step acquisition, previous investments are evaluated at fair value at the acquisition date 
and any resulting profit or loss is recognized in the income statement. 
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the 
acquisition date.  
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within 
the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. 
Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration 
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held 
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets 
acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has 
correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the 
procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment 
still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration 
transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For 
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the 
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit 
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned 
to those units. 
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within 
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the 
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed 
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the 
portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 
 
b) Current versus non-current classification  
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. An asset is current when it is: 

►  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 
► Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
► Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; 
► Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non current. 
 
A liability is current when: 

► It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 
► It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
► It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; 
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► There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after 
the reporting period. 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
 

c) Use of estimates and significant assumptions 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the IFRS requires 
estimates and assumptions affecting the amounts of assets, liabilities, costs and revenues recognized 
in the financial statements. Estimates and related assumptions are based on past experience and 
other factors considered reasonable in this case and have been adopted to estimate the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities, which is not easily inferable from other sources. 
These estimates and hypotheses are regularly reviewed. Any changes resulting from the revision of 
the accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the revision is made. 
The main data subject to estimation refer to: 
 

1. Application of the 5-step model in accordance with IFRS 15 for the 
assessment and recognition of revenues from contract with customers: 
Some contracts for the sale of goods include variable fees and customer discounts. To 
estimate the variable considerations related to the expected discounts, the Group applies 
the most probable amount method for contracts with a single volume discount threshold 
and the expected value method for contracts with multiple thresholds. 
 

2. Returns due to defects, including the assessment of any charges connected 
to a possible compensation charge: 
The Group account a provision for risks related to the possible costs of non-compliance 
on the products, monitoring the products made during the period and the non-
conformities identified in the subsequent period. 
 

3. Obsolescence fund for raw materials, accessories and finished products’ 
inventories:  
The obsolescence fund for finished products inventories reflects the management's 
estimation of expected losses of products, taking into consideration the ability to sell 
them. The Obsolescence fund of raw materials reflects the management's estimation of 
the decrease in their use probability, which is analyzed based on the calculation of slow-
moving raw materials. 
 

4. Bad debt provision, related to the evaluation of customer solvency:  
The Group determines impairment losses on trade receivables considering the amount of 
doubtful debts, analyzing the specific conditions of the Group's customers, the guarantees 
given in favor of the Group and appropriately evaluating the outstanding disputes and the 
possibility of recovering receivables expired. 
The Group also analyzed the average customer insolvency rate and credit loss recorded 
in recent years, in order to evaluate the consistency of the results of the analyzes carried 
out on the expected loss on each customer's credit with the historic loss rate. 
 

5. Employees’ and directors’ benefit liabilities evaluated using actuarial 
assumptions: 
The actuarial valuation requires the elaboration of hypotheses about discount rates, 
future salary increases, turnover and mortality rates. Due to the long-term nature of these 
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plans, these estimations are subject to a significant degree of uncertainty. All assumptions 
are reviewed annually. 
 

6. Deferred tax assets that are recognized on the basis of the probability of 
adequate future tax profits for which the temporary differences or any tax 
losses may be used: 
Deferred tax assets are recognized basing on all the temporary differences and all the tax 
losses carried forward, if it’s probable that there will be adequate future tax profits against 
which these losses can be used. A significant discretional assessment is required from the 
directors to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be accounted for.  
They must estimate the probable timing, the amount of future taxable profits and a future 
tax planning strategy. 
 

7. Determination of control and joint control of associated companies: 
The Group determines the presence of control in the company considering that control is 
obtained when the Group is exposed or it has the right to variable returns, deriving from 
its relationship with the entity subject to investment and, at the same time, has the ability 
to affect such returns by exercising their power over this entity. 
Likewise, a joint venture is a joint control arrangement in which the parties that have 
joint control have rights to the net assets of the agreement. Joint control means the 
sharing on a contractual basis of the control of an agreement, which exists only when the 
decisions on the relevant activities require a consensus from all the parties that share 
control. 
 

8. Recognition of business combinations: 
Business combinations imply the allocation to the assets and liabilities of the acquired 
company of the difference between the purchase price and the net book value. For most 
of the assets and liabilities, the attribution of the difference is made by recording the 
assets and liabilities at their fair value. The part not attributed if positive is recorded as 
goodwill, if negative it is charged to the income statement. The allocation of the price paid 
provisionally is subject to revision / update within the 12 months following the acquisition 
having regard to new information on facts and circumstances existing at the date of the 
acquisition. In the allocation process, the Group uses the information available and, for 
the most significant business combinations, external evaluations; the allocation process 
requires, also based on the information available, the exercise of a complex judgment by 
the Group Management. 
 

9. Identification of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU): 
In accordance with IAS 36 "Impairment of assets", the goodwill recorded in the financial 
statements based on business combination transactions was allocated to individual or 
groups of CGUs, which are expected to benefit from the combination. A CGU represents 
the smallest group of assets that generates largely independent financial flows. In the 
process of identifying the aforementioned CGUs, the management has taken into account 
the specific nature of the activity and the business to which it belongs (territorial area, 
business areas, reference legislation, etc.), verifying that the financial flows deriving from 
a group of activities were strictly interdependent and largely independent of those 
deriving from other activities (or groups of activities). The activities included in each CGU 
were also identified on the basis of the methods through which the management manages 
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and monitors them in the context of the so-called business model adopted. In application 
of the provisions of IAS 36 "Impairment of assets", the goodwill recorded in the financial 
statements based on business combinations was allocated to individual or groups of 
CGUs, which are expected to benefit from the combination. A CGU represents the 
smallest group of assets that generates largely independent financial flows. 
 

10. Impairment test of a non-financial asset: 
Impairment of non-financial asset occurs when events or changes in circumstances 
suggest that the book value is not recoverable. The events that can determine a reduction 
in the value of assets are changes in the business plans, regulatory changes, changes in 
market conditions, reduced use of the plants. The decision to reduce the value and 
quantify it depends on the assessments of the Group Management on complex and highly 
uncertain factors. 
An impairment occurs when the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable value, which is the higer between its fair value minus costs to sell 
and its value in use. Fair value minus costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale 
of an asset or a cash flow generating unit in a free transaction between knowledgeable 
and willing parties, minus costs of disposal.  
In determining this fair value, Group management may also use appraisals drawn up by 
third parties, particularly as regards the industrial value of the assets under concession. 
The calculation of the value of use is based on a cash flow discounting model. The cash 
flows are derived from the approved forecast plans that consider point estimates and do 
not include restructuring activities for which the Group has not yet committed or 
significant future investments that will increase the results of the activity that make up 
the cash flow generating unit object of evaluation. The recoverable value depends 
significantly on the discount rate used in the cash flow discounting model, as well as on 
the expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for the extrapolation. The key 
assumptions used to determine the recoverable value for the various cash-generating 
units, including a sensitivity analysis, are described in detail in the known impairment 
tests pursuant to IAS 36 on the value of goodwill and impairment tests pursuant to IAS 
36 on the value of tangible assets. 
 

11. Identification of contracts that include a leasing  
The new IFRS 16 standard introduces some elements of judgment that involve the 
definition of some accounting policies and the use of assumptions and estimates in 
relation to the lease term and the definition of the incremental borrowing rate. The main 
ones are: (i) identification of the duration of the rental contract, for which the Group has 
chosen to consider the renewable period including the extension connected to the renewal 
options, evaluating the presence of a reasonable certainty of the actual possibility for the 
exercise of the same right and (ii) the definition of the discount rate for which the Group 
has calculated an incremental rate of indebtedness (Incremental Borrowing Rate-IBR) as 
the rate of a risk-free instrument, increased by the Group Credit spread.  

 
d) Fair value Measurement 
The Group measures financial instruments and financiancial liabilities and assets, at fair value at 
each balance sheet date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 



 

 
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018   Pag.  21 

based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 
either: 

► In the principal market for the asset or liability; 
► In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

► Level 1  - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

► Level 2 -  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

► Level 3 -  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable. 

The fair value measurement is entirely classified in the same level of the fair value hierarchy in which 
the lowest level hierarchy input used for the valuation is classified 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring 
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing  categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, 
such as investment properties and unquoted financial assets, and for non-recurring measurement, 
such as assets held for sale in discontinued operations. The management  is comprised of the head 
of the investment properties segment, heads of the Group’s internal mergers and acquisitions team, 
the head of the risk management department, chief finance officers and the managers of each 
property. 
External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as investment properties and 
financial assets held for sale, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. 
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained. 
For this analysis, the Valuation Committee verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation 
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 
On an interim basis, management present the valuation results to the Audit Committee and the 
parent company’s independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions used 
in the valuations. 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities 
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair 
value hierarchy, as  explained above. 
 
e) Foreign currencies 
The financial statements are presented in euros, which is also the parent company’s  functional 
currency. 
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Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective 
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional 
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss 
with the  
exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment 
in a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which 
time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to 
exchange differences on those monetary items are also recognised in OCI. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at 
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value 
is determined. 
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line 
with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation 
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also 
recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 
 

f) Property, plant and equipment 
Construction in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any. Plant and 
equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if 
any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for 
long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant 
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based 
on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised 
in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are 
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The 
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the 
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. 
Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as 
follows:  
 

Tangible assets Number 
of years 

Instrumental buildings 34 
Industrial buildings 19 
Real estate investments 19 

Light constructions 11 
Automatic machinery 9 
Other machinery 11 
Generic plants 11 
Specific Plants   9 
Various and small equipment 6 

Various laboratory equipment 3 
Electronic office machines 6 
Telephones, cell phones and modems 6 
Office furniture and furnishings 9 
Vehicles and means of transport 6 
Cars 5 

Stand for exhibitions / congresses 9 
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Other tangible Assets  11 
 
 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is 
derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of 
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 

- Leasing 
The Group opted for the early adoption of IFRS 16 as at January 1, 2018, as provided by paragraph 
C1 of the same standard that allows its early adoption at the first time adoption date of IFRS 15. 
The standard defines the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure 
of leasing and requires the lessees to account for all leasing contracts in the financial statements 
based on a single model similar to that used to account for finance leasing in accordance with with 
IAS 17. 
At the beginning of the contract the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a leasing. 
The contract is, or contains, a leasing if, in exchange for a consideration, it confers the right to control 
the use of a specified asset for a period of time. 
The time period can be described as a period of use of a specific identified activity identified 
separately. 
The Group re-evaluates whether a contract is, or contains, a leasing only in the event of a change in 
the terms and conditions of the contract. At the effective date, the Group recognises the asset 
consisting of the right of use and the liability of the lease.  
On the effective date, the Group evaluates at cost the activity consisting of the right of use which 
includes: 

► the amount of the initial valuation of the lease liability; 
► payments due for leasing made on or before the effective date, net of lease incentives 

received; 
► the direct initial costs incurred by the lessee; and  
► the estimation of all the costs that the Group will incur to dismantle and remove the 

underlying asset and to restore the site where it is located or to restore the underlying asset 
in the conditions set by the terms and conditions of the lease, to unless these costs are 
incurred for the production of inventories. The obligation relating to these costs arises for the 
Group at the effective date or as a consequence of the use of the underlying asset during a 
specific period. 

At the effective date, the lessee assesses the liability of the lease at the present value of the payments 
due for the lease not paid on that date. Payments due for leasing must be discounted using the 
implicit interest rate of the lease, if it can be easily determined. If this is not possible, the Group must 
use its marginal financing rate. 
The payments due for leasing included in the valuation of the liability of the lease include the 
following payments for the right to use the underlying asset over the duration of the lease not paid 
on the effective date: 

► fixed payments net of any leasing incentives to be received; 
►  the variable payments due for leasing which depend on an index or a rate, initially valued 

using an index or a rate on the effective date; 
►  the amounts that are expected to be the lessee will have to pay as guarantees of the residual 

value; 
► the exercise price of the purchase option, if the lessee has the reasonable certainty of 

exercising the option;  
► payments of lease termination penalties, if the duration of the lease takes into account the 

exercise by the lessee of the option to terminate the lease. 
After the effective date, the Group evaluates the activity consisting of the right of use at cost: 



 

 
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018   Pag.  24 

► net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses; and  
► adjusted to take into account any restatements of the liability for the lease. 

After the effective date, the Group assesses the liability for the lease: 
► increasing the carrying amount to consider the interest on the liability of the lease; 
► decreasing the carrying amount to consider the payments due for the lease; is 
► recalculating the carrying amount to consider any new valuations or changes to the lease or 

the revision of the payments due for the fixed lease in substance. 
The interest on the liability of the leasing in each year over the leasing term is equal to the amount 
that produces a constant periodic interest rate on the residual liability of the lease. 
The Group recognizes in the income statement, unless such costs are included in the carrying amount 
of another asset in accordance with other applicable principles: (1) interest on the liability of  leasing 
and (ii) variable payments due for leasing not included in the valuation of the leasing liability in the 
year in which the event occurs or the circumstance triggering the payments. 
The principle provides for two exemptions for registration by lessees - leasing contracts relating to 
“low value” activities (for example personal computers) and short-term leasing contracts (for 
example contracts with expiration within 12 months or lower). When the lease agreement starts, the 
lessee recognizes a liability against the lease payments (ie the lease liability) and an asset that 
represents the right to use the underlying asset for the duration of the contract (ie the right of use of 
the asset). Lessees separately account for interest expenses on the lease liability and the amortization 
of the right to use the asset. 
The Group has included the information required by IFRS 16 in the explanatory notes to the financial 
statements under note 5.1.1. 
 

- Borrowing costs  
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised 
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they 
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. 
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g) Intangible assets 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of 
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses.  
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and 
the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 
The useful lives of Group' s intangible assets are assessed as finite.  
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the 
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered 
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in 
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category that is consistent with the function of the 
intangible assets. 
 The gains or losses deriving from the elimination of an intangible asset are measured by the 
difference between the net revenue from the disposal and the carrying amount of the intangible asset, 
and are recorded in the profit / (loss) for the year in the exercise in which the elimination takes place. 
The principles applied by the Group for intangible assets are summarized below: 

 

Intangible assets Number 
of years 

Development costs 5/10 
Brands 18 
Software 5 
Production know-how 8 
Other intangible assets 5 
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- Research and development costs 
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are 
recognized as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate: 

► The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available 
for use or sale; 

► Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset; 
► How the asset will generate future economic benefits; 
► The availability of resources to complete the asset; 
► The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development. 

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost 
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset 
begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the 
period of expected future benefit. Amortisation is recorded in cost of sales. During the period of 
development, the asset is tested for impairment annually. 
 
h) Investment properties 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects 
market conditions at the reporting date.  
After initial recognition, the Group opted for cost accounting and evaluates all of its real estate 
investments in compliance with the provisions of that criterion set forth in IAS 16 except those that 
meet the criteria for classification as held for sale (or are included in a disposal group classified as 
held for sale) in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued 
operations. Real estate investments that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale (or included 
in a disposal group classified as held for sale) must be valued in accordance with IFRS 5. 
Real estate investments are eliminated from the financial statements with the sale or when the 
investment is permanently unusable and no future economic benefits are expected from its sale. Any 
profits or losses deriving from the withdrawal or disposal of an investment property are recognized 
in the income statement in the year in which the withdrawal or disposal takes place. 
Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a 
transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent 
accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an 
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated 
under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use. 
 
i) Investments in associates and joint ventures 
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the 
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually 
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant 
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. 
The Group’s investment in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. 
Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at 
cost. 
The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net 
assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate 
or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment 
separately. 
The statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate 
or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In 
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint 
venture, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes 
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the 
associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture. 
 The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on 
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the face of the statement of profit or loss outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after 
tax and no-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture. 
The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period 
as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with 
those of the Group. 
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an 
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group 
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture 
is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the 
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, 
and then recognises the loss within ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture’ in the 
statement of profit or loss. 
 Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group 
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the 
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control 
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or 
loss. 
 
j) Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
 
 Financial assets 

o Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. 
 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual 
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of 
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has 
applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in 
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade 
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied 
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the 
accounting policies in section (e) Revenue from contracts with customers. 
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through 
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on 
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed 
at an instrument level. 
The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial 
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result 
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. 
 Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established 
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade 
date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
 
 

o Subsequent measurment 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

► Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments); 
► Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt 

instruments); 
► Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains 

and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments); 
► Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 
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o Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 

This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at amortised 
cost if both of the following conditions are met:  

► The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows; 
And 

► The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) 
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. 
 The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, and loan to an associate 
and loan to a director included under other non-current financial assets 
 
 

o Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments) 
The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions 
are met: 

► The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect 
contractual cash flows and selling; 
And 

► The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and 
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the 
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes 
are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is 
recycled to profit or loss. 
 

o Investments in equity instruments 
Upon initial recognition, the Group can irrevocably choose to classify its equity investments as equity 
instruments recognized at fair value recognized in OCI when they meet the definition of equity 
instruments pursuant to IAS 32 "Financial Instruments: Presentation" and are not held for trading. 
The classification is determined for each individual instrument. 
Profits and losses on these financial assets are never turned over to the income statement. Dividends 
are recognized as other revenues in the income statement when the right to payment has been 
resolved, except when the Group benefits from these proceeds as recovery of part of the cost of the 
financial asset, in which case these profits are recognized in OCI. Equity instruments recognized at 
fair value through OCI are not subject to an impairment test. 
 

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial 
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets 
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading 
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including 
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as 
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of 
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of 
the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised 
cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair 
value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an 
accounting mismatch. 
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position 
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
 

o Derecognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial 
position) when: 

► The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; Or 
► The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under 
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards 
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred 
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated 
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the 
rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at 
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration 
that the Group could be required to repay. 
 

o Impairment of financial assets 
The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not 
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual 
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to 
receive, discounted at an  approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash 
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are 
integral to the contractual terms. 
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from 
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit 
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss 
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective 
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group 
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.  
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.  
The Group determines impairment losses on trade receivables considering the amount of doubtful 
debts, analyzing the specific conditions of the Group's customers, any guarantees given in favor of 
the Group and appropriately evaluating outstanding disputes and the possibility of recovering 
receivables expired. 
The Group also analyzed the average customer insolvency rate and credit loss recorded in recent 
years, in order to assess the consistency of the results of the analyzes carried out on the expected loss 
on each customer's credit with the loss rate historian. 
 
 Financial liabilities 

o Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments 
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 
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All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including 
bank overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments. 

o Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
 

o Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered 
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined 
by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are 
designated as effective hedging instruments. 
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group 
has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss. 
 

o Loans 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit or loss. 
This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.  
 

o Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss. 
 

o Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated 
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 
 
k) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 
The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate 
swaps to hedge its variation interest rate risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially 
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value 
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 
The Group hedges exclusively with reference to the financial flows and in particular to the exposure 
against the variability of the cash flows connected to interest rates. 
At the beginning of a hedging transaction, the Group formally designates and documents the hedging 
relationship, to which it intends to apply hedge accounting, its own objectives in risk management 
and the strategy pursued. 
The documentation includes the identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the 
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nature of the risk and the ways in which the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship 
meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of the sources of ineffectiveness 
coverage and how the coverage ratio is determined). The hedging relationship meets the eligibility 
criteria for accounting for hedging transactions if it meets all the following hedging effectiveness 
requirements: 

► There is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument. 
► The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic 

relationship. 
► The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of 

the hedgeditem that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument 
that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item. 

Hedges that meet all the qualifying criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described 
below: 
Cash flow hedges 
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash 
flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit 
or loss. The cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the 
hedging instrument and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.  
 
l) Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. 
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group 
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined 
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent 
of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions 
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is 
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly 
traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 
Management bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which 
are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. 
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. A long-term growth 
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. 
Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in 
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for properties 
previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is 
recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation. 
At each balance sheet date, management assesses the existence of indications of the loss (or 
reduction) of impairment losses previously recorded and, if such indications exist, estimates the 
recoverable value of the asset or CGU. The value of a previously written down asset can be restored 
only if there have been changes in the assumptions on which the calculation of the determined 
recoverable value was based, subsequent to the recognition of the last impairment loss. The write-
back cannot exceed the book value that would have been determined, net of depreciation, in the event 
that no impairment loss had been recognized in previous years. This recovery is recognized in the 
profit / (loss) statement for the year unless the asset is not accounted for at the revalued amount, in 
which case the recovery is treated as an increase from revaluation. 
 
m) Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for, as 
follows: 
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► Raw materials: purchase cost on weighted average cost basis; 
► Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of 

manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing 
costs. 

Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, 
recognised in OCI, in respect of the purchases of raw materials. 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
 
n) Cash and short-term deposits 
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on 
hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are 
considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management. 
 

o) Provisions for liabilities and charges  
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance 
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is 
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss 
net of any reimbursement. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 
 

p) Post-employment benefits 

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit 
credit method. 
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding 
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets 
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised 
immediately in the statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to 
profit or loss in subsequent periods. 
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of: 

► The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 
► The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs. 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 
The Group  recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under ‘cost of sales’, 
‘administration expenses’ and ‘selling and distribution expenses’ in the consolidated statement of 
profit or loss (by function): 

► Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on 
curtailments and non-routine settlements 

► Net interest expense or income. 
IAS 19 requires an entity to consider, in the accounting of defined benefit plans, the contributions of 
employees or third parties. When the contributions are linked to the service provided, they should 
be attributed to the periods of service as a negative benefit. This amendment clarifies that, if the 
amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, the entity is allowed 
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to recognize these contributions as a reduction in the cost of the service in the period in which the 
service is provided, rather than allocating the contribution to the periods of service.  
 
q) Revenue from contracts with customer 
 

The Group develops, produces and sells cosmetics, liquid and solid food supplements and medical 
devices both on behalf of national and international pharmaceutical companies (Industrial Division) 
and with its own brands Pharcos (dermatological sector), BiOfta (ophthalmic sector) and Selerbe 
(sector herbal nutraceutical). 
Revenues deriving from contracts with customers are recognized when the control of goods and 
services is transferred to the customer for an amount that reflects the consideration that the Group 
expects to receive in exchange for these goods or services. The Group has concluded that it acts as 
Principal in the agreements from which the revenues derive, as it controls the goods and services 
before transferring them to the customer. 
Revenues from the sale of products are recognized when the control of the goods passes to the 
customer, generally at the time of shipment of the goods. The usual terms of commercial extension 
are from 30 to 90 days from shipment. 
The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance  
obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, 
customer loyalty points). In determining the transaction price for the sale of equipment, the Group 
considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, 
noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any). 
If the amount promised in the contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount 
of the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the transfer of the goods to the 
customer. 
The variable consideration is estimated at the time the contract is stipulated and it is not possible to 
record it until it is highly probable that when the uncertainty associated with the variable 
consideration is subsequently resolved, there will be no significant decrease in the amount of the 
cumulative revenues that have been recorded. 
Contracts for the sale of the Group typically do not provide customers with a right of return and 
volume discounts. 
Sometimes, the Group gives retroactive discounts to some customers when the quantity of products 
purchased during the period exceeds a threshold determined in the contract. These discounts are 
compensated with the amounts that the customer must pay. To estimate the variable price related to 
the expected discounts, the Group applies the most probable amount method for contracts with a 
single volume discount threshold and the expected value method for contracts with multiple 
thresholds. The choice of the best method to use to predict the amount of the variable fee depends 
on the number of thresholds present in the contract. The Group then applies the guidance on the 
recognition of the variable consideration and enters a liability for repayments for the expected future 
discounts. 
With reference to the comparative year, revenues are recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
the economic benefits will be achieved by the Group and the related amount can be reliably 
determined, regardless of the date of collection in accordance with IAS 18. Revenues are measured 
at the fair value of the consideration received or to be received, taking into account the terms of 
payment contractually defined and excluding taxes and duties. In particular, the revenue is 
recognized when the Group has transferred to the buyer all the significant risks and benefits 
connected to the ownership of the asset, generally on the date of delivery of the goods. 
The revenue is valued at the fair value of the consideration received or to be received, net of returns 
and rebates, commercial discounts and volume reductions.  
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r) Other income 
 

- Active rentals 
Rents deriving from property investments are recognized on a straight-line basis over the duration 
of the existing lease contracts at the balance sheet date and are classified as revenues, taking into 
account their operational nature. 
 

- Dividends 
Dividends are recognized when the unconditional right of the Group to receive the payment arises, 
which generally corresponds to the time when the Shareholders' Meeting approves their distribution. 
 

- Interest income 
For all the financial instruments valued at amortized cost and the interest-bearing financial assets 
classified as available for sale, the interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (TIE), 
which is the rate that precisely discounts future collections, estimated along the expected life of the 
financial instrument or over a shorter period, when necessary, with respect to the net carrying 
amount of the financial asset. Interest income is classified under financial income in the income 
statement / (loss) for the year. 
 
s) Public contribution 
Government grants are recognized when there is a reasonable certainty that they will be received and 
that all the conditions referring to them are met. Contributions related to cost components are 
recorded as revenues, but are systematically divided between the years so as to be commensurate 
with the recognition of the costs they intend to offset. The contribution related to an asset is 
recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the reference asset. 
 
t) Costs 
Costs are recorded when they relate to goods and services sold or consumed during the year or by 
systematic allocation, or when their future utility cannot be identified. 
 
u) Taxes 

- Current income tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those 
that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Group 
operates and generates taxable income. 
Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in 
the statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provisions where appropriate. 
 

- Deferred taxes 
Deferred taxes are calculated by applying the so-called “liability method” to the temporary 
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax values of the assets and liabilities and the 
corresponding balance sheet values. 
The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available in the future to 
allow all or part of the use of such credit. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it becomes probable that the taxable income 
will be sufficient to allow the recovery of these deferred tax assets. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to be applied 
in the year in which such assets will be realized or these liabilities will be settled, considering the 
rates in force and those already issued, or substantially in force, on the date of the budget. 
Deferred taxes relating to items recognized outside the income statement are also recognized outside 
the income statement and, therefore, in equity or in the statement of comprehensive income, in line 
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with the item to which they refer. 
 

- Indirect taxes 
Costs, revenues, assets and liabilities are recognized net of indirect taxes, such as value added tax, 
with the following exceptions: 

► the tax applied to the purchase of goods or services is non-deductible; in this case it is 
recognized as part of the purchase cost of the asset or part of the cost recognized in the income 
statement; 

► trade receivables and payables include the applicable indirect tax.  
The net amount of indirect taxes to be recovered or paid to the tax authorities is included in the 
balance sheet among the credits or debts. 
 
 
v) Dividends and distribution of assets other than cash and cash equivalents 
The Group recognizes a liability for the distribution to its shareholders of cash or differents assets 
from  cash when the distribution is adequately authorized and is no longer at the discretion of the 
Group. Under European company law, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by 
shareholders. The corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity. 
Distributions of assets other than cash and cash equivalents are measured at the fair value of the 
assets to be distributed; the restatements of fair value are recognized directly in equity. 
When the payable dividend is settled, any difference between the book value of the assets distributed 
and the book value of the dividend payable is recognized in the profit and loss statement for the year. 
 

w) Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the Group's 
ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
year. 
For the purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding is modified by assuming the conversion of all potential shares with a diluting effect. 
  



 

 
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018   Pag.  36 

 

3.5 Changes in accounting and disclosure principles 
 
The Group has not adopted in advance any standards, interpretations or improvements issued but 
not yet in force.  
 
IFRS 9: Financial Instruments 
In July 2015, IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replacing IAS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 
brings together all three aspects of the project on accounting for financial instruments: classification 
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018; early application is permitted. With the exception of hedge 
accounting, retrospective application of the standard is required, but comparative information is not 
required. With regard to hedge accounting, the standard is generally applied prospectively, with a 
few limited exceptions. 
The Group has been adopting the new standard since 1 January 2018 without restating the 
comparative information.  
The Group did not have a significant impact on its statement of financial position and shareholders' equity and 
the amounts allocated for impairment losses were not significantly different from those obtained from the 
procedures previously applied. In addition, there were no changes in the classification of the Group's 
financial instruments 
 

a) Classification and measurement 
 
The Group didn’t find any significant impact on its financial statements and shareholders' equity as 
a result of the application of the classification and measurement requirements set out in IFRS 9. 
Financial receivables, as well as trade receivables, are held for the purpose of collection at contractual 
maturities and generate cash flows represented solely by the collection of principal and interest. The 
Group has analysed the characteristics of the contractual cash flows of these instruments and has 
concluded that they comply with the criteria for valuation at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 
9. 
 

b) Impairment 
 
IFRS 9 requires the Group to record expected credit losses on all its obligations, loans and trade 
receivables, either on an annual basis or on a residual maturity basis. 
The Group determines impairment losses on trade receivables by considering the amount of 
receivables of doubtful collectability, analysing the specific conditions of the Group's customers, any 
guarantees given in favour of the Group and suitably assessing outstanding disputes and the 
possibilities of recovering past due receivables. 
The Group has also analysed the average rate of customer insolvency and loss on receivables 
recorded in recent years, in order to assess the consistency of the results of the analyses carried out 
on the expected loss on each customer's receivables with the historical loss rate. 
In consideration of the analyses carried out, the provisions of IFRS 9 did not have an impact on the 
shareholders' equity of the Group. 
 

c) Hedge accounting  
 
The Group did not hold derivative financial instruments prior to the first-time adoption of IFRS 9. 
 
IFRS 15: Revenues from contracts with customers 
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and introduces a new five-step model that applies to revenues from 
customer contracts. IFRS 15 requires the recognition of revenues for an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the entity believes it is entitled in exchange for the transfer of goods or 
services to the customer. The standard provides a more structured approach to the recognition and 
measurement of revenues, replacing all the previous requirements in the other IFRSs regarding the 
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recognition of revenues. IFRS 15 replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts, and 
interpretations of IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the 
Construction of Buildings, IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 Revenue - 
Bartering Transactions Including Advertising Activities. 
IFRS 15 is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with full or amended 
retrospective application. 
The Group applied the new standard retrospectively from the date of mandatory application. The 
application of the standard did not have an impact on the opening shareholders' equity of the Group. 
In applying IFRS 15, the Group has considered the following points: 
 

a) Sale of goods 
The application of IFRS 15 to contracts with customers in which the sale of goods is the only 
obligation has not had a significant impact on the Group. The Group recognises revenues when 
control of the asset has been transferred to the customer for an amount that reflects the consideration 
that the Group expects to receive in exchange for these goods or services, similar to what happened 
under previously applicable standards. 
 

b) Presentation and required information 
The provisions of IFRS 15 regarding the presentation and disclosure required, which are 
fundamentally new, are more detailed than those of the previous standards. Considering the 
predominance of the application of a revenue recognition at the point in time, as well as the results 
of the assessment activities carried out, the Group did not have significant implementation 
difficulties to meet the need for additional disclosures. 
The information required by the standard is presented in note 7.1 below. 
 
IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions — 
Amendments to IFRS 2 
The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment that address three main areas: the effects of vesting 
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a 
share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and 
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction 
changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled. On adoption, entities are required to apply the 
amendments without restating prior periods, but retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three 
amendments and other criteria are met. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018. The Group has not noticed any significant impact from the application of these 
amendments. 
 
Amendmends to IAS 40: Transfer of investment 
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under construction or development 
into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or 
ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere 
change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in 
use. Entities should apply the amendments prospectively to changes in use that occurred at the 
beginning of the annual period in which the entity first applies the amendments, or later. An entity 
should reassess the classification of property held at that date and, if applicable, reclassify it to reflect 
the conditions that existed at that date. Retrospective application in accordance with IAS 8 is permitted 
only if it is possible without the use of subsequent information. The amendments are effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Group applied the amendments at the effective date. 
 
IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 
The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition 
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset 
or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on 
which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from 
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity 
must determine the date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. 
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Entities could apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity could 
apply the Interpretation prospectively to all activities, expenses and revenues within its scope that 
were recognised initially at or after the following dates: 

• at the beginning of the period in which an entity first applies the interpretation, or 
• at the beginning of the preceding reporting period presented for comparative purposes in the 

financial statements of the period in which the entity first applies the interpretation. 
The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 
Since the Group's current accounting policy is aligned with the interpretation, the Group has not 
recognized no effect on its balance sheet. 
 
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance 
Contracts 
The amendments address concerns arising from implementing the new financial instruments standard, IFRS 9, before 
implementing IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, which replaces IFRS 4. The amendments introduce two options for entities 
issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 and an overlay approach. These amendments 
are not relevant to the Group. 
 
Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Clarification 
that measuring investees at fair value through profit or loss is an investment-by-
investment choice 
The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying entity, may elect, at 
initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its investments in associates and joint ventures at 
fair value through profit or loss. If an entity that is not itself an investment entity, has an interest in an associate or joint 
venture that is an investment entity, then it may, when applying the equity method, elect to retain the fair 
value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity 
associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each 
investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which: (a) the investment entity 
associate or joint venture is initially recognized; (b) the associate or joint venture becomes an 
investment entity; and (c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first becomes a parent. These 
amendments do not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements. 
 
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standards - Deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters 
Short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3–E7 of IFRS 1 were deleted because they have now served their intended 
purpose. These amendments do not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements. 
 
IFRS 16 Leases 
IFRS 16 was published in January 2016 and replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining Whether 
an Arrangement Contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the 
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. 
IFRS 16 defines the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases in the financial statements based on a single 
model similar to the one used to account for finance leases in accordance with IAS 17. 
The accounting required by IFRS 16 for lessors is substantially unchanged from today's accounting 
in accordance with IAS 17. 
IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to disclose more information than is required by IAS 17. 
The standard sets out two exemptions for recognition by lessees – leases relating to assets with “low 
value” (for example, personal computers) and short-term leases (for example, leases maturing within 
12 months or less). Upon lease commencement, the lessee shall recognise a liability against the lease 
payments (i.e. a lease liability) and assets that represent the right-of-use of the underlying asset for 
the duration of the lease (i.e. the right-of-use of the asset). Lessees must separately record interest 
expense on the lease liability and the amortisation of the right-of-use of the asset. 
Lessees must also remeasure the lease liability on the occurrence of specific events (for example: 
change in the conditions of the lease contract, change in future lease payments resulting from a 
change in an index or a rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise 
the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the asset's right of use. 
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IFRS 16 applies from 1 January 2019; early application is permitted for entities that also apply IFRS 
15 - Revenues from contracts with customers. 
The Group adopted the standard early as from 1 January 2018, using the cumulative catch-up 
approach upon transition to the date of first application of the new standard (i.e. 1 January 2018), 
valuing the liability for leasing contracts equal to the future cash flows from existing contracts, 
discounted by an incremental interest rate calculated at that date on the basis of the residual duration 
of the contracts. 
The main impacts on the Group's financial statements can be summarised as follows: 

• financial position: higher non-current assets due to the recording of the right to use the leased 
asset under the item "Property, plant and equipment" as a balancing entry to higher financial 
payables; 

• income statement: different nature of expenses, qualification and classification of expenses 
(amortisation of the "right of use" and "interest financial charges" compared to "Costs for use 
of third party assets", as per IAS 17) with consequent positive impact on operating 
profitability. 

• alternative performance indicators: the different nature, qualification and classification of 
the expenses described in the previous point will consequently have an impact on EBITDA, 
net invested capital, net financial debt, as well as on other economic and financial indicators. 

The initial application of the standard resulted in the recognition of rights of use and financial 
liabilities of Euro 240 thousand at 1 January 2018. 
The application of the standard did not have an impact on the opening shareholders' equity of the Group. 
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3.6 Standards issued but not yet effective 

The following are the principles which, at the date of preparation of the Group's financial statements, 
had already been issued but were not yet in force.  
The list refers to standards and interpretations that the Group expects to be reasonably applicable in 
the future. The Group intends to adopt these standards when they come into force.  
 
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 
In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new 
accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation 
and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was 
issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance 
and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees 
and financial instruments with discretionary participation features.  
A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model 
for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the 
requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting 
policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant 
accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:   

• A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee 
approach)  

• A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration 
contracts  

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with comparative figures 
required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or 
before the date it first applies IFRS 17. This standard is not applicable to the Group. 
 
IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment 
The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve 
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the 
scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties 
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses the following:  

• Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately  
• The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation 

authorities  
• How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax 

credits and tax rates  
• How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances  

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or 
together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts 
the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. The interpretation is effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but certain transition reliefs are 
available. The Group will apply the interpretation from its effective date. Since the Group does not operate 
in a complex multinational tax context, the application of the Interpretation will not have a material effect on 
the financial statements and disclosures required.  
 
Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 
Under IFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held 
within the appropriate business model for that classification. The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that 
a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of the event or circumstance that causes the 
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early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable 
compensation for the early termination of the contract.  
The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019, with 
earlier application permitted. These amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the 
Group. 
 
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control 
of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify 
that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as 
defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognized in full. Any 
gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not constitute a business, 
however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint 
venture. The IASB has deferred the effective date of these amendments indefinitely, but an entity 
that early adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively.   
The Group will apply these amendments when they become effective. 
 
Amendmends to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 
The amendments to IAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or 
settlement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, 
curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to:  

• Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, 
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after 
that event. 

• Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment 
or settlement using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered 
under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to remeasure 
that net defined benefit liability (asset).  

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on 
settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognized in profit or 
loss.   
An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment or 
settlement.  
Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognized in other 
comprehensive income.  
The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after the 
beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after 1 January 2019, with early 
application permitted.   
These amendments will apply only to any future plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements of the Group. 
 
Amendmends to IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures 
The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or joint 
venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net 
investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is relevant 
because it implies that the expected credit loss model in IFRS 9 applies to such long-term interests.  
The amendments also clarified that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any losses 
of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognized as 
adjustments to the net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from applying IAS 28 
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.  
The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019, with early 
application permitted. Since the Group does not have such long-term interests in its associate and joint  
venture, the amendments will not have an impact on its financial statements. 
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Annual cycle of improvements 2015-2017 
These improvements include: 

• IFRS 3 Business Combination: The amendment clarifies that an entity re-evaluates the 
interest held in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business; 

• IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: The amendment clarifies that an entity does not re-evaluate the 
interest held in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business; 

• IAS 12 Income taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity must account for all income 
taxes arising from the payment of dividends in the same way; 

• IAS 23 Borrowing costs: The amendment clarifies that an entity must account for loans 
originally incurred to develop an asset, as part of other loans when the asset is ready for use 
or for sale. 

The amendment is in force for the financial years starting on 1 January 2019 or later. Early 
application is allowed. The Group will apply the interpretation on the date of entry into force. 
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4. Operating segments 
 

IFRS 8 “operating segments” requires to report financial and descriptive information on the Group 
reportable segments. 
 
An operating segment is a component of an entity (i) that engages in business activities from which 
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, (ii) whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the 
chief’s operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment 
and assess its performance, and (iii) for which discrete financial information is available. 
 
IFRS 8 states that operating segments often present similar results in the long term if they have 
similar characteristics. From two operating segments with similar economic characteristics there 
would be analogues average gross margins in the long term. So they could be aggregated in only one 
operating segment if they have similar characteristics in each of the following respects: 

a) the nature of the products and services; 
b) the nature of the production processes; 
c) the type of class of customer for their products and services; 
d) the methods used to distribute their products or provide their services; 
e) if applicable, the nature of the regulatory environment. 

The parent company develops, manufactures and sells medical devices, cosmetics, liquid and solid 
food supplements both on behalf of national and international pharmaceutical companies 
(Industrial division) and with its own brands. 
 
The subsidiary LaBiotre extracts plant active ingredients with proprietary technology and know-how 
exclusively for the final customer. LaBiotre provides raw materials to BioDue for Selerbe products 
and natural vegetable extracts to be used in the production cycle.  
 
The Group, also due to the above mentioned elements, has not yet defined distinct operating 
segments for its business activity. The Group assesses the performance oft its activities only using 
the revenues parameter.  
Major details on revenues are described in the notes, paragraph 7.1. 
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5. Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
 

5.1 Property, plant and equipment 
Property plant and equipment amounted to 18,960 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (14,444 
thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)             

Property, plant and 
equipment Property Plants and 

machinery 

Industrial and 
commercial 

equipment 
Other 

Current 
tangible 

assets and 
advances 

Total 
property, 
plant and 

equipment 
Net value as of December 
31, 2016 7,301  3,449  200  476  2,042  13,468  

Historical cost as of 
December 31, 2016 10,578  7,066  535  1,512  2,042  21,733  

Additions 85  354  94  309  1,411  2,253  

Business combinations   1,446  90  18    1,554  

Disposals (1,201)  (8)  (32)  (215)    (1,456)  

Reclassifications 2,170  474  28    (2,672)  0  
Historical cost as of 
December 31, 2016 11,632  9,332  715  1,624  781  24,084  

Accumulated 
amortization as of 
December 31, 2016 

(3,277)  (3,617)  (335)  (1,036)    (8,265)  

Additions (438)  (691)  (79)  (130)    (1,338)  

Business combinations   (452)  (41)  (10)    (503)  

Disposals 386  5  22  53    466  
Accumulated 
amortization as of 
December 31, 2017 

(3,329)  (4,755)  (433)  (1,123)  0  (9,640)  

Net value as of December 
31, 2017 8,303  4,577  282  501  781  14,444  

Historical cost as of 
December 31, 2017 11,632  9,332  715  1,624  781  24,084  

First time adoption of IFRS 16 
on operating leases 246          246  

Additions 21  799  74  53  2,359  3,306  

Additions for leasing 2,418  101  61  195    2,775  

Disposals   (123)    (168)    (291)  

Reclassifications 442  423  25  0  (890)  0  
Historical cost as of 
December 31, 2018 14,759  10,532  875  1,704  2,250  30,120  

Accumulated 
amortization as of 
December 31, 2017 

(3,329)  (4,755)  (433)  (1,123)  0  (9,640)  

Additions (599)  (813)  (104)  (163)    (1,679)  

Disposals   17    142    159  
Accumulated 
amortization as of 
December 31, 2018 

(3,928)  (5,551)  (537)  (1,144)  0  (11,160)  

Net value as of December 
31, 2018 10,831  4,981  338  560  2,250  18,960  
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Additions realized in the period amounted to 6,081 thousand Euro. They are to be attributed for 
2,775 thousand Euro to the described IFRS16 first time adoption and, for the difference of 3,306 
thousand Euro, to investments made in the period. These are mainly attributable to: 
 

• Plants and machinery, 799 thousand Euro; 
• Current tangible assets and advances, 2,359 thousand Euro, mainly due to investments 

planned in LaBiotre for the soft-gel production. 
 
Management believes that as of December 31, 2018 there are no indicators of loss of value from 
internal sources (corporate strategies), nor from external sources (legal, economic and technological 
context the Group operates in). 
 
5.1.1 Leasing  
 
In accordance with paragraphs 51-60 of IFRS 16, the following disclosures assess the effects of the 
leases on the financial position, the income result and the Group’s cash flows. 
 
(in thousands of Euro)       

 Property Plants and 
machinery 

Industrial 
and 

commercial 
equipment 

Other 

Current 
tangible 

assets and 
advances 

Total 
property, 
plant and 

equipment 
Book Value as of January 1, 2017 739 748    1,487 
Additions  70    70 
Disposals (739)     (739) 
Business Combinations  49    49 
Amortization  (168)    (168) 

Book value as of December 31, 2017  699    699 

Book value as of January 1, 2018  699    699 

First-time adoption of IFRS16 on 
operating leases 246     246 

Additions for leasing 2,418 101 61 195  2,775 
Amortization (73) (6) (6) (24)  (109) 

Book value as of December 31, 2018 2,591 794 55 171  3,611 
 
(in thousands of Euro)     

  December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 

Interest charges on leasing liabilities for the period 32 15 

Cash flows for leasing for the period 245 211 

 
Other operating costs include costs related to short-term leasing or low value leasing for 147 
thousand Euro, in application of paragraph 6 - IFRS16. 
 
The Group did not subscribe any sub-lease contract. 
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5.2 Goodwill and intangible assets 
 

Intangible assets amounted to 3,581 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (3,865 thousand Euro 
as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)             

Goodwill and intangible assets Goodwill 

Concessions
, licences, 

patents and 
other 

Industrial 
patents and use 

of intellectual 
property rights 

Intangible 
assets with a 
finite useful 

life in 
progress 

Total 
goodwill 

and 
intangible 

assets 
Net value as of December 31, 2016  23 109  132  
Historical cost December 31, 2016  280 392  672  
Additions  3 45  48  

Business Combinations 1,381  32 2,341 3,754  

Disposals     0  

Historical cost as of December 31, 2017 1,381 283 469 2,341 4,474  
Accumulated amortization as of 
December 31, 2016 

 (257) (283)  (540)  

Additions  (3) (52)  (55)  
Business Combinations   (14)  (14)  

Disposals     0  

Accumulated amortization as of 
December 31, 2017 

 (260) (349)  (609)  

Net value as of December 31, 2016 1,381 23 120 2,341 3,865  

Historical cost as of December 31, 2017 1,381 283 469 2,341 4,474  

Additions  3 69 6 78  

Disposals      

Historical cost as of December 31, 2018 1,381 286 538 2,347 4,552  

Accumulated amortization as of 
December 31, 2017  (260) (349)  (609)  

Additions  (3) (64) (295) (362)  

Disposals     0  
Accumulated amortization as of 
December 31, 2018  (263) (413) (295) (971)  

Net value as of December 31, 2018 1,381 23 125 2,052 3,581  

 
Additions amounting to 78 thousand Euro are mainly attributable to new functionalities of the ERP 
software. (69 thousand Euro) 
 
Management believes that as of December 31, 2018 there are no indicators of loss of value from 
internal sources (corporate strategies), nor from external sources (legal, economic and technological 
context the Group operates in). 
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5.2.1 Goodwill Impairment test   
Goodwill recorded in consolidated financial statements is subjected to impairment test on annual 
basis. 

The impairment test was carried out using the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method. The expected 
flows, used in the calculation of the DCF, were determined on the basis of the 2019-2022 business 
plan of the subsidiary LaBiotre. 

 

In order to determine the value in use of the CGU, the discounted cash flows of the 4 years of plan 
added to a terminal value have been considered, assumed to be equal to the present value of the 
perpetual return of the flow generated in the last year subject to explicit forecast, assuming a long-
term growth rate "g" of 0.5%. 

The WACC used to discount the financial flows was considered to be 9.73%. 

The determination of the value in use based on these parameters made it possible to avoid any 
reduction in the goodwill value. 

The Group has also done a sensitivity analysis of the aforementioned relevant assumptions used to 
determine the recoverable value (changes in growth of +/- 0.5% and changes in WACC of +/- 0.5%). 
Basing on the results of this analysis, the Directors believe that, in the presence of reasonable 
variations in the key assumptions, a surplus of the book value on the recoverable value is not 
generated. 
 

 
5.3 Investment property 
 

Investment property amounted to 86 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018. It refers to an 
industrial property leased.  
The following table shows the variations in investment property as of December 31, 2018. 
 

(in thousands of Euro)      

  January 1, 
2018 Additions Disposals Amortization December 31, 

2018 
Land 68    68 
Property 30 1  13 18 
Totale investment 
property 98 1  13 86 

 
 

Management believes that as of December 31, 2018 there are no indicators of loss of value from 
internal sources (corporate strategies), nor from external sources (legal, economic and technological 
context the Group operates in). 
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5.4 Investments in associates and joint ventures 
Investments in associates and joint ventures, measured at purchasing cost, amount overall to 1,584 
thousand euro (104 thousand euro as of December 31, 2018). 
The following table shows the variations in investment in associates and joint venture as of December 
31, 2018. 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Investments in 
associates and joint 
ventures 

Value as of 
December 31,  

2018 

Value as of 
December 31,  

2017 

% Investment  
as of 

December 31,  
2018 

% Investment  
as of 

December 31,  
2017 

Investments in joint 
ventures accounted 
under the equity method 

    

Pharcomed Corp. 135 49 50% 50% 

Two Bee S.r.l. 46 48 50% 50% 

Farcoderma S.r.L. 1,395  43.42%  

Investment in other 
companies     

Consorzio DAFNE 7 7 n.s. n.s. 

Consorzio ENERGIE 1  n.s. n.s. 
Total investments in 
associates and joint 
ventures 

1,584 104     

 

Pharcomed Corp. totaled:  
-revenues, 1.5 million USD; 
-EBITDA, 0.2 million USD; 
-net profit, 0.2 million USD. 

Two Bee S.r.l., holding of the pharmaceutical production company in Albania, was founded on June 
9, 2017 with a share capital pro-quota paid for 50 thousand Euro. The company is not yet fully 
operational. 
 

Farcoderma S.r.l. totaled:  
-revenues, 6.9 million USD; 
-EBITDA, 1.2 million USD; 
-net profit, 0.5 million USD. 
 
 

5.5 Other non-current assets 
Other non-current assets amounted to 33 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (51 thousand Euro 
as of December 31, 2017).  
The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Other non-current assets December 31, 
2018 

December 31,  
2017 Change % 

Change 

IRES tax credit 3 30 (27) -90.0% 

Deposits 3 17 (14) -82.4% 

Other receivables  2 (2) -100% 

Prepayments 27 2 25 >100% 

Total other non-current assets 33 51 (18) -35,3% 
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5.6 Other non-current financial assets 
 

Other non-current financial assets amounted to 95 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018. 
This is the long-term portion of an interest-bearing loan amounting to 150 thousand USD, granted 
in August 2018 to the affiliate Pharcomed. This loan has a five-year repayment plan. 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Other non-current financial assets December 31, 
2018 

December 31,  
2017 Change % 

Change 

Loan to Pharcomed 95   95   

Total other non-current financial 
assets 95   95   

 
 
 

5.7 Deferred tax assets 
 

The following table shows the breakdown of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2018.  
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Deferred tax assets  Pre tax 
amount   Rate  Tax 

amount  
Deferred Tax 

Assets 
Non current expenses 179 27.9% 50 50 
Employees’ benefit liabilities 108 27.9% 30 30 

Cash Flow Hedge 47 27.9% 13 13 

Trade receivables 50 24.0% 12 12 
Other 186 27.9% 52 52 

Total deferred tax assets 570  157 157 
 
 

The following table shows the breakdown of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2017. 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Deferred tax assets  Pre tax 
amount   Rate  Tax 

amount  
Deferred Tax 

Assets 
Non current expenses 206 27.9% 58 58 
Employees’ benefit liabilities 88 27.9% 35 35 
Provisions for inventories 13 27.9% 3 3 
Trade receivables 75 24.0% 18 18 
Other 206 27.9% 57 57 

Total deferred tax assets 588   171 171 

 
Deferred tax credits are recognised as it is probable that future taxable income will be so high that 
temporary tax differences can be used against them. The Group estimates that will be sufficient 
future taxable income. 
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5.8 Inventories 
 

Inventories amounted to 5,926 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (5,901 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Inventories December 31, 
2018 

December 
31,  

2017 
Change % 

Change 

Gross value of raw 
materials, accessories 
and consumables 

3,309 3,325 (16) -0.5% 

Provisions for obsolete 
raw materials 

 (11) 11 -100% 

Total raw materials, 
accessories and 
consumables 

3,309 3,314 (5) -0.2% 

      
Semi-finished products 573 460 113 24.6% 
Provisions for obsolete 
intermediate goods 

 (1) 1 -100% 

Total semi-finished 
products 573 459 114 24.8% 

      
Finished products 2,137 2,233 (96) -4.3% 

Provisions for finished 
products (93) (105) 12 -11.4% 

Total finished 
products 2,044 2,128 (84) -3.9% 

      

Total inventories 5,926 5,901 25 0.4% 
 
 
 
 

The following table shows the allocations and reversals of the provisions for inventories. 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Provisions for inventories December 31,  
2017 Accruals Reversals December 31,  

2018 

Provisions for inventories 117 93 117 93 
 

 
Accruals to provisions for inventories amount to 93 thousand Euro. They are classified as Cost of 
goods sold. 
Provisions for inventories are mainly determined by referring to products expiration, when the 
expiration date no longer allows the product to enter into the sales cycle. 
In addition, at the end of the period, the Group monitors any obsolete and slow-moving material. 
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5.9 Trade receivables 
 

Trade receivables amounted to 12,373 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (11,299 thousand 
Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Trade receivables December 31, 
2018 

December 31,  
2017 Change % 

Change 
Trade receivables (Italy) 11,360 10,440 920 8.8% 
Trade receivables (UE) 440 524 (84) -16.0% 

Trade receivables (Extra-UE) 772 528 244 46.2% 
Provision for badt debt (199) (193) (6) 3.1% 

Total trade receivables 12,373 11,299 1.074 9.5% 
 
 

The increase of Trade receivables is related to greater revenue volumes. 
Provision for bad debt is determined considering: uncertain chargeability trade receivables, Group 
customers specific conditions, any guarantees provided in favour of the Group, appropriate 
evaluation of the disputes and the possibility of recovering expired credits. 
The Group has also analyzed the average customer insolvency rate and the trade receivables losses 
rate, both referring to recent years, in order to assess the consistency of the results of the analysis 
carried out on the expectation of expected losses on trade receivables of each customer, with the loss 
rate incurred in the past.  
 

Changes in provisions for bad debt were as follows: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Provision for bad debt December 31,  
2017 Accruals Reversals 

December 
31,  

2018 

Provision for bad debt 193  65  59  199  
 
 

Exchange differences as of December 31, 2018 have been recorded in financial statements. 
Changes in exchange rates between December 31, 2018 and the date of financial statement editing 
are not meaningful. 
 

As of December 31, 2018 there is no trade receivables with maturity exceeding 5 years. 
 
 
 

5.10 Tax receivables 
 

Tax receivables amounted to 826 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (779 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Tax receivables December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2018 Change Change % 

VAT 582  639  (57)  -8.9% 
Ires (Income Tax) 5  140  (135)  -96.4% 
Research and development tax 
offset (L. 190/2014) 239   239    

Total tax receivables 826  779  47  6.0% 
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5.11 Other current assets  
 

Other current assets amounted to 85 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (55 thousand Euro as 
of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Other current assets December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 Change Change % 

Advances 22  9  13  >100% 
Other receivables 23  2  21  >100% 
Prepayments 40  44  (4)  -9.1% 

Total other current assets 85  55  30  54,5% 
 
 

As of December 31, 2018 there are no othe current assets with maturity exceeding 5 years. 
 
 
 

5.12 Other current financial assets 
 

Other current financial assets amounted to 26 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018.  
This is the short-term portion of the interest-bearing loan granted to Pharcomed, described in 
paragraph 5.6. 
 
 
 

5.13 Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to 3,524 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (1,035 
thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017).  
Cash and cash equivalents are freely available. The Group does not foresee significant costs for 
making them available. 
 
The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Cash and cash equivalents December 31,  
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Bank and postal deposits 3,523  1,008  2,515  >100% 
Cash Deposits 1  27  (26)  -96.3% 

Total cash and cash equivalents 3,524  1,035  2,489  >100% 
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5.14 Equity 
 

As shown in the consolidated of changes in equity, changes as of December 31, 2018 are given by: 
- Destination of net profit as of December 31, 2017, for 4,125 thousand Euro 
- Dividends distribution for 669 thousand Euro; 
- Net profit as of December 31, 2018, for 4,113 thousand Euro; 
- Purchase of treasury shares, for 331 thousand Euro. 

 

Group shareholders’ equity amounts to 23,543 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018. 
 
 
 

5.14.1 Shareholders’ equity management 
 

For the purpose of managing the Group shareholders’ equity, this includes: share capital, reserves 
attributable to parent company shareholders, and shareholders’ equity non-controlling interests. 
The main purpose of managing shareholders’ equity is to maximize shareholders’ value. The Group 
controls its assets using a gearing ratio, given by the ratio between net financial indebtedness and 
consolidated shareholders’ equity. The Group policy is to keep this ratio within levels that are 
considered acceptable. 
 
 

 Consolidated leverage ratios December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 

 Cash and cash equivalents (3,524) (1,035) 
 Current financial debt 2,757 2,866 
 Current financial indebtdeness  (793) 1,831 
 Non current financial indebdtdeness 11,317 4,312 
D Net financial indebtdeness  10,524 6,143 
    
E Group shareholders’ equity 23,543 20,527 
     
D/E Leverage 0.45 0.30 

 
 
 

The Group does not have any covenant on interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 
 
 
 

5.14.2 Other comprehensive income/losses 
 

Other comprehensive income/losses include the accounting of TFR and TFM actuarial effects in 
accordance with IAS19 and of the accounting for a “cash flow hedge” derivative. 
The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     
Employees’ and Directors’ benefit plans measurement (IAS 
19) and cash flow hedge derivative 

December 31,   
2018 

December31,  
2017 

Cash flow hedge derivative 45  
Actuarial income/(losses) 81 1 
Tax effect (23)  

Comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 103 1 
 
  



 

 
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018   Pag.  54 

 

5.15 Non current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
 

Non current interest-bearing loans and borrowings amounted to 11,317 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2018 (4,312 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017).  
The increase in the debt exposure is mainly due to the leasing loans referring to the investments 
started during the period, already described in note 5.1. 
 

The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         
Non current interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 

December 31,  
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change 

% 
Non current interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 8,702  4,086  4,616  >100% 

Non current lease liabilities 2,615  226  2,389  >100% 

Total non current interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings 11,317  4,312  7,005  >100% 

 
 

The Group does not have any covenant on interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 
 
 
 

5.16 Provisions for risks and charges 
 

Provisions for risks and charges amounted to 636 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (605 
thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Provisions for risks and charges December 31,  
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change 

% 
Provisions for sales agents indemnity 581  550  31  5.6% 
Provisions for other risks 55  55   0.0% 

Total provisions for risks and charges 636  605  31  5.1% 
 
 

Provisions for other risks are related to probable non-conformity on manufactured products. 
 
There are no significant pending litigations and disputes of legal, fiscal or contractual origin.  
The Group, supported by the opinion of its lawyers, believes that no litigation or dispute may lead to 
a negative outcome with relevant effects. 
  



 

 
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018   Pag.  55 

 

5.17 Employees’ benefit liabilities 
 

Employees’ benefit liabilities amounted to 369 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (330 
thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown 
 

(in thousands of Euro)    

  
Employee
s’ benefit 
liabilities 

Director
s’ benefit 
liabilitie

s 

Total 
employee
s’ benefit 
liabilities 

Value as of December 31, 2017 269 61 330 
Benefits paid (49) (63) (112) 
Service cost 19 36 55 
Interest cost 4 11 15 
 Actuarial Losses/(Income) due to experience 1 122 123 
 Actuarial Losses/(Income) due to changes in demographic 
assumptions - - - 

 Actuarial Losses/(Income) due to changes in financial assumptions (9) (33) (42) 
Actuarial Losses  (8) 89 81 

Value as of December 31, 2018 235 134 369 
 
 

Employees’ benefit liabilities and Directors’ benefit liabilities are accounted in accordance with 
IAS19 for benefit plans and include the estimated debt to be paid to each employee at the end of the 
job contract. This debt is discounted on the basis of employee estimated time exits. These are 
calculated using actuarial methods. 
 

The main assumptions adopted are summarized in the following tables: 
 

Summary of Economic Technical Basis 

Financial Assumptions  

Yearly discount rate 1.57% 

Yearly inflation rate 1.50% 

Yearly increase of TFR 2.65% 
 
 

Summary of demographic technical basis 
Demographic assumptions 
 Death Death Rate tables RG48 published by the 

State General Accounting Office  

 
Inability Tables with indication of age and sex 

published by  
the National social security institute   

 Retirement 100% upon reaching the “AGO” 
requirements (Compulsory general 
insurance)    

 
 

Yearly Frequency of Turnover and TFR 
Advances 
 Advances Turnover  
  2.00% 3.50%% 
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The table below summarizes the sensitivity analysis of the Employees’ benefit liabilities for each 
actuarial assumption at the end of the year, showing the effects (in gross amount) that would have 
occurred in case of changes in the actuarial assumptions reasonably possible on that date: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro) 
Sensitivity analysis of the main valuation parameters at 
December 31, 2018 
Changes in assumptions Balance 

+1% on turnover rate  241 
-1% on turnover rate 244 
+1/4% on inflation rate 248 
-1/4% on inflation rate 238 
+1/4 % on discount rate 236 
-1/4 % on discount rate 250 

 
 
 
 
 

The table below summarizes the sensitivity analysis of the Directors’ benefit liabilities at the discount 
rate used in the estimate, showing the effects (in gross amount) that would have occurred in case of 
changes in the reasonably possible actuarial assumptions to that date: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro) 
Sensitivity analysis of the main valuation parameters at 
December 31, 2018 
Changes in assumptions Balance 
+1/4% on discount rate 865 
-1/4% on discount rate 932 

 
 
 
 
 

Finally, the table below sumarizes the forecasted disbursements: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro) 

Forecasted disbursements 

Years Employees’ benefit 
liabilities 

Directors’ benefit  
liabilities 

1 22 158 
2 14 1 
3 14 1 
4 14 2 
5 15 2 
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5.18 Deferred tax liabilities  
 

Deferred tax liabilities amounted to 663 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (809 thousand Euro 
as of December 31, 2017).  
 

The following table shows the moviments occurred during the year: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Deferred tax liabilites December 31, 
2017 Accruals Reversals December 31, 

2018 

Deferred tax liabilites 809  15  161  663  
 
 
 

5.19 Trade payables  
 

Trade payables amounted to 6,588 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (7,131 thousand Euro as 
of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Trade payables December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Trade receivables Italy 5,553 6,466 (913) -14.1% 
Trade receivables UE 183 94 89 94.7% 

Trade receivables Extra UE 164 7 157 >100% 

Invoice to be issued  744 579 165 28.5% 

Credit notes to be issued  (56) (15) (41) >100% 

Total trade payables 6,588 7,131 (543) -7.6% 
 
 
 

5.20 Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
 

Current Interest-bearing loans and receivables amounted to 2,757 thousand Euro as of December 
31, 2018 (2,866 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017). The year 2017 amount of 2,866 included 
current interest-bearing loans and borrowings for 2,619 thousand Euro and current financial 
liabilities for 247 thousand Euro. As of December 31, 2018 there are no current financial liabilities. 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     
Current interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings 

December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Current liabilities to a shareholder for 
the purchase of treasury shares 

 247 (247) -100% 

Current bank liabilities 581 1,381 (800) -57.9% 
Current bank interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings 1,732 1,080 652 60.4% 

Current leasing liabilities 444 158 286 >100% 
Total current interest-bearing 
loans and borrowings 2,757 2,866 (109) -3.8% 

 
 

The Group does not have any covenant on the interest-bearing loans and receivables. 
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5.21 Tax payables 
 

Tax payables amount to 549 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (318 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Tax payables December 31, 
2018 

December 
31, 2017 Change Change % 

Irap (Income Tax) 300  91  209  >100% 
Ires (Income Tax) 36  23  13  56.5% 
VAT  9  (9)  -100% 
Professionals withholding tax 42  42   0.0% 
Employee withholding tax 171  153  18  11.8% 

Total Tax payables 549  318  231  72.6% 
 
 
 

5.22 Other current liabilities 
 

Other current liabilities amounted to 834 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (904 thousand 
Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Other current liabilities December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Social security liabilities 392  361  31  8.6% 

Employee liabilities 377  501  (124)  -24.8% 
Other liabilities 65  42  23  54.8% 

Total Other current liabilities 834  904  (70)  -7.7% 
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6. Notes to Consolidated 
statement of income 
 
 

6.1 Revenues  
 

Revenues from contracts with customers amounted to 41,007 thousand Euro as of December 31, 
2018 (35,723 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017), with a growth of 5,284 thousand Euro, 14.8% 
increase.  
 

The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)           

Revenues December 31 
2018 % December 31 

2017 % Change 
% 

Industrial  20,413 49.8% 19,451  54.4% 4.9% 

Pharcos 8,429 20.6
% 8,199  23.0% 2.8% 

Selerbe 6,294 15.3% 5,326  14.9% 18.2% 
BiOfta 3,275 8.0% 2,692  7.5% 21.7% 
Other 127 0.3% 55  0.2% 130.9% 

Total revenues of BioDue  38,538 94.0
% 35,723 100.0

% 7.9% 

Revenues of LaBiotre (third parties only) 2,469 6.0% 0  0.0%   

Total consolidated revenues 41,007  100.0
% 35,723  100.0

% 14.8% 
 
 

As for the Parent Company BioDue, revenues increased by + 7.9% and, specificly: 
• Industrial revenues amount to 20.4 million Euro, (+4.9%), improving the growth path 

recorded in the first nine months of 2018;  
• Pharcos revenues amount to 8.4 million Euro (+2.8%);  
• Selerbe revenues amount to 6.3 million Euro (+18.2%). The growth is mainly due to the sales 

of private-label products to pharmacists and herbalists; 
• BiOfta revenues amount to 3.3 million Euro revenues, (+21.7%), confirming the work 

undertaken by the commercial network on ophthalmologists.  
 
 

The analysis of these values therefore highlights the important growth of the own brands Pharcos, 
Selerbe and BiOfta, which recorded an increase of +11.0% compared to 2017, in line with the 
Company’s objectives and strategies.  
 

Furthermore, is important the contribution made by the subsidiary LaBiotre (consolidated since 
December 31, 2017, and with no effects in the consolidated income statement of the prior period). In 
2018 LaBiotre has achieved 2.5 million Euro revenues with third parties (+1.3% compared to the 
results of year 2017). 
 

Finally, the geographical breakdown of consolidated revenues shows an increase in the foreign 
revenues of +32.3%, higher than that recorded by the domestic revenues of +12.4%, in line with the 
strategic orientation aimed at strengthening the process of internationalization and opening of new 
markets. 
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Secondly, the geographical distribution of revenues shows a growth trend of the foreign component 
of + 9.2% greater than that recorded by the domestic component of 3.6%, in line with the strategic 
orientation aimed at strengthening the process of internationalization and opening of new markets. 
The aforementioned growth in foreign revenues derives from an increase in sales of own brands from 
a total of 711 thousand Euro in 2016 to 1,301 thousand Euro in 2017 (+ 83.0%) and a decrease in 
third-party brands for 246 thousand of euros (-7.8%) from € 3,154 to € 2,907 thousand in 2017. 
 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)           

Revenues  December 31 
2018 % December 31 

2017 % Change 
% 

Domestic 35,438 86.4% 31,515 88.2% 12.4% 
Rest of the world 5,569 13.6% 4,208 11.8% 32.3% 

Total consolidated revenues 41,007  100.0% 35,723  100.0% 14.8% 

 
 
 

The above mentioned revenues are fully recognized according to the methodology “point in time”. 
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6.2 Other revenues  
Other revenues amounted to 513 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (557 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Other revenues December 31, 
2018 

December 
31,  

2017 
Change Change % 

Insurance refunds 6 8 (2) -25.0% 
Gains from non current asset sales 19 91 (72) -79.1% 
Other revenues 488 458 30 6.6% 

Total other revenues 513 557 (44) -7.9% 
 
 
 

6.3 Cost of goods sold 
Cost of goods sold amounted to 17,344 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (16,495 thousand 
Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Cost of goods sold December 31, 
2018 

December 
31,  

2017 
Change Change % 

Primary raw materials 8,300  7,823  477 6.1% 
Secondary raw materials 8,534  7,919  615 7.8% 
Other raw materials 287  267  20 7.5% 
Other costs for subsidiary and other 
materials 325  552  (227) -41.1% 

Chenge in inventories of finished products 
and semi-finished products (102)  (66)  (36) 54.5% 

Total Cost of goods sold 17,344  16,495  849  5.1% 
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6.4 Service costs 
Service costs amounted to 9,066 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (8,767 thousand Euro as 
of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Service costs December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Other service costs 750  443 307  69.3% 
Insurance contracts 135  100 35  35.0% 
Software support 134  141 (7)  -5.0% 
Directors fees, statutory auditors fees  
 and indipendent auditors fees 1,173  1,128 45  4.0% 

Commissions on sales 3,767  4,659 (892)  -19.1% 
Administrative and financial services 623  510 113  22.2% 
Employee services 39  174 (135)  -77.6% 
Production services 1,073  513 560  >100% 
Commercial and marketing costs 548  497 51  10.3% 
Maintenance costs 160  114 46  40.4% 
Utilities costs 664  488 176  36.1% 

Total service costs 9,066  8,767  299  3.4% 
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6.5 Personnel costs  
 

Personell costs amounted to 6,747 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (5,573 thousand Euro as 
of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Personnel costs December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Wages and salaries 5,015  4,208 807  19.2% 
Social security costs 1,355  1,081 274  25.3% 
Benefit plans costs 373  282 91  32.3% 
Other employee costs 4  2 2  100.0% 

Total personnel costs 6,747  5,573  1,174  21.1% 
 
 

The number of personnel is shown in the following table: 
 

Employees December 31, 
2017 Recruitments Exits December 31, 

2018 Average 

Clerks and executives 49 9 2 56 53.67 
Workers 125 12 24 113 122.40 

Total employees 174  21  26  169  176.07  
 
 
 

6.6 Other operating costs 
 

Other operating costs amounted to 960 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (883 thousand Euro 
as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Other operating costs December 31, 
2018 

December 
31, 2017 Change Change % 

Representation costs 315  284 31  10.9% 
Rents and rentals 147  166 (19)  -11.4% 
IMU (tax on buildings) and other indirect taxes 145  91 54  59.3% 
Membership fees and other annual costs 62  36 26  72.2% 
Provision for bad debt costs 65  55 10  18.2% 
Other costs 226  251 (25)  -10.0% 

Total other operating costs 960  883  77  8.7% 
 
 
 

The Company does not shows the provision for bad debt in a specific profit and loss item because the 
amount is not significant. 
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6.7 Depreciation and amortization 
 

Depreciation and amortiation amounted to 2,053 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (1,398 
thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Depreciation and amortization December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Intangible assets depreciatiom 362 55 307 >100% 
Tangible assets depreciation 1,678 1,330 348 26.2% 
Investment properties depreciation 13 13 0 0.0% 

Total Depreciation and amortization 2,053 1,398  655 46.9% 
 

The change is mainly due to the first consolidation of the income statement’ data of the subsidiary 
LaBiotre for 203 thousand Euro, and to the amortization of know-how and fair value assessment of 
the machinery coming from the Purchase Price Allocation for 303 thousand euro. 
 
 
 

6.8 Financial income and expenses 
 

Financial income and expenses have a positive balance in both years. They amounted to 2 thousand 
Euro as of December 31, 2018 and to 2,002 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017.  
 

The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Financial income / (expenses) December 
31, 2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Interest income and other financial income 63 15 48 >100% 
Exchange rates income 49 5 44 >100% 
Financial income 112 20 92 >100% 
      

Interest costs and other financial expenses (145) (64) (81) >100% 
Exchange rates costs (49) (109) 60 -55.0% 
Financial expenses (194) (173) (21) 12.1% 
      

Reassessment of controlling interests in a 
subsidiary at fair value, previously held as an 
associate 

 2,015 (2,015) -100% 

Share of profit of associates and a joint venture 84 140 (56) -40.0% 

Total financial income / (expenses) 2 2,002 (2,000) -99.9% 
 
 

The change is mainly due to the recognition of the income occurred in 2017, deriving from the 
reassessment of the investment held in LaBiotre, whose value was adjusted to the fair value at the 
date of control acquisition. 
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6.9 Income taxes 
 

Income taxes amounted to 1,239 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (1,039 thousand Euro as 
of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Income taxes December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

IRES 1,146 771 375 48.6% 
IRAP 270 215 55 25.6% 
Current taxes 1,416 986 430 43.6% 
       
Provision for deferred tax liabilities 13  13   
Use of deferred tax liabilities (158) (120) (38) 31.7% 
Provision for deferred tax assets (17) (40) 23 -57.5% 
Use of deferred tax assets 44 197 (153) -77.7% 
Deferred taxes  (118) 37 (155) <-100% 
       

Others (59) 17 (76) <-100% 

Total income taxes 1,239 1,040 199 19.1% 
 
 
 

The following table shows the reconciliation between the effective IRES and IRAP costs and the 
income theoretical tax costs: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Income tax recovery / (expense)   December 31, 
2018   December 31, 

2017 

Profit before income tax  5,352  5,166 

Theoretical income tax IRES 24.00% (1,284) 24.00% (1,240) 

Theoretical income tax IRAP 3.90% (209) 3.90% (201) 

Theoretical income taxes  (1,493)  (1,441) 

Other permanent deductions  150  48 

Other non-deductible permanent expenses  (31)  (47) 

Non-deductible amortizations  (23)  4 

Interests costs and financial expenses  4  (14) 

Penalties and other taxes  (12)  (12) 

Devaluations and other provisions  (2)  8 

Other changes  17  547 

Total  (1,390)  (907) 

Permanent differences IRAP (including 
employee costs) 

 (55)  (79) 

Total income taxes 27.20% (1,445) 19.09% (986) 
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6.10 Earnings per share (basic and diluted) 
 

Applying IAS 33, data used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share are shown. 
Basic earning per share is calculated as a ratio between net profit for the period attributable to equity 
holders of the Parent company and the weighted average number of listed shares during the period 
in exam. There are no diluted profit effects on earnings per share. 
 

The following table shows the data used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share. 
 
 

  December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

Net profit for the period – attributable  
to ordinary equity holders of the Parent company  3,989 4,126 

Average ordinary shares listed in the period 11,132,640 11,148,900 

Basic and diluted profit for the period attributable  
to ordinary shares (Euro) 0.36 0.37 
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7. Net financial indebtedness 
 

Net financial indebtness is calculated in respect to “ESMA – European Security and Markets 
Authority” recommendations (“ESMA update of the CESR recommendations 809/2004 - The 
consistent implementation of Commission Regulation (EC) No implementing the Prospectus 
Directive”, March 20, 2013). 
 

The following table shows net financial indebtedness as of December 31, 2018 and as of December 
31, 2017. 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

  December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

A. Cash 1 27 
B. Cash Equivalents 3,523 1,008 

C. Trading and Available for Sale Securities   

D. Liquidity (A) + (B) + (C) 3,524 1,035 
E. Current financial assets 26  
F. Current bank debt 581 1,381 

G. Current portions of non current debt 2,176 1,238 

Leasing 444 158 

Bank loans 1,732 1,080 

H. Other current financial  247 
Current liabilities to a shareholder for the purchase of  
treasury shares 

 247 

I. Current financial debt (F) + (G) + (H) 2,757 2,866 
J. Net current financial indebtedness  (I) – (E) – (D) (793) 1,831 
K. Non current loans and borrowings 11,317 4,312 

Leasing 2,615 226 

Bank loans 8,702 4,086 

L. Issued bond   

M. Other non current loans   

N. Non current financial indebtedness (K) + (L) + (M) 11,317 4,312 

O. Net financial indebtedness  (J) + (N) 10,524 6,143 
 
 
 

A more detailed analysis of the matter is given in the Directors Report on operations. 
 

The following table shows the reconciliation between the changes in non-current and current 
financial liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and as of December 31, 2017: 
 
  

https://context.reverso.net/traduzione/inglese-italiano/Trading
https://context.reverso.net/traduzione/inglese-italiano/Available-for-Sale+Securities
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(in thousands of Euro)     

Non-current and current financial 
liabilities 

December 31, 
2017 

Cash 
flow 

Non 
monetary 

changes 

December 31, 
2018 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 6,547 4,423  10,970 
Leasing liabilities 385 2,674  3,059  
Derivatives   45 45 
Liabilities due to a shareholder for the purchase 
of treasury shares 247 (247)   

Total non-current and current financial 
liabilities 7,179 6,850 45  14,074 

 
 

(in thousands of Euro)      

Non-current and current 
financial liabilities 

December 31, 
2016 Cash flow 

Non 
monetary 

changes 

Business 
combinati

ons 

December 31, 
2017 

Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 4,692 1,538    317 6,547 

Leasing liabilities 1,081 (697) 1  385 
Liabilities due to a shareholder 
for the purchase of treasury 
shares 

489 (242)     247 

Total non-current and 
current financial 
liabilities 

6,262 599 1 317 7,179 

 
 
 

8. Related parties  
 

Related parties operations were made applying conditions in line with the market, i.e. conditions 
independent parties would apply. 
In order to determine whether related parties operations were made in line with the market, the 
Group analyzed both: quantitative conditions, related to the prices and the elements linked to the 
prices, and the reasons why the Group decided to make operations with related parties rather than 
with third parties. 
 

Related parties operations did not include atypical or unusual operations. 
 

In addition to IAS24 prescriptions on “Notes to financial statements on related parties operations”, 
Consob communication 6064293 (issued on July 28, 2006) requires to disclose the incidences that 
related parties operations (classified according to IAS24) have on the financial and income 
statements. 
 

The following table shows those incidences. The incidences, that related parties operations have on 
the Group net profit and cash flows, should be analyzed considering the main related parties 
operations are identical to the analogue operations with independent third parties. 
 
  



 

 
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018   Pag.  69 

 

In summary the following table shows related parties operations. 
 
(in thousands of Euro)         

  December 31, 
2018 %  December 31, 

2017 %  

     
Equipment bought by companies related to 
equity holders and directors of BioDue S.p.A. 49  0.3%   

Property, plant and equipment 49  0.3%   

     
Other non current financial assets due from 
Pharcomed Corp. 95  100.0%   

Other non current financial assets 95  100.0%   

Non current assets 144  0.6%   

     

Trade receivables due from Pharcomed Corp. 715  5.8% 517  4.6% 

Trade receivables due from Farcoderma S.r.l. 1  0.0%   
Trade receivables due from companies related 
to equity holders and directors of BioDue 
S.p.A 

210  1.7% 245  2.2% 

Trade receivables 926  7.5% 762  6.7% 
Other current financial assets due from 
Pharcomed Corp. 26  100.0%   

Other current financial assets 26  100.0%   

Current Assets 952  4.2% 762  4.0% 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,096  2.3% 762  2.0% 

     

Trade payables due to Farcoderma S.r.l. 15  0.2%   
Trade payables due to equity holders and 
directors of BioDue S.p.A. 

  191  2.7% 

Trade payables due to statutory auditors of 
BioDue S.p.A. 2  0.0% 3  0.0% 

Trade payables due to companies related to 
equity holders and directors of BioDue S.p.A. 1,335  20.3% 1,583  22.2% 

Trade payables 1,352  20.5% 1,777  24.9% 

Current liabilities 1,352  12.6% 1,777  15.8% 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,352  5.7% 1,777  10.3% 
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The following table shows income data of related parties: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

 December 31, 
2018 %  December 31, 

2017 %  

Revenues from LaBiotre S.r.l.. (*)   5  0.0% 

Revenues from Pharcomed Corp. 1,112  2.7% 697  2.0% 
Revenues from companies related to 
equity holders and directors of BioDue 
S.p.A. 

2  0.0% 11  0.0% 

Revenues 1,113  2.7% 713  2.0% 
     
Other revenues from Pharcomed Corp.   14  2.5% 
Other revenues from companies related 
to equity holders and directors of BioDue 
S.p.A. 

  82  14.7% 

Other revenues   96  17.2% 
     
Costs to Labiotre S.r.L. (*)   (1,808)  11.0% 
Costs to Farcoderma S.r.l. (8)  0.0%   
Costs to companies related to equity 
holders and directors of BioDue S.p.A. (3,982)  23.0% (4,423)  26.8% 

Cost of goods sold (3,990)  23.0% (6,231)  37.8% 
     
Costs to Labiotre S.r.L. (*)   (6)  0.1% 
Costs to Pharcomed Corp. 77  -0.8%   
Costs to Farcoderma S.r.l. (46)  0.5%   
Costs to equity holders and directors of 
BioDue S.p.A.   (279)  3.2% 

Costs to statutory auditors of BioDue 
S.p.A. (14)  0.1% (11)  0.1% 

Costs to companies related to equity 
holders and directors of BioDue S.p.A. (5)  0.1% 109  -1.2% 

Service costs 11  -0.1% (187)  2.1% 
     
Costs to Labiotre S.r.L. (*)   5  -0.6% 
Costs to equity holders and directors of 
BioDue S.p.A   (1)  0.1% 

Costs to companies related to equity 
holders and directors of BioDue S.p.A. (173)  18.1% (90)  10.2% 

Other operating costs (173)  18.1% (86)  9.7% 
     
Costs to companies related to equity 
holders and directors of BioDue S.p.A. (3)  0.1%   

Amortization and depreciation (3)  0    
     
Operating profit (3,041)  -57.6% (5,695)  -180.0% 
     
Finance Expenses from Pharcomed Corp. 23  20.9%   
Finance Income 23  20.9%   
Finance Expenses to Pharcomed Corp. (17)  8.6% (27)  15.6% 
Finance Expenses (17)  8.6% (27)  15.6% 

Pre tax profit (3,035)  -57.5% (5,722)  -110.8% 
 

(*) up to the date of first consolidation 
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9. Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 
 

The Group did not enter into agreements or sign financial contracts or other acts, whether or not 
linked to one another, whose effects do not result from the financial statements but which effects 
may expose the parent company to risks or generate significant benefits. 
 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Interest-
bearing loans 
and 
borrowings  

Type Initial 
debt 

Mortgage 
amount 

as of 
December 

31, 2018 

Delivery 
date 

Expiration 
date 

Debt as of 
December 

31, 2018 

Current  
debt 

Non 
current 

debt 

Debt 
over 5 
years 

Bank Loan 
CREDEM 

Unsecured 
loan 95   30.11.16 30.08.21 55   20    35   

Bank Loan 
CREDEM 

Unsecured 
loan   998   24.04.16 28.04.21   505   201   304   

Bank Loan 
Banca CR 
Firenze 

Unsecured 
loan   800   30.01.17 30.01.24   587    113   464   10  

Mortgage 
Loan Chianti 
Banca 

Mortgage 
Loan    500   1,000  08.06.16 30.06.26 381   48  201  132  

Mortgage 
Loan Banca 
CR Firenze 

Mortgage 
Loan  1,300  2,600  31.08.16 31.08.23   874   185   689   

Mortgage 
Loan Banca 
CR Firenze 

Mortgage 
Loan  1,800  3,600  15.02.17 30.01.27   1,511   177   735  599  

Bank Loan 
Banca CR 
Firenze 

Unsecured 
loan 1,000   29.01.18 19.01.21   695  333   362   

Bank Loan 
BNL 

Unsecured 
loan  2,000   31.07.18 30.07.21 2,000  249  1,751   

Mortgage 
Loan Banca 
CR Firenze 

Mortgage 
Loan  3,000  5,250  28.11.18 15.12.28 3,000   145  1,381  1,474  

Bank Loan 
CAMBIANO 

Unsecured 
loan   600   01.07.15 30.06.20 193   122  71   

Bank Loan 
CREDEM 

Unsecured 
loan   750   28.02.18 28.02.23   627   149   478   

Total loans 
and 
borrowings 
nominal 
value 

       10,428     

Amortized 
cost      (39)     

Derivative 
Fair value       45     

Total net 
value  12,843   12,450    10,434  1,742    6,471  2,215  
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10. Other notes 
 

10.1 Directors fees, statutory auditors fees and independent auditors fees 
Directors fees, statutory auditors fees and independent auditors fees to be paid in year 2018 are as 
follow: 

- Directors fees, 1,033 thousand Euro, 
- Statutory auditors, 36 thousand Euro, 
- Independent auditors EY S.p.A., 67 thousand Euro (of which (i) 32 thousand Euro in relation 

to the audit of the financial statements, (ii) 17 thousand Euro in relation to the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements and (iii) 18 thousand Euro in relation to the limited audit of 
the half-year interim condensed consolidated financial statements). 

 

10.2 Other financial instruments issued 
The Group did not issue other financial instruments as by n. 19 par. 1 article 2427 Civil Code. 
 

10.3 Stock Option 
On April 26, 2018 shareholders’ meeting of BioDue authorized a share capital increase of maximum 
300,000 ordinary shares for the Stock Option Plan Service (in the years 2018-2020). Stock Options 
may be assigned to Directors and employees of the parent company, the subsidiaries, the associates 
and joint ventures. 
The Stock Option Plan is an incentive program that fosters the loyalty of parent company-
subsidiaries-associates-joint ventures top management and executives. 
The Stock Option Plan links stock option rights to the Group strategic achievements. So it makes 
possible for the top management and the executives to share the Group goals. 
The Board of Directors of BioDue S.p.A. will assign Stock Option rights after the approval of the 
financial statements for the year 2018 by the shareholders’ meeting. 
 

10.4 Treasury Shares 
On April 26, 2018 the shareholders’ meeting of BioDue authorized the buyback of maximum 
200,000 treasury shares. 
Treasury shares buyback is mainly aimed to form a treasury shares stock, in coherence with BioDue’s 
strategic objectives. Those shares can be used in the context of possible extraordinary operations, 
including the allocation to the counterparts of our own brand trade relations. 
As of December 31, 2018 the parent company owned 61.000 treasury shares (in reduction of the 
equity for 331 thousand Euro). 
 

10.5 Information on the fair value of financial instruments 
The Group holds financial instruments, interest rate swaps, with the aim of hedging financial risks 
relating to changes in interest rates on existing medium-long term loans. 
The table below shows the situation relating to the type of hedging transaction put in place and the 
outcome of the same as at 31 December 2018: 
 

(in thousands of Euro) 

Type 
Fixed 

interest  
rate 

Variable 
interest 

rate  

Starting 
date 

Expiry 
date 

Notional 
Capital 

Fair Value 
as of 

December  
31, 2018  

Interest Rate Swaps 0.75% Euribor 6m 17.12.18 15.12.28 3,000 (45) 
 

Derivative instruments have been considered as cash flow hedging instruments. They have a direct 
impact on shareholders’ equity. As of December 31, 2018, the derivative financial instrument of the 
Group has exceeded the effectiveness assessment. 
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10.6 Financial risk management 
 
The Group has financial liabilities consisting mainly of bank loans and lease contracts. Their 
maturity is medium and long term. 
 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is defined as the possibility that the Group cannot maintain its payment commitments 
due to the inability to find new funds (funding liquidity risk), the Group cannot sell its assets (asset 
liquidity risk), or the Group has to pay high costs to cope its obligations. 
This risk is linked to the possible difficulties the Group could meet in obtaining in the right time the 
fund necessary to support its operating activity.  
Cash flows, fund needs and liquidity are highly monitored, with the aim of guaranteeing an effective 
and efficient management of financial resources. 
 

The following table shows a deadline analysis based on contractual obligations of undiscounted 
reimbursement and related to current and non current loans, leasing liabilities and other financial 
liabilities as of December 31, 2018. 
 
(in thousands of Euro)     

 
Total payments as 

reimbursement 
plan 

Within 12 
months 

Between  
1 and 5  

years 

Over  
5 years 

Current bank bedt 581 581   

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 10,434 1,732 6,487 2,215 

Leasing 3,059 444 2,615  

Other financial liabilities     

Total 14,074 2,757 9,102 2,215 
 
 

The Group does not have any covenant on the interest-bearing loans and receivables. 
 
 

Risks related to interest rates 
The Group holds assets and liabilities sensitive to changes in interest rates. These assets and 
liabilities are necessary for the management of liquidity and financial requirements.  
These assets and liabilities are subject to a rate risk that is in part mitigated through fixed rate 
financing contracts and through the stipulation of derivative contracts to cover variable rate loans. 
 
 

Credit risk 
The Group is exposed to the risk that the claims may not be honored at maturity, because of the 
obligator financial conditions. 
So credit risk is related to the increase in seniority of credits, the risk of insolvency and the increase 
in claims under insolvency proceedings. 
The consequent loss of value may result in partial or total cancellation from the financial statements. 
The Group adopts a credit management policy aimed to: assess customers reliability, monitor 
expected recovery flows, issue payment reminders, allow extended credit conditions where deemed 
necessary or appropriate and manage legal claims litigation.  
Almost all the trade receivables at year end were not past due. 
 
 

Exchange rate risk 
The Group carries out operations in currencies other than Euro. This exposes BioDue S.p.A. to the 
risk arising from fluctuations in exchange rates between different currencies. 
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10.7 Information pursuant to Law 124/2017 
 

The following table shows the public contributions collected by the Parent Company during 2018. 
 

 

Receiving 
Entity 

Lender 
Entity Reason Contribution 

Amount 

Amount 
collected 

in 2018 

 

 

BioDue S.p.A. 
 

Tuscany Region / 
Regione Toscana 
 

LR 32/02 - DGR 857/2018 - Changes 
to the Public Notice for non-curricular 
internships “Giovanisì” 
 

10,200 
 

3,600 
 
 

BioDue S.p.A. 
 

National social 
security institute 

Contribution waiver for new hires with 
permanent employment contracts 
carried out by any employer during 
2015, according to L. Finanziaria 2015 
(L. 190/2014, article one, paragraphs 
118 and following) 
 

63,374 
 

63,374 
 
 

BioDue S.p.A. 
 

National social 
security institute  

Contribution waiver for new hires with 
permanent employment contracts 
carried out by any employer during 
2016, according to L. Finanziaria 2016 
(Law 208/2015, single article, 
paragraphs 178/181) 
 

2,622 
 

2,622 
 
 

BioDue S.p.A. 
 

National social 
security institute  

Incentive to recruit young members of 
the "Youth Guarantee" Program, 
ANPAL directorial decree n. 3 of 
02.01.2018, modified by the 
directorial decree n. 83 of 5.03.2018 

2,454 
 

2,454 
 
 

BioDue S.p.A. Fondimpresa Training Plan 194622 11,800 11,800  

BioDue S.p.A. 
Ministry of 
Economic 
Development 

Research and development L. 
190/2014 year 2017 128,746 128,000  

BioDue S.p.A. 
Ministry of 
Economic 
Development 

Research and development L. 
190/2014 year 2018 165,006 -  

BioDue S.p.A. 
Energy Services 
Manager Institute - 
GSE S.p.A. 

Solar thermal collector incentive – DM 
28.12.12 11,412 2,282  

BioDue S.p.A. 

Ministry of 
Economic 
Development - 
General Directorate 
for business 
incentives 

Sabatini contribution on interests, 
art.2 D.L. 69/2013 - Law 98/2013 15,435 -  
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10.8 Subsequent events 
 

Appointment of Banca Intermobiliare as a new Nominated Adviser 
 

On January 31, 2019, the Group appointed Banca Intermobiliare di Investimenti e Gestioni S.p.A. 
("BIM")  as Nominated Adviser, with effect from February 4, 2019. 
 
 
 

Expansion of the industrial plant in Sambuca Val di Pesa for 2,800 square meters and 
construction of the automated warehouse 
 

In February 2019, the Board of Directors deliberated the 2,800 square meters wide expansion of an 
existing production plant (of which 300 square meters for offices) and the construction of a 400 
square meters wide new annexed automated warehouse, in the industrial area of Sambuca Val di 
Pesa (Florence), where all Group’s plants insist. This expansion completes the purchase of the 5,300 
square meters wide entire industrial building where liquid food supplements are currently produced. 
With this purchase, the plants owned by the group will have a total surface of about 21,000 square 
meters (of which 1,500 square meters for offices), with 5,400 square meters wide service areas.  
 

The investment will be completed before December 31, 2019. It amounts in total to 4.7 million Euro 
divided as follows:  

- 2.0 million Euro for the purchase of the industrial building;  
- 0.7 million Euro for the purchase of a new automated warehouse annexed to and serving 

the entire industrial building; 
- 2.0 million Euro for the purchase of new production lines compliant to industry 4.0. 

 
 

10.9 Non-recurring significant events and transactions 
During 2018, there were no significant non-recurring transactions entered into by the Group. 

During 2017 the Group recognized the income from the reassessment of the minority interests 
previously held in LaBiotre for a total of 2,015 thousand Euro in the consolidated income statement. 
 
10.10 Transactions deriving from atypical and / or unusual operations 
The Group did not carry out: 
- atypical and / or unusual transactions, or  
- those transactions which (due to their significance / relevance, the nature of the counterparties, the 
object of the transaction, the methods to determine the transfer price and the timing of the event) 
could give rise to doubts in order to: the correctness / completeness of the information in the 
financial statements, the conflict of interest, the safeguard of the corporate assets and the protection 
of minority Shareholders. 
 
 
Barberino Tavarnelle (Florence), March 28, 2019 
 
 
Vanni Benedetti 
Chairman of the Board of Directors of BioDue S.p.A. 
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Statement of financial position-
assets 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Assets 
 
 
 
 
 

(in Euro)      

  Note
s 

December 31,  
2018 

of which with 
related 
parties 

(See Note 7) 

December 31,  
2017 

of which with 
related 
parties 

(See Note 7) 

NON CURRENT ASSETS      

Property, plant and equipment 4.1 13,557,757 49,056 13,393,398  

Intangible assets 4.2 126,683  124,937  

Investment property 4.3 85,532  98,237  
Investment in a subsidiary, an 
associate and a joint venture 

4.4 2,805,841  1,411,035  

Other non current assets 4.5 25,089  48,676  

Other non current financial assets 4.6 94,551 94,551   

Deferred tax assets 4.7 90,761  94,855  

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS   16,786,214  15,171,138  

CURRENT ASSETS      

Inventories  4.8 5,044,570  5,270,540  

Trade receivables  4.9 11,762,960 930,278 10,678,415 771,925 

Tax receivables  4.10 355,211  779,256  

Other current assets 4.11 64,199  45,646  

Other current financial assets 4.12 25,786 25,786   

Cash and cash equivalents  4.13 3,254,151  533,812  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  20,506,877  17,307,669  

TOTAL ASSETS  37,293,091  32,478,807  
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Statement of financial position- 
Liabilities and shareholders’ 
equity 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(in Euro)           

  Note
s 

December 31,  
2018 

of which with 
related 
parties 

(See Note 7) 

December 31,  
2017 

of which with 
related 
parties 

(See Note 7) 

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY      

Share capital  3,674,411  4,005,540  

Reserves  11,597,389  10,308,967  
Net profit attributable to equity 
holders of the parent  3,775,614  2,056,768  

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ 
EQUITY  4.14 19,047,414  16,371,275  

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES      
Non current interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings 4.15 8,704,141  4,119,396  

Provisions for risks and charges 4.16 636,465  605,128  

Employees’ benefit liabilities 4.17 304,777  261,483  

Deferred tax liabilities 4.18 61,377  124,740  
TOTAL NON CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 

 9,706,760  5,110,747  

CURRENT LIABILITIES       

Trade payables 4.19 5,543,079 1,617,714 7,209,178 2,261,436 
Current interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 4.20 1,690,927  2,494,846  

Other current financial liabilities 4.20   247,427  

Tax payables 4.21 533,924  198,409  

Other current liabilities 4.22 770,987  846,925  

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   8,538,917  10,996,785  

TOTAL LIABILITIES  18,245,677  16,107,532  
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  37,293,091  32,478,807  
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Statement of income 
 

 
 
 

(in Euro)      

 Notes 
December 

31,  
2018 

of which 
with 

related 
parties 

(See Note 7) 

December 31,  
2017 

of which 
with related 

parties 
(See Note 7) 

Revenues 5.1 38,543,564 1,118,841 35,722,941 712,713 

Other revenues 5.2 389,975  556,549 96,342 

TOTAL REVENUES  38,933,539  36,279,490  

Cost of goods sold 5.3 (16,935,342) (5,882,866) (16,376,458) (6,230,593) 

Service costs 5.4 (8,356,310) (14,929) (8,767,086) (186,968) 

Personnel costs 5.5 (6,293,511)  (5,572,517)  

Other operating costs 5.6 (823,188) (37,214) (882,944) (85,431) 

Depreciation and amortization 5.7 (1,548,416) (2,582) (1,397,868)  

OPERATING PROFIT  4,976,772  3,282,617  

Financial Income 5.8 105,552 23,404 19,652  

Financial Expenses 5.8 (126,471) (16,629) (173,195) (26,685) 

PROFIT BEFORE TAXES  4,955,853  3,129,074  

Income taxes 5.9 (1,180,239)  (1,072,306)  

NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD  3,775,614  2,056,768  

      

Basic earnings per share – ordinary shares 5.10 0.34  0.18  

Diluted earnings per share – ordinary shares 5.10 0.34  0.18  
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Statement of comprehensive 
income 
 
 
 

(in Euro)       

  Notes 
December 

31,  
2018 

December 
31,  

2017 

Net profit for the period  3,775,614  2,056,768  

 
 

  
Other comprehensive income/losses   

Profit / (loss) on cash flow hedge  (32,464)  

- Other comprehensive income/losses that will be subsequently 
reclassified to profit/loss for the period  (32,464)  

Pofit / (loss) on employees’ benefit liabilities  (66,949) (461) 

- Other comprehensive income/losses that will not be 
subsequently reclassified to profit/loss for the period  (66,949) (461) 

 

5.13 

  

Total other comprehensive income/losses for the 
period, net of taxes (99,413) (461) 

 
 

  
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of 
taxes 3,676,201 2,056,307 
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Statement of Cash flows 
 
 

(in Euro) December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 

NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 3,775,613 2,056,768 
Adjustments to reconcile net profit for the period to net 
cash from operating activities 2,809,574 2,678,717 

Depreciation and amortization 1,548,416 1,397,868 

Income taxes 1,180,239 1,072,306 

Financial income and expenses 20,919 153,543 

Provision for bad debt 60,000 55,000 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: (2,453,794) (1,502,411) 
Inventories  225,970 (969,074) 

Trade receivables (1,144,545) (821,568) 

Trade payables  (1,666,099) 169,137 

Employees’ benefits payments (22,665) 43,395 

Other assets and liabilities 153,545 75,699 

Other adjustments: (727,432) (1,013,087) 
Financial expenses: paid net of financial income (20,919) (153,543) 

(Tax paid) (706,513) (859,544) 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,403,961 2,219,987 

Cash flow used in investing activities:   
Additions to intangible assets (62,252) (47,925) 
Additions to property, plant and equipment (1,527,265) (2,253,000) 
Investments in affiliates (1,350,000) (1,000,000) 
Share capital increase in joint ventures (44,806) (68,805) 
Proceeds from the sale of tangible assets 128,064  337,814  

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,856,259) (3,031,916) 

Cash flow from financing activities:   
Increase in interest-bearing loans and borrowings 6,000,000 2,585,300 
(Decrease in interest-bearing loans and borrowings) (1,271,009) (2,105,553) 
New interest-bearing loans to affiliates (120,337)  
Net change in other non-current financial liabilities (247,427) (241,613) 
Net change in other financial liabilities (1,188,527) 1,013,962 
Treasury shares purchase (331,129)  
Dividends Paid (668,934) (668,934) 

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,172,637 583,162 

INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 2,720,339 (228,767) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING 
OF THE YEAR 533,812 762,579 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 
PERIOD 3,254,151 533,812 

 



 

 

 
 

Statement of changes in equity 
 
 

(in euro)                 
 

        

  Notes Share 
capital 

Share 
capital 

contribution
s 

Legal 
Reserve 

Extraordinar
y Reserve 

Revaluatio
n Reserve 

 FTA 
Reserve 

 
IAS 19 

Reserve 

 
Cash 
Flow 

Hedge 
Reserv

e 

Other 
Reserve

s 

Retained 
Earnings 

Net 
profit for 

the 
period  

Total 
Equity 

As of January 1, 2017 5.13 4,005,54
0 3,593,535 584,647 4,400,000 145,602 (240,561

) (85,114) - 57,276 369,551 2,153,43
3 

14,983,90
9 

Allocation of results    121,630 1,200,000      831,803 (2,153,433
) 0 

Net profit for the period            2,056,768 2,056,768 

Other comprehensive income        (461) -    (461) 

Total comprehensive income    121,630 1,200,000   (461) -  831,803 (96,665) 2,056,307 

Dividends paid           (668,934)  (668,934) 

Other movements           (7)  (7) 

As of December 31, 2017 5.13 4,005,54
0 3,593,535 706,277 5,600,000 145,602 (240,561

) (85,575) - 57,276 532,413 2,056,76
8 16,371,275 

 

(in euro)                 
 

        

  Notes Share 
capital 

Share capital 
contribution

s 

Legal 
Reserve 

Extraordinar
y Reserve 

Revaluatio
n Reserve 

 FTA 
Reserve 

 
IAS 19 

Reserve 

 
Cash 
Flow 

Hedge 
Reserve 

Other 
Reserve

s 

Retained 
Earnings 

Net 
profit for 

the 
period  

Total 
Equity 

As of January 1, 2018 5.13 4,005,54
0 3,593,535 706,277 5,600,000 145,602 (240,561

) (85,575) - 57,276 532,413 2,056,76
8 16,371,275 

Allocation of results    137,833 1,250,000      668,935 (2,056,768
) - 

Net profit for the period            3,775,614 3,775,614 
Other comprehensive 
income        (66,949) (32,464)    (99,413) 

Total comprehensive income    137,833 1,250,000   (66,949) (32,464
)  668,935 1,718,846 3,676,201 

Dividends paid           (668,935)  (668,935) 

Treasury Shares purchase  (331,129)           (331,129) 

Other movements           3  2 

As of December 31, 2018 5.13 3,674,411 3,593,535 844,110 6,850,000 145,602 (240,561
) 

(152,524
) 

(32,464
) 57,276 532,416 3,775,614 19,047,41

4 



 

 

Explanatory Notes to the 
financial statements 
 

1.  Introduction 
1.1 Company notes 

BioDue S.p.A. is a legal entity subject to the laws of the Republic of Italy, registered office in Via 
Ambrogio Lorenzetti 3/A, Barerino Tavarnelle (già Tavernelle Val di Pesa) (Florence), listed on AIM 
Italy (Alternative Investment Market). 
The financial statements as of December 31, 2018 have been approved by the Board of Directors on 
March 28, 2019. 
BioDue S.p.A. develops, manufactures and sells cosmetics, liquid and solid food supplements and 
medical devices both on behalf of national and international pharmaceutical Companies (Industrial 
division) and with its own brands Pharcos (dermatological sector), BiOfta (ophthalmic sector) and 
Selerbe (herbal Nutraceutical). 
The Company operates in 17,000 sqm own plants, dedicated to industrial production and registered 
under Reg. CE 852/2004, GMP Certification (Good manufacturing Practice) and, since 2018, 
Certification EN ISO 13485.  
With the highest quality and safety standards required by European regulations (Code of Federal 
regulations, Title 21, Volume 2, part 111, of 01-04-2013) BioDue is also registered with the U.S. FDA 
(Registration No. 10725095718). The physical separation of individual establishments, though 
concentrated in a single industrial district, constitutes an important measure of disaster recovery. 
The following prospectus shows the consolidation area (delimited by the blue line for fully 
consolidated subsidiaries) of the BioDue Group as of December 31, 2018. 

 
 
  

BioDue 
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• LaBiotre, 51.20% owned at December 31, 2018, was founded in 2011 in partnership with 

Labomar S.r.l. (active in the production and distribution of nutraceutical products) to 
guarantee the highest quality of raw materials in its products. LaBiotre extracts plant active 
ingredients with proprietary technology and know-how exclusively for the final customer.  
LaBiotre provides raw materials to BioDue for Selerbe products and natural vegetable 
extracts to be used in the production cycle. In December 2017 the Parent company Biodue 
S.p.A., as a result of the subscription of a private capital increase of 1 million Euro, obtained 
the majority of the capital. From the end of 2017, therefore, LaBiotre is consolidated line by 
line in the Group consolidated financial statements. 

• Pharcomed Corp., established in Miami (FL) with a share capital of 40,000 USD on 
January 2017 in joint venture (50/50) with the Suco Group Int. (formerly Pharcos Distributor 
from 1996). It distributes as an exclusive Pharcos branded products in the American 
continent:  
– directly on the US market;  
– through local distributors in other countries.  

• Pharcomed Mexico SA de CV, Joint Venture under Mexican law, located in Mexico City, 
held jointly by Biodue S.p.A. and Pharcomed Corporation (50% each). Pharcomed Mexico 
has been granted the exclusive Pharcomed products for Mexican territory.  

• Two Bee S.r.l. was established on March 10, 2017 in joint venture with Fufarma Albania 
(IMC Group) for the realization of a plant for the pharmaceutical production of capsules and 
tablets in Tirana. 

• Farcoderma S.r.l., 43.42% owned December 31, 2018, is a company active in the 
production of cosmetics and food supplements. The 43.42% ownership was purchased in July 
2018, with the aim to build a partnership that leads to industrial production synergies. The 
purchase price was 1,350,000 euro.   
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2. Directors’ evaluation on 
going concern requirements 

 

On the basis of the good performance and the solid financial statements, Directors believe that the 
Group is able to continue its operating activity in the future. So they have approved the financial 
statements as of December 31, 2018 on the base of going concern requirements. 
 
 

3. Basis for praparation 
3.1 Expression of compliance with IFRS 

The financial statements of BioDue S.p.A. have been prepared in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
("IASB"), approved by the European Union and in force at the balance sheet date. The explanatory 
notes to the financial statements have been supplemented with the additional information required 
by Consob and the Italian Civil Code. With "IFRS" is meant also the International Accounting 
Standards ("IAS") still in force, as well as all the interpretative documents issued by the IFRS 
Interpretation Committee, previously known as the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") and, before that, the Standing Interpretations Committee 
("SIC"). 
 
For the first time, the Company applies IFRS 15 Revenues from customer contracts, IFRS 9 Financial 
instruments and, as permitted, IFRS 16 Leases; the nature and effects of these changes are set out 
below. 
 

3.2 Content and structure of the financial statements  
 

The statements adopted by the Company are made up as follows : 
• Statement of Financial Position - The statement of financial position is presented by 

distinguishing between current and non-current assets and liabilities and by distinguishing, 
for each item of assets and liabilities, the amounts expected to be settled or recovered within 
or after 12 months from the date of reference of the financial statements; 

• Income Statement - The income statement contains the items by function, since it is 
considered the one that provides the most explanatory information; 

• Statement of Comprehensive Income - The statement of comprehensive income 
includes items recognised directly in equity when IFRS allow it; 

• Cash flow statement - The cash flow statement presents the cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities. Cash flows from operating activities are represented by the 
indirect method, whereby the result for the year or period is adjusted by the effects of non-
monetary transactions, by any deferment or allocation of previous or future operating cash 
receipts or payments, and by revenue or cost items associated with cash flows from investing 
or financing activities; 

• Statement of changes in shareholders' equity - The statement of changes in 
shareholders' equity shows the overall result for the year and the effect, for each item of 
shareholders' equity, of changes in accounting principles and corrections of errors as 
required by the International Accounting Standard n. 8. Furthermore, the scheme shows the 
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balance of accumulated profits or losses at the beginning of the period, the movements of the 
year and the end of the year. 

The format used for the income statement is "scalar", with the individual items analysed by function. 
It is believed that this exposure, followed also by the main competitors and in line with international 
practice, is the one that best represents the company's results. 
As allowed by IAS 1 revised, the statement of comprehensive income is presented in a separate 
document from the income statement, distinguishing between components that can be reclassified 
and those that cannot be reclassified to the income statement.  
The other components of comprehensive income are also shown separately in the statement of 
changes in shareholders' equity. 
The statement of financial position distinguishes between current and non-current assets and 
liabilities as described below. The cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method, as 
follows  allowed by IAS 7. 
 
The financial statements are presented in euro; all the values reported in the explanatory notes and 
in the report on operations are presented and rounded in thousands of euro.  
The financial statements provide comparative information for the previous period: the situation as 
at 31 December 2017. 
 
 

3.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
a) Current versus non-current classification  
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on 
current/non-current  
classification. An asset is current when it is: 

► Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 
► Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
► Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; 
► Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 

at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non current . 

A liability is current when : 
► It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 
► It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
► It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; 

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period.  

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
 
b) Use of estimates and significant assumptions 
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the IFRS requires estimates and 
assumptions affecting the amounts of assets, liabilities, costs and revenues recognized in the 
financial statements. Estimates and related assumptions are based on past experience and other 
factors considered reasonable in this case and have been adopted to estimate the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities, which is not easily inferable from other sources. 
These estimates and hypotheses are regularly reviewed. Any changes resulting from the revision of 
the accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the revision is made. 
The main data subject to estimation refer to: 
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1. Application of the 5-step model in accordance with IFRS 15 for the 
assessment and recognition of revenues from contract with customers: 
Some contracts for the sale of goods include variable considerations and customer 
discounts. To estimate the variable considerations related to the expected discounts, the 
Company applies the most probable amount method for contracts with a single volume 
discount threshold and the expected value method for contracts with multiple thresholds.  
 

2. Returns due to defects, including the assessment of any charges connected 
to a possible compensation charge: 
The Company account a provision for risks related to the possible costs of non-
compliance on the products, monitoring the products made during the period and the 
non-conformities identified in the subsequent period.  
 

3. Obsolescence fund for raw materials, accessories and finished products’ 
inventories:  
The obsolescence fund for finished products inventories reflects the management's 
estimation of expected losses of products, taking into consideration the ability to sell 
them. The Obsolescence fund of raw materials reflects the management's estimation of 
the decrease in their use probability, which is analyzed based on the calculation of slow-
moving raw materials. 
 

4. Bad debt provision, related to the evaluation of customer solvency:  
The Company determines impairment losses on trade receivables considering the amount 
of doubtful debts, analyzing the specific conditions of the Company's customers, the 
guarantees given in favor of the Company and appropriately evaluating the outstanding 
disputes and the possibility of recovering receivables expired. 
The Company also analyzed the average customer insolvency rate and credit loss recorded 
in recent years, in order to evaluate the consistency of the results of the analyzes carried 
out on the expected loss on each customer's credit with the historic loss rate. 
 

5. 5.Employees’ and directors’ benefit liabilities evaluated using actuarial 
assumptions: 
The actuarial valuation requires the elaboration of hypotheses about discount rates, 
future salary increases, turnover and mortality rates. Due to the long-term nature of these 
plans, these estimations are subject to a significant degree of uncertainty. All assumptions 
are reviewed annually. 
 

6. Deferred tax assets that are recognized on the basis of the probability of 
adequate future tax profits for which the temporary differences or any tax 
losses may be used: 
Deferred tax assets are recognized basing on all the temporary differences and all the tax 
losses carried forward, if it’s probable that there will be adequate future tax profits against 
which these losses can be used. A significant discretional assessment is required from the 
directors to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be accounted for.  
They must estimate the probable timing, the amount of future taxable profits and a future 
tax planning strategy. 
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7. Determination of control and joint control of associated companies: 
The Company determines the presence of control in the company considering that control 
is obtained when the Company is exposed or it has the right to variable returns, deriving 
from its relationship with the entity subject to investment and, at the same time, has the 
ability to affect such returns by exercising their power over this entity. 
Likewise, a joint venture is a joint control arrangement in which the parties that have 
joint control have rights to the net assets of the agreement. Joint control means the 
sharing on a contractual basis of the control of an agreement, which exists only when the 
decisions on the relevant activities require a consensus from all the parties that share 
control. 
 

8. Recognition of business combinations: 
Business combination imply the allocation to the assets and liabilities of the acquired 
company of the difference between the purchase price and the net book value. For most 
of the assets and liabilities, the attribution of the difference is made by recording the 
assets and liabilities at their fair value. The part not attributed if positive is recorded as 
goodwill, if negative it is charged to the income statement. The allocation of the price paid 
provisionally is subject to revision / update within the 12 months following the acquisition 
having regard to new information on facts and circumstances existing at the date of the 
acquisition. In the allocation process, the Company uses the information available and, 
for the most significant business combinations, external evaluations; the allocation 
process requires, also based on the information available, the exercise of a complex 
judgment by the Company Management. 
 

9. Identification of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU): 
In accordance with IAS 36 "Impairment of assets", the goodwill recorded in the financial 
statements based on business combination transactions was allocated to individual or 
groups of CGUs, which are expected to benefit from the combination. A CGU represents 
the smallest group of assets that generates largely independent financial flows. In the 
process of identifying the aforementioned CGUs, the management has taken into account 
the specific nature of the activity and the business to which it belongs (territorial area, 
business areas, reference legislation, etc.), verifying that the financial flows deriving from 
a group of activities were strictly interdependent and largely independent of those 
deriving from other activities (or groups of activities). The activities included in each CGU 
were also identified on the basis of the methods through which the management manages 
and monitors them in the context of the so-called business model adopted. In application 
of the provisions of IAS 36 "Impairment of assets", the goodwill recorded in the financial 
statements based on business combinations was allocated to individual or groups of 
CGUs, which are expected to benefit from the combination. A CGU represents the 
smallest group of assets that generates largely independent financial flows.  
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10. Impairment test of a non-financial asset: 
Impairment of non-financial asset occurs when events or changes in circumstances 
suggest that the book value is not recoverable. The events that can determine a reduction 
in the value of assets are changes in the business plans, regulatory changes, changes in 
market conditions, reduced use of the plants. The decision to reduce the value and 
quantify it depends on the assessments of the Company Management on complex and 
highly uncertain factors. 
An impairment occurs when the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable value, which is the higer between its fair value minus costs to sell 
and its value in use. Fair value minus costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale 
of an asset or a cash flow generating unit in a free transaction between knowledgeable 
and willing parties, minus costs of disposal.  
In determining this fair value, company management may also use appraisals drawn up 
by third parties, particularly as regards the industrial value of the assets under 
concession. 
The calculation of the value of use is based on a cash flow discounting model. The cash 
flows are derived from the approved forecast plans that consider point estimates and do 
not include restructuring activities for which the Company has not yet committed or 
significant future investments that will increase the results of the activity that make up 
the cash flow generating unit object of evaluation. The recoverable value depends 
significantly on the discount rate used in the cash flow discounting model, as well as on 
the expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for the extrapolation. The key 
assumptions used to determine the recoverable value for the various cash-generating 
units, including a sensitivity analysis, are described in detail in the known impairment 
tests pursuant to IAS 36 on the value of goodwill and impairment tests pursuant to IAS 
36 on the value of tangible assets. 
 

11. The identification of contracts that include a leasing  
The new IFRS 16 standard introduces some elements of judgment that involve the 
definition of some accounting policies and the use of assumptions and estimates in 
relation to the lease term and the definition of the incremental borrowing rate. The main 
ones are: (i) identification of the duration of the rental contract, for which the Company 
has chosen to consider the renewable period including the extension connected to the 
renewal options, evaluating the presence of a reasonable certainty of the actual possibility 
for the exercise of the same right and (ii) the definition of the discount rate for which the 
Company has calculated an incremental rate of indebtedness (Incremental Borrowing 
Rate-IBR) as the rate of a risk-free instrument, increased by the Company Credit spread.  
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c) Fair value Measurament 
The Company measures financial instruments and financiancial liabilities and assets, at fair 
value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

► In the principal market for the asset or liability; 
Or 

► In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability  

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest.  

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.  

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 

► Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities; 

► Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; 

► Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable. 

 
The fair value measurement is classified entirely at the same level of the fair value hierarchy in which 
the input of the lowest level of hierarchy used for the measurement is classified. 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring 
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by 
re-assessing  categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.  
Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value  measurement, 
such as investment properties and unquoted financial assets, and for non-recurring measurement, 
such as assets held for sale in discontinued operations. The management  is comprised of the head 
of the investment properties segment, heads of the Company’s internal mergers and acquisitions 
team, the head of the risk management department, chief finance officers and the managers of each 
property. 
External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as investment properties and 
financial assets held for sale, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration 
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained.  
For these analyses, the main inputs applied in the most recent valuation are verified, comparing the 
information used in the valuation with the contracts and other relevant documents .  
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The results of the evaluations are periodically presented to the Board of Statutory Auditors and to 
the Company's auditors. This presentation includes a discussion of the main assumptions used in 
the valuations.  
For the purposes of disclosing fair value, the Company determines the classes of assets and liabilities 
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair 
value hierarchy as illustrated above. 
 
d) Conversion of items in foreign currencies 
The financial statements are presented in euros, which is the functional and presentation currency 
adopted.  
Foreign currency transactions are initially recognised in the functional currency, applying the spot 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.  
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional 
currency at the exchange rate at the date of the financial statements. 
Realised exchange differences or those arising from the translation of monetary items are recognised 
in the income statement, with the exception of monetary items that form part of the hedge of a net 
investment in a foreign operation. These differences are recognised in the comprehensive income 
statement until the sale of the net investment, and only then is the total amount reclassified in the 
income statement. Taxes attributable to exchange differences on monetary items are also recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive income.  
Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange 
rates ruling at the date of initial recognition of the transaction. Non-monetary items recorded at fair 
value in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate on the date of determination of this 
value. The gain or loss arising from the translation of non-monetary items is treated consistently 
with the recognition of gains and losses relating to changes in the fair value of such items (i.e. 
translation differences on items whose change in fair value is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income or in the statement of income are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income or in the statement of income, respectively). 
 
e) Property, plant and equipment 
Property under construction, machinery and plant are recognised at historical cost, net of 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. This cost includes the costs for the 
replacement of part of the machinery and plant at the time they are incurred, if they comply with the 
recognition criteria. Where it is necessary to periodically replace significant parts of plant and 
machinery, the Company depreciates them separately on the basis of their specific useful life. 
Similarly, in the event of major overhauls, the cost is included in the carrying amount of the plant or 
machinery, as in the case of replacement, if the criterion for recognition is met. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The present value of the cost of 
dismantling and removing the asset at the end of its use is included in the cost of the asset, if the 
recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

  



 

 

  
Financial Statements as of December 31,  Page  20 

Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as 
follows:  
 

Tangible fixed assets 
Numbe

r of 
years 

Instrumental buildings 34 

Industrial buildings 19 

Real estate investments 19 

Light constructions 11 

Automatic machinery 9 

Other machinery 11 

Generic plants 11 

Specific Plants   9 

Various and small equipment 6 

Various laboratory equipment 3 

Electronic office machines 6 

Telephones, cell phones and modems 6 

Office furniture and furnishings 9 

Vehicles and means of transport 6 

Cars 5 

Stand for exhibitions / congresses 9 

Other tangible Assets  11 
 

 
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment and any significant components 
initially recognised are eliminated on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from their use or disposal. The gain or loss that emerges at the time of derecognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the net consideration) is 
recognised in the income statement when the item is derecognised. 
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year-end and, where appropriate, adjusted prospectively. 
 
 

- Leasing 
 
The Company opted for the early adoption of IFRS 16 as at January 1, 2018, as provided by paragraph 
C1 of the same standard that allows its early adoption at the first time adoption date of IFRS 15. 
The standard defines the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure 
of leasing and requires the lessees to account for all leasing contracts in the financial statements 
based on a single model similar to that used to account for finance leasing in accordance with with 
IAS 17. 
At the beginning of the contract the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a leasing. 
The contract is, or contains, a leasing if, in exchange for a consideration, it confers the right to control 
the use of a specified asset for a period of time. 
The time period can be described as a period of use of a specific identified activity identified 
separately. 
TheCompany re-evaluates whether a contract is, or contains, a leasing only in the event of a change 
in the terms and conditions of the contract. At the effective date, the Company recognises the asset 
consisting of the right of use and the liability of the lease.  
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On the effective date, the Company evaluates at cost the activity consisting of the right of use which 
includes: 

• the amount of the initial valuation of the lease liability; 
• payments due for leasing made on or before the effective date, net of lease incentives 

received; 
• the direct initial costs incurred by the lessee; and  

the estimation of all the costs that the Company will incur to dismantle and remove the 
underlying asset and to restore the site where it is located or to restore the underlying asset 
in the conditions set by the terms and conditions of the lease, to unless these costs are 
incurred for the production of inventories. The obligation relating to these costs arises for the 
Company at the effective date or as a consequence of the use of the underlying asset during a 
specific period. 

At the effective date, the lessee assesses the liability of the lease at the present value of the payments 
due for the lease not paid on that date. Payments due for leasing must be discounted using the 
implicit interest rate of the lease, if it can be easily determined. If this is not possible, the Company 
must use its marginal financing rate. 
The payments due for leasing included in the valuation of the liability of the lease include the 
following payments for the right to use the underlying asset over the duration of the lease not paid 
on the effective date: 

• fixed payments net of any leasing incentives to be received; 
•  the variable payments due for leasing which depend on an index or a rate, initially valued 

using an index or a rate on the effective date; 
•  the amounts that are expected to be the lessee will have to pay as guarantees of the residual 

value; 
• the exercise price of the purchase option, if the lessee has the reasonable certainty of 

exercising the option;  
• payments of lease termination penalties, if the duration of the lease takes into account the 

exercise by the lessee of the option to terminate the lease. 
After the effective date, the Company evaluates the activity consisting of the right of use at cost: 

• net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses; and  
• adjusted to take into account any restatements of the liability for the lease. 

After the effective date, the Company assesses the liability for the lease : 
• increasing the carrying amount to consider the interest on the liability of the lease; 
• decreasing the carrying amount to consider the payments due for the lease; 
• recalculating the carrying amount to consider any new valuations or changes to the lease or 

the revision of the payments due for the fixed lease in substance. 
The interest on the liability of the leasing in each year over the leasing term is equal to the amount 
that produces a constant periodic interest rate on the residual liability of the lease. 
The Company recognizes in the income statement, unless such costs are included in the carrying 
amount of another asset in accordance with other applicable principles:  

• interest on the liability of  leasing; 
and  

• variable payments due for leasing not included in the valuation of the leasing liability in the 
year in which the event occurs or the circumstance triggering the payments. 

The principle provides for two exemptions for registration by lessees - leasing contracts relating to 
“low value” activities (for example personal computers) and short-term leasing contracts (for 
example contracts with expiration within 12 months or lower). When the lease agreement starts, the 
lessee recognizes a liability against the lease payments (ie the lease liability) and an asset that 
represents the right to use the underlying asset for the duration of the contract (ie the right of use of 
the asset). Lessees separately account for interest expenses on the lease liability and the amortization 
of the right to use the asset. 
The Company has included the information required by IFRS 16 in the explanatory notes to the 
financial statements under note 4.1.1. 
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-  Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
requires a sufficiently long period before it is available for use are capitalised on the cost of the asset. 
All other financial charges are recorded among the costs pertaining to the year in which they are 
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with 
obtaining loans. 
 

 

f) Intangible assets 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of 
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses.  
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and 
the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 
The useful lives of Company' s intangible assets are assessed as finite. 
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the 
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered 
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in 
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category that is consistent with the function of the 
intangible assets. 

The gains or losses deriving from the elimination of an intangible asset are measured by the 
difference between the net revenue from the disposal and the carrying amount of the intangible asset, 
and are recorded in the profit / (loss) for the year in the exercise in which the elimination takes place. 

The principles applied by the Company for intangible assets are summarized below: 
 

Intangible fixed assets 
Numbe

r of 
years 

Development costs 5/10 
Brands 18 
Software 5 
Production know-how 5 

 

 

- Research and Development costs 

Research costs are charged to the income statement of the year in which they are incurred. 
Development costs incurred in relation to a given project are recognised as intangible assets when 
the Company is able to demonstrate:  

• The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available 
for use or sale; 

• Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset; 
• How the asset will generate future economic benefits; 
• The availability of resources to complete the asset; 
• The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development. 

After initial recognition, development activities are valued at cost less accumulated depreciation or 
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is completed and the asset 
is available for use. Development activities are amortised over the period of expected benefits and 
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the related amortisation is included in the cost of sales. During the development period, the asset is 
subject to an annual impairment test. 
 
g) Invesment properties 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at 
the reporting date.  
After initial recognition, the Company opted for cost accounting and evaluates all of its real estate 
investments in compliance with the provisions of that criterion set forth in IAS 16 except those that 
meet the criteria for classification as held for sale (or are included in a disposal group classified as 
held for sale) in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued 
operations. Real estate investments that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale (or included 
in a disposal group classified as held for sale) must be valued in accordance with IFRS 5. 
Investment properties are eliminated from the financial statements with the sale or when the 
investment is permanently unusable and no future economic benefits are expected from its sale. Any 
profits or losses deriving from the withdrawal or disposal of an investment property are recognized 
in the income statement in the year in which the withdrawal or disposal takes place. 

Reclassifications from/to investment property take place only when there is a change in use. For 
reclassifications from investment property to owner-occupied property, the reference value of the 
property for subsequent recognition is the fair value at the date of change in use. If a property used 
by the owner becomes an investment property, the Company recognises these assets in accordance 
with the criteria set out under Property, plant and equipment until the date of change in use. 

h) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 
Investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures are valued at purchase cost, in 
accordance with the provisions of IAS 27. 
If there are indications that the recoverability of the cost is no longer possible, in whole or in part, 
the book value is reduced to the relative recoverable value, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 
36. When, subsequently, this loss ceases to exist or is reduced, the book value is increased up to the 
new estimate of the recoverable value, which cannot exceed the original cost. 
An associate is a company over which the Company exercises significant influence. Significant 
influence means the power to participate in determining the financial and operating policies of the 
investee without having control or joint control over it. 
A joint venture is a jointly controlled agreement in which the parties that have joint control have 
rights over the net assets of the agreement. Joint control is the contractual sharing of control of an 
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant assets require the unanimous 
consent of all parties sharing control. 
 
i) Financial instruments - Recognition and measurement 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity . 
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 Financial assets 
o Initial recognition and measurement 

 
Upon initial recognition, financial assets are classified, as the case may be, according to the 
subsequent measurement methods, i.e. at amortised cost, at fair value through profit or loss OCI and 
at fair value through profit or loss. 
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual 
cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception 
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company 
has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value 
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade 
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has 
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price  determined under IFRS 15. 
Reference should be made to the section of the accounting principles entitled "Revenues from 
contracts with customers". 
 
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through 
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on 
the principal amount  outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed 
at an instrument level. 
 
The Company's business model for the management of financial assets refers to the way in which it 
manages its financial assets in order to generate financial flows. The business model determines 
whether the cash flows will arise from the collection of contractual cash flows, from the sale of 
financial assets or from both. 
The purchase or sale of a financial asset that requires delivery within a period of time generally 
established by regulations or market conventions (so-called standardised sale or regular way trade) 
is recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which the Company has undertaken to purchase or 
sell the asset. 
 

o Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

► Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments); 
► Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt 

instruments); 
► Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains 

and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments); 
► Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 

 
o Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at 
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

• The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows; 
And 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) 
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. 
The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, and loan to an associate 
and loan to a director included under other non-current financial assets. 
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o Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments) 
The Company values assets from debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss if both of the 
following conditions are met: 

• the financial asset is held as part of a business model whose objective is achieved both 
through the collection of contractual cash flows and through the sale of financial assets; 
And 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset provide at certain dates for cash flows consisting 
solely of principal payments and interest determined on the amount of principal to be repaid. 

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and 
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the 
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes 
are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is 
recycled to profit or loss. 
 

o Investments in equity instruments 
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably choose to classify its equity investments as 
equity instruments recognised at fair value through profit and loss when they meet the definition of 
equity instruments under IAS 32 "Financial Instruments: Presentation" and are not held for trading. 
The classification is determined for each individual instrument. 
Gains and losses on such financial assets are never reclassified to the income statement. Dividends 
are recognised as other income in the income statement when the right to payment has been 
approved, except when the Company benefits from such income as a recovery of part of the cost of 
the financial asset, in which case such profits are recognised in OCI. Equity instruments recognised 
at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment testing. 
 

o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
This category includes assets held for trading, assets designated at the time of initial recognition as 
financial assets at fair value with changes recognised in the income statement, or financial assets that 
must be measured at fair value. Assets held for trading are all those assets acquired for sale or 
repurchase in the short term. Derivatives, including those separated out, are classified as financial 
instruments held for trading, unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial 
assets with cash flows that are not represented solely by principal and interest payments are 
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, regardless of the business model. Despite 
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as 
described above, debt instruments may be recognised at fair value through profit or loss at initial 
recognition if this results in the elimination or significant reduction of an accounting mismatch. 
Financial instruments at fair value with changes recognised in the income statement are recognised 
in the statement of financial position at fair value and net changes in fair value are recognised in 
profit or loss. 
 

o Derecognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of 
financial position) when: 
 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 

Or 
 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

In cases where the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has 
signed an agreement under which it retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the 
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financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more 
beneficiaries (pass-through), it assesses whether and to what extent it has retained the risks and 
rewards of ownership. If it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 
or has not lost control of the same, the asset continues to be recognised in the financial statements 
of the Company to the extent of its residual involvement in the asset. In this case, the Company also 
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured to 
reflect the rights and obligations that remain with the Company. 

When the entity's continuing involvement is a guarantee of the transferred asset, the involvement 
is measured on the basis of the lower of the amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 
consideration received that the entity may have to repay. 

 

o Impairment of financial assets 
The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not 
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual 
cash flows due in  accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to 
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash 
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are 
integral to the contractual terms. 

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from 
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit 
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss 
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective 
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating 
ECLs.  

Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance 
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.  

The Company determines impairment losses on trade receivables considering the amount of 
doubtful debts, analyzing the specific conditions of the Company 's customers, any guarantees given 
in favor of the Company and appropriately evaluating outstanding disputes and the possibility of 
recovering receivables expired. 
The Company also analyzed the average customer insolvency rate and credit loss recorded in recent 
years, in order to assess the consistency of the results of the analyzes carried out on the expected loss 
on each customer's credit with the loss rate historian.  
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 Financial liabilities 
o Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments 
in an effective hedge, as  appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings 
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including 
bank overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments. 

 
o Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
 

o Financial liabilities at fair value through prifit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of 
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered 
into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as 
defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they 
are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are 
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The 
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss. 

 
o Loans 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.  

 
o Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss 
 

o Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of 
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 
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j) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments and in particular interest rate swaps to hedge 
the risk of interest rate fluctuations. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair 
value on the date on which the derivative contract is signed and, subsequently, are re-measured at 
fair value. Derivatives are recorded as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial 
liabilities when the fair value is negative. 
 
 
The Company carries out hedges exclusively with reference to cash flows and, in particular, to the 
exposure to the variability of cash flows connected with interest rates . 
 
 
At the beginning of a hedging transaction, the Company formally designates and documents the 
hedging relationship, to which it intends to apply hedge accounting, its own objectives in risk 
management and the strategy pursued. 
The documentation includes the identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the 
nature of the risk and the ways in which the Company will assess whether the hedging relationship 
meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of the sources of ineffectiveness 
coverage and how the coverage ratio is determined). The hedging relationship meets the eligibility 
criteria for accounting for hedging transactions if it meets all the following hedging effectiveness 
requirements: 

• There is ‘an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument; 
• The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic 

relationship; 
• The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity 

of the hedged item that the Company actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging 
instrument that the Company actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.  

Transactions that meet all the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows (Cash flow 
hedges). 
 
 
Cash flow hedges 
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash 
flow hedge  
reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. 
The cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging 
instrument and the 
cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.  
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k) Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. 
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company 
estimates the  asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined 
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent 
of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions 
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is 
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly 
traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 
Management bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which 
are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. 
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. A long-term growth 
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. 
Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in 
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for properties 
previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is 
recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation. 
 

At each balance sheet date, management assesses the existence of indications of the loss (or 
reduction) of impairment losses previously recorded and, if such indications exist, estimates the 
recoverable value of the asset or CGU. The value of a previously written down asset can be restored 
only if there have been changes in the assumptions on which the calculation of the determined 
recoverable value was based, subsequent to the recognition of the last impairment loss. The write-
back cannot exceed the book value that would have been determined, net of depreciation, in the event 
that no impairment loss had been recognized in previous years. This recovery is recognized in the 
profit/(loss) statement for the year unless the asset is not accounted for at the revalued amount, in 
which case the recovery is treated as an increase from revaluation. 
 
 

l) Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for, as 
follows: 

► Raw materials: purchase cost on weighted average cost basis; 
► Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of 

manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing 
costs. 

Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, 
recognised in OCI, in respect of the purchases of raw materials. 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
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m)  Cash and short-term deposits 
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on 
hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an 
integral part of the Company’s cash management. 
 

n) Provisions for liabilities and charges  
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, 
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when 
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the 
statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 
 

o) Post-employment benefits 
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit 
credit method. 
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding 
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets 
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised 
immediately in the statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to 
profit or loss in subsequent periods.  
Past service cost is recognised in the income statement at the earliest of the following dates:  

• The date of the plan amendment or curtailment; 
And  

• The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs. 
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 
The Company  recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under ‘cost of 
sales’, ‘administration expenses’ and ‘selling and distribution expenses’ in the statement of profit or 
loss (by function):  

• Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on 
curtailments and non-routine settlements;  

• Net interest expense or income. 
IAS 19 requires an entity to consider, in the accounting of defined benefit plans, the contributions of 
employees or third parties. When the contributions are linked to the service provided, they should 
be attributed to the periods of service as a negative benefit. This amendment clarifies that, if the 
amount of the contributions is independent of the number of years of service, the entity is allowed 
to recognize these contributions as a reduction in the cost of the service in the period in which the 
service is provided, rather than allocating the contribution to the periods of service.  
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p) Revenue from contracts with customer 
The Company develops, produces and sells cosmetics, liquid and solid food supplements and medical 
devices both on behalf of national and international pharmaceutical companies (Industrial Division) 
and with its own brands Pharcos (dermatological sector), BiOfta (ophthalmic sector) and Selerbe 
(sector herbal nutraceutical). 
 
Revenues deriving from contracts with customers are recognized when the control of goods and 
services is transferred to the customer for an amount that reflects the consideration that the 
Company expects to receive in exchange for these goods or services. The Company has concluded 
that it acts as Principal in the agreements from which the revenues derive, as it controls the goods 
and services before transferring them to the customer. 
 
Revenues from the sale of products are recognized when the control of the goods passes to the 
customer, generally at the time of shipment of the goods. The usual terms of commercial extension 
are from 30 to 90 days from shipment. 
The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate 
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., 
warranties, customer loyalty points). In determining the transaction price for the sale of equipment, 
the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing 
components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any). 
If the amount promised in the contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the 
amount of the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the transfer of the goods to 
the customer. 
The variable consideration is estimated at the time the contract is stipulated and it is not possible to 
record it until it is highly probable that when the uncertainty associated with the variable 
consideration is subsequently resolved, there will be no significant decrease in the amount of the 
cumulative revenues that have been recorded. 
Contracts for the sale of the Company typically do not provide customers with a right of return and 
volume discounts. 
Sometimes, the Company gives retroactive discounts to some customers when the quantity of 
products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold determined in the contract. These 
discounts are compensated with the amounts that the customer must pay. To estimate the variable 
price related to the expected discounts, the Company applies the most probable amount method for 
contracts with a single volume discount threshold and the expected value method for contracts with 
multiple thresholds. The choice of the best method to use to predict the amount of the variable fee 
depends on the number of thresholds present in the contract. The Company then applies the 
guidance on the recognition of the variable consideration and enters a liability for repayments for 
the expected future discounts. 
 
With reference to the comparative year, revenues are recognized to the extent that it is probable that 
the economic benefits will be achieved by the Company and the related amount can be reliably 
determined, regardless of the date of collection in accordance with IAS 18. Revenues are measured 
at the fair value of the consideration received or to be received, taking into account the terms of 
payment contractually defined and excluding taxes and duties. In particular, the revenue is 
recognized when the company has transferred to the buyer all the significant risks and benefits 
connected to the ownership of the asset, generally on the date of delivery of the goods. 
The revenue is valued at the fair value of the consideration received or to be received, net of returns 
and rebates, commercial discounts and volume reductions.  
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q) Other income 
 

- Active rentals 
Rents deriving from property investments are recognized on a straight-line basis over the duration 
of the existing lease contracts at the balance sheet date and are classified as revenues, taking into 
account their operational nature 
 

- Dividends 
Dividends are recognized when the unconditional right of the Ccompany to receive the payment 
arises, which generally corresponds to the time when the Shareholders' Meeting approves their 
distribution. 
 

- Interest income 
For all the financial instruments valued at amortized cost and the interest-bearing financial assets 
classified as available for sale, the interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (TIE), 
which is the rate that precisely discounts future collections, estimated along the expected life of the 
financial instrument or over a shorter period, when necessary, with respect to the net carrying 
amount of the financial asset. Interest income is classified under financial income in the income 
statement/(loss) for the year. 
 
 

- Public contributions 
Government grants are recognized when there is a reasonable certainty that they will be received and 
that all the conditions referring to them are met. Contributions related to cost components are 
recorded as revenues, but are systematically divided between the years so as to be commensurate 
with the recognition of the costs they intend to offset. The contribution related to an asset is 
recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the reference asset. 
 
 

- Costs 
Costs are recorded when they relate to goods and services sold or consumed during the year or by 
systematic allocation, or when their future utility cannot be identified. 
 

r) Taxes 
- Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those 
that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in 
the  statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provisions where appropriate. 
 
 

- Deferred taxes 
Deferred taxes are calculated by applying the so-called “liability method” to the temporary 
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax values of the assets and liabilities and the 
corresponding balance sheet values. 
The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available in the future to 
allow all or part of the use of such credit. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it becomes probable that the taxable income 
will be sufficient to allow the recovery of these deferred tax assets. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to be applied 
in the year in which such assets will be realized or these liabilities will be settled, considering the 
rates in force and those already issued, or substantially in force, on the date of the budget. 
Deferred taxes relating to items recognized outside the income statement are also recognized outside 
the income statement and, therefore, in equity or in the statement of comprehensive income, in line 
with the item to which they refer. 
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- Indirect taxes 
Costs, revenues, assets and liabilities are recognized net of indirect taxes, such as value added tax, 
with the following exceptions : 

► the tax applied to the purchase of goods or services is non-deductible; in this case it is 
recognized as part of the purchase cost of the asset or part of the cost recognized in the income 
statement; 

► trade receivables and payables include the applicable indirect tax. 
The net amount of indirect taxes to be recovered or paid to the tax authorities is included in the 
balance sheet among the credits or debts. 
 
 

s) Dividends and distribution of assets other than cash and cash equivalents 
The Company recognizes a liability for the distribution to its shareholders of cash or differents assets 
from  cash when the distribution is adequately authorized and is no longer at the discretion of the 
Company. Under European company law, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by 
shareholders. The corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity. 
Distributions of assets other than cash and cash equivalents are measured at the fair value of the assets 
to be distributed; the restatements of fair value are recognized directly in equity. 
When the payable dividend is settled, any difference between the book value of the assets distributed 
and the book value of the dividend payable is recognized in the profit and loss statement for the year. 
 
 

t) Earnings per share 
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the Company's 
ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
year. 
For the purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding is modified by assuming the conversion of all potential shares with a diluting effect.  
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3.4 Changes in accounting and disclosure principles 
 

The Company has not adopted in advance any standards, interpretations or improvements issued 
but not yet in force.   
 

 
IFRS 9: Financial Instruments 
In July 2015, IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replacing IAS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 
brings together all three aspects of the project on accounting for financial instruments: classification 
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for financial years 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018; early application is permitted. With the exception of hedge 
accounting, retrospective application of the standard is required, but comparative information is not 
required. With regard to hedge accounting, the standard is generally applied prospectively, with a 
few limited exceptions. 
The Company has been adopting the new standard since 1 January 2018 without 
restating the comparative information.  
The Company did not have a significant impact on its statement of financial position and 
shareholders' equity and the amounts allocated for impairment losses were not significantly different 
from those obtained from the procedures previously applied. In addition, there were no changes in 
the classification of the Company's financial instruments. 
 

a) Classification and measurement 
 
The Company didn’t find any significant impact on its financial statements and shareholders' equity 
as a result of the application of the classification and measurement requirements set out in IFRS 9. 
Financial receivables, as well as trade receivables, are held for the purpose of collection at contractual 
maturities and generate cash flows represented solely by the collection of principal and interest. The 
Company has analysed the characteristics of the contractual cash flows of these instruments and has 
concluded that they comply with the criteria for valuation at amortised cost in accordance with IFRS 
9. 
 

b) Impairment 
 
IFRS 9 requires the Company to record expected credit losses on all its obligations, loans and trade 
receivables, either on an annual basis or on a residual maturity basis. 
The Company determines impairment losses on trade receivables by considering the amount of 
receivables of doubtful collectability, analysing the specific conditions of the Company's customers, 
any guarantees given in favour of the Company and suitably assessing outstanding disputes and the 
possibilities of recovering past due receivables. 
The Company has also analysed the average rate of customer insolvency and loss on receivables 
recorded in recent years, in order to assess the consistency of the results of the analyses carried out 
on the expected loss on each customer's receivables with the historical loss rate. 
In consideration of the analyses carried out, the provisions of IFRS 9 did not have an impact on the 
shareholders' equity of the Company. 
 

c) Hedge accounting  
 
The Company did not hold derivative financial instruments prior to the first-time adoption of IFRS 
9. 
 
IFRS 15: Revenues from contracts with customers 
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and introduces a new five-step model that applies to revenues from 
customer contracts. IFRS 15 requires the recognition of revenues for an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the entity believes it is entitled in exchange for the transfer of goods or 
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services to the customer. The standard provides a more structured approach to the recognition and 
measurement of revenues, replacing all the previous requirements in the other IFRSs regarding the 
recognition of revenues. IFRS 15 replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts, and 
interpretations of IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the 
Construction of Buildings, IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 Revenue - 
Bartering Transactions Including Advertising Activities. 
IFRS 15 is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with full or amended 
retrospective application. 
The Company applied the new standard retrospectively from the date of mandatory application. The 
application of the standard did not have an impact on the opening shareholders' equity of the 
Company. 
In applying IFRS 15, the Company has considered the following points: 
 

a) Sale of goods 
The application of IFRS 15 to contracts with customers in which the sale of goods is the only 
obligation has not had a significant impact on the Company. The Company recognises revenues when 
control of the asset has been transferred to the customer for an amount that reflects the consideration 
that the Company expects to receive in exchange for these goods or services, similar to what 
happened under previously applicable standards. 
 

b) Presentation and required information 
The provisions of IFRS 15 regarding the presentation and disclosure required, which are 
fundamentally new, are more detailed than those of the previous standards. Considering the 
predominance of the application of a revenue recognition at the point in time, as well as the results 
of the assessment activities carried out, the Company did not have significant implementation 
difficulties to meet the need for additional disclosures. 
The information required by the standard is presented in note 5.1 below. 
 
IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions — 
Amendments to IFRS 2 
The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment that address three 
main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled 
share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-based payment 
transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and 
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based 
payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled. On 
adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior 
periods, but retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three 
amendments and other criteria are met. These amendments are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Company has not noticed any significant impact from the 
application of these amendments. 
 
Amendmends to IAS 40: Transfer of investment 
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under 
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a 
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment 
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for 
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. Entities should apply the 
amendments prospectively to changes in use that occurred at the beginning of the annual period in 
which the entity first applies the amendments, or later. An entity should reassess the classification 
of property held at that date and, if applicable, reclassify it to reflect the conditions that existed at 
that date. Retrospective application in accordance with IAS 8 is permitted only if it is possible 
without the use of subsequent information. The amendments are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Company applied the amendments at the effective date. 
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IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 
The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition 
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset 
or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on 
which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from 
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity 
must determine the date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. 
Entities could apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity could 
apply the Interpretation prospectively to all activities, expenses and revenues within its scope that 
were recognised initially at or after the following dates: 

• at the beginning of the period in which an entity first applies the interpretation, or 
• at the beginning of the preceding reporting period presented for comparative purposes in the 

financial statements of the period in which the entity first applies the interpretation. 
The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 
Since the Company's current accounting policy is aligned with the interpretation, the Company has 
not recognized no effect on its balance sheet. 
 
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance 
Contracts 
The amendments address concerns arising from implementing the new financial instruments 
standard, IFRS 9, before implementing IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, which replaces IFRS 4. The 
amendments introduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption 
from applying IFRS 9 and an overlay approach. These amendments are not relevant to the Company. 
 
Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Clarification 
that measuring investees at fair value through profit or loss is an investment-by-
investment choice 
The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or 
other qualifying entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-
investment basis, to measure its investments in associates and joint ventures at fair 
value through profit or loss. If an entity that is not itself an investment entity, has an 
interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, then it may, 
when applying the equity method, elect to retain the fair value measurement applied 
by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity 
associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made 
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the 
date on which: (a) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially 
recognized; (b) the associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) 
the investment entity associate or joint venture first becomes a parent. These 
amendments do not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
 
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standards - Deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters 
Short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3–E7 of IFRS 1 were deleted because they have now served 
their intended purpose. These amendments do not have any impact on the Company’s financial 
statements. 
 
IFRS 16 Leases 
IFRS 16 was published in January 2016 and replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 
Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - 
Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal 
Form of a Lease. 
IFRS 16 defines the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases in the financial statements based on a single 
model similar to the one used to account for finance leases in accordance with IAS 17. 
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The accounting required by IFRS 16 for lessors is substantially unchanged from today's accounting 
in accordance with IAS 17. 
IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to disclose more information than is required by IAS 17. 
The standard sets out two exemptions for recognition by lessees – leases relating to assets with “low 
value” (for example, personal computers) and short-term leases (for example, leases maturing within 
12 months or less). Upon lease commencement, the lessee shall recognise a liability against the lease 
payments (i.e. a lease liability) and assets that represent the right-of-use of the underlying asset for 
the duration of the lease (i.e. the right-of-use of the asset). Lessees must separately record interest 
expense on the lease liability and the amortisation of the right-of-use of the asset. 
Lessees must also remeasure the lease liability on the occurrence of specific events (for example: 
change in the conditions of the lease contract, change in future lease payments resulting from a 
change in an index or a rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise 
the amount of the re-measurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the asset's right of use. 
IFRS 16 applies from 1 January 2019; early application is permitted for entities that also apply IFRS 
15 - Revenues from contracts with customers. 
The Company adopted the standard early as from 1 January 2018, using the cumulative catch-up 
approach upon transition to the date of first application of the new standard (i.e. 1 January 2018), 
valuing the liability for leasing contracts equal to the future cash flows from existing contracts, 
discounted by an incremental interest rate calculated at that date on the basis of the residual duration 
of the contracts. 
The main impacts on the Company's financial statements can be summarised as follows: 

• financial position: higher non-current assets due to the recording of the right to use the leased 
asset under the item "Property, plant and equipment" as a balancing entry to higher financial 
payables; 

• income statement: different nature of expenses, qualification and classification of expenses 
(amortisation of the "right of use" and "interest financial charges" compared to "Costs for use 
of third party assets", as per IAS 17) with consequent positive impact on operating 
profitability. 

• alternative performance indicators: the different nature, qualification and classification of 
the expenses described in the previous point will consequently have an impact on EBITDA, 
net invested capital, net financial debt, as well as on other economic and financial indicators. 

The initial application of the standard resulted in the recognition of rights of use and financial 
liabilities of Euro 240 thousand at 1 January 2018. 
The application of the standard did not have an impact on the opening shareholders' equity of the 
Company. 
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3.4 Standards issued but not yet effective 
The following are the principles which, at the date of preparation of the Company's financial 
statements, had already been issued but were not yet in force.  
The list refers to standards and interpretations that the Company expects to be reasonably applicable 
in the future. The Company intends to adopt these standards when they come into force. 
 
 

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 
In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new 
accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation 
and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was 
issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance 
and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees 
and financial instruments with discretionary participation features.  
A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model 
for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the 
requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting 
policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant 
accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:   

• A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee 
approach)  

• A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration 
contracts  

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with comparative 
figures required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 
on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17. This standard is not applicable to the Company. 
 
IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment 
The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve 
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the 
scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties 
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses the following:  

• Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately  
• The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation 

authorities  
• How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax 

credits and tax rates  
• How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances  

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment 
separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The 
approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed. 
The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2019, but certain transition reliefs are available. The Company will apply 
the interpretation from its effective date. Since the Company does not operate in a complex 
multinational tax context, the application of the Interpretation will not have a material effect on the 
financial statements and disclosures required.   
 
Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 
Under IFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held 
within the appropriate business model for that classification. The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that 
a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of the event or circumstance that causes the 
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early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable 
compensation for the early termination of the contract.  
The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 
2019, with earlier application permitted. These amendments have no impact on the 
financial statements of the Company. 
 
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control 
of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify 
that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business, as 
defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognized in full. Any 
gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not constitute a business, 
however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint 
venture. The IASB has deferred the effective date of these amendments indefinitely, but an entity 
that early adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively.   
The Company will apply these amendments when they become effective. 
 
Amendmends to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 
The amendments to IAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or 
settlement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, 
curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to:  

• Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, 
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after 
that event. 

• Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment 
or settlement using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered 
under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to remeasure 
that net defined benefit liability (asset).  

The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on 
settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognized in profit or 
loss.   
An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment or 
settlement.  
Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognized in other 
comprehensive income.  
The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after the 
beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after 1 January 2019, with early 
application permitted.   
These amendments will apply only to any future plan amendments, curtailments, or 
settlements of the Company. 
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Amendmends to IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures 
The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or joint 
venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net 
investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is relevant 
because it implies that the expected credit loss model in IFRS 9 applies to such long-term interests.  
The amendments also clarified that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any losses 
of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognized as 
adjustments to the net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from applying IAS 28 
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.  
The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 
2019, with early application permitted. Since the Company does not have such long-
term interests in its associate and joint  venture, the amendments will not have an 
impact on its financial statements. 
 
Annual cycle of improvements 2015-2017 
These improvements include: 

• IFRS 3 Business Combination: The amendment clarifies that an entity re-evaluates the 
interest held in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business; 

• IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: The amendment clarifies that an entity does not re-evaluate the 
interest held in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business; 

• IAS 12 Income taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity must account for all income 
taxes arising from the payment of dividends in the same way; 

• IAS 23 Borrowing costs: The amendment clarifies that an entity must account for loans 
originally incurred to develop an asset, as part of other loans when the asset is ready for use 
or for sale. 

The amendment is in force for the financial years starting on 1 January 2019 or later. 
Early application is allowed. The Company will apply the interpretation on the date of 
entry into force. 
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4. Notes to Financial 
Statements 

 
 
 

4.1 Property, plant and equipment 
 

Property plant and equipment amounted to 13,558 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (13,393 
thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)             

Property, plant and 
equipment Property 

Plants 
and 

machiner
y 

Industrial 
and 

commercia
l 

equipment 

Other Current tangible 
assets and advances 

Total 
property, 
plant and 

equipmen
t 

Net Value as of December 
31, 2016 7,301  3,449  200  476  2,042  13,468  

Historical cost as of 
December 31, 2016 10,578  7,066  535  1,512  2,042  21,733  

Additions 85  354  94  309  1,411  2,253  

Disposals (1,201)  (8)  (32)  (215)   (1,456)  

Reclassifications 2,170  474  28   (2,672)  0  

Historical cost as of 
December 31, 2017 11,632  7,886  625  1,606  781  22,530  

Accumulated 
amortization as of 
December 31, 2016 

(3,277)  (3,617)  (335)  (1,036)   (8,265)  

Additions (438)  (691)  (79)  (130)   (1,338)  

Disposals 386  5  22  53   466  
Accumulated 
amortization as of 
December 31, 2017 

(3,329)  (4,303)  (392)  (1,113)  - (9,137)  

Net value as of December 
31, 2017 8,303  3,583  233  493  781  13,393  

Historical cost as of 
December 31, 2017 11,632  7,886  625  1,606  781  22,530  

First time adoption of IFRS 16 
on operating leases 246     246 

Additions 8  792  66  30  274 1,170  

Additions for leasing  101 61 195   357 

Disposals   (123)    (168)   (291)  

Reclassifications 442  423  15   (880)  -  
Historical cost as of 
December 31, 2018 12,328  9,079  767 1,663  175 24,012  

Accumulated 
amortization as of 
December 31, 2017 

(3,329)  (4,303)  (392)  (1,113)   (9,137)  

Additions (500)  (727)  (90)  (159)    (1,476)  

Disposals   17    142   159  
Accumulated 
amortization as of 
December 31, 2018 

(3,829)  (5,013)  (482)  (1,130)  - (10,454)  

Net Value as of December 
31, 2018 8,499 4,066  285  533  175 13,558  
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Additions realized in the period amounted to 2,379 thousand Euro. They are to be attributed for 246 
thousand Euro to the described IFRS16 first time adoption and, for the difference of 2,133 thousand 
Euro, to investments made in the period. These are mainly attributable to: 
 

• Plants and machinery, 1,720 thousand Euro; 
• Equipment, 119 thousand Euro; 
• I.T. Investments, 50 thousand Euro; 
• Current tangible assets and advances, 244 thousand Euro 

 
Management believes that as of December 31, 2018 there are no indicators of loss of value from 
internal sources (corporate strategies), nor from external sources (legal, economic and technological 
context the Group operates in). 
 
 
4.1.1 Leasing 
In accordance with paragraphs 51-60 of IFRS 16, the following disclosures assess the effects of the 
leases on the financial position, the income result and the Group’s cash flows. 
 
(in thousands of Euro)       

 Property Plants and 
machinery 

Industrial 
and 

commercial 
equipment 

Other 
Current 
tangible 

assets and 
advances 

Total 
property, 
plant and 

equipment 
Historical cost as of January 1, 2017 739 748    1,487 

Additions  70    70 

Disposals (739)     (739) 

Amortization  (168)    (168) 

Historical cost as of December 31, 2017  650    650 

Historical cost as of January 1, 2018  650    650 

First-time adoption of IFRS16 on operating 
leases 246     246 

Additions for leasing  101 61 195  357 

Amortization (4) (6) (6) (24)  (40) 

Net value as of December 31, 2018 242 745 55 171  1,213 

 
(in thousands of Euro)     

  December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

Interest charges on leasing liabilities for the period 13 15 

Cash flows for leasing for the period 245 211 
 
Other operating costs include costs related to short-term leasing or low value leasing for 35 thousand 
Euro, in application of paragraph 6 - IFRS16. 
 
The Group did not subscribe any sub-lease contract. 
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4.2 Intangible Assets 
 
Intangible assets amounted to 127 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (125 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)       

Intangible Assets 
Concessions, 

licences, patents 
and other 

Industrial patents and 
use of intellectual 

property rights 

Total Intangible 
Assets 

Net Value as of December 31, 2016 23  109  132  
Historical cost as of December 31, 
2016 280  392  672  

Additions 3  45  48  

Disposals       

Reclassifications       
Historical cost as of December 31, 
2017 283  437  720  

Accumulated amortization as of 
December 31, 2016 (257)  (283)  (540)  

Additions (3)  (52)  (55)  

Disposals       
Accumulated amortization as of 
December 31, 2017 (260)  (335)  (595)  

Net Value as of December 31, 2017 23  102  125  
Historical cost as of December 31, 
2017 283  437  720  

Additions  62  62  

Disposals    

Reclassifications    
Historical cost as of December 31, 
2018 283  499  782  

Accumulated amortization as of 
December 31, 2017 (260)  (335)  (595)  

Additions (3)  (57)  (60)  

Disposals    
Accumulated amortization as of 
December 31, 2018 (263)  (392)  (655)  

Net Value as of December 31, 2018 20  107  127  

 
 
 

Additions refer entirely to new functionalities of the ERP software. 
 
Management believes that as of December 31, 2018 there are no indicators of loss of value from 
internal sources (corporate strategies), nor from external sources (legal, economic and technological 
context the Group operates in). 
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4.3 Investment property 
Investment property amounted to 86 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018. It refers to an 
industrial property leased.  
The following table shows the variations in investment property as of December 31, 2018. 
 

(in thousands of Euro)           
Investment 
property 

January 1, 
2018 Additions Disposals Amortization December 

31, 2018 
Land 68       68 
Property 30 1   13 18 
Totale investment 
property 98 1   13  86 

 
 

Management believes that as of December 31, 2018 there are no indicators of loss of value from 
internal sources (corporate strategies), nor from external sources (legal, economic and technological 
context the Group operates in). 
 
 

4.4 Investment in a subsidiary, an associate and a joint venture 
Investment in an associate and a joint venture, measured at purchasing cost, amount overall to 2,806 
thousand euro (1,411 thousand euro as of December 31, 2018). 
 
The following table shows the variations in investment in an associate and a joint venture as of 
December 31, 2018. 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Investment in an associate 
and a joint venture 

Value as of 
December 31,  

2018 

Value as of 
December 31,  

2017 

% Investment  
as of 

December 31,  
2018 

% Investment  
as of 

December 31,  
2017 

Investment in subsidiaries     

LaBiotre S.r.l. 1,335 1.335 51.20% 51.20% 

Investment in joint ventures     

Pharcomed Corp. 63 19 50% 50% 

Two Bee S.r.l. 50 50 50% 50% 

Investment in affiliates     

Farcoderma S.r.l. 1,350  43.42%  
Investment in other 
companies     

DAFNE Consortium 7 7 n.s. n.s. 

Energie Consortium 1  n.s. n.s. 

Total Investment in an 
associate and a joint venture 2,806 1,411   

 
 

In July 2018, BioDue purchased 43.42% ownership of Farcoderma S.r.l.. The purcasing cost 
amounted to 1,350 thousand Euro. 
In december 2018, BioDue paid 50 thousands USD (44 thousand Euro), as share capital increase of 
joint venture Pharcomed Corp. 
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In Directors’ Report on operations, there is a full description of these subsidiaries performances. 
 
The following table shows, for each investment, the equity attributable to BioDue and the historic 
value, as in the financial statements as of December 31, 2018. 
 
 

 (in thousands of Euro)      

Company name Equity % Investment  
 

Equity value 
attributable 

to BioDue 
S.p.A. 

Cost in the financial 
statements as of 

December 31, 2018  

Farcoderma S.r.l. 2,188 43.42% 950 1,350 
LaBiotre S.r.l. 2,842 51.2% 1,455 1,335  
Pharmacomed Corp. 419 50.0% 210 62  
Two Bee S.r.l. 92 50.0% 46  50  

Total      2,797  
 
 
 

Management believes that as of December 31, 2018 there are no indicators of loss of value from 
internal sources (corporate strategies), nor from external sources (legal, economic and technological 
context the Group operates in). 
 
 

4.5 Other non-current assets 
Other non-current assets amounted to 25 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (49 thousand Euro 
as of December 31, 2017).  
The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Other non-current assets December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

IRES tax credit 3  30  (27) -90.0% 
Deposits 2  15  (13)  -86.7% 
Other receivables   2  (2)  -100.0% 
Prepayments 20  2  18  >100.0% 

Total other non-current assets  25  49  (24)  -49.0% 
 
 

4.6 Other non-current financial assets 
Other non-current financial assets amounted to 95 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018. 
The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         
Other non-current financial 
assets 

December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 Change Change % 

Loan to Pharcomed 95 - 95 100.0% 
Total other non-current 
financial assets 95 - 95 100.0% 
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4.7 Deferred tax assets 
The following table shows the breakdown of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2018.  
 
 

 (in thousands of Euro)         

Deferred tax assets  Pre tax 
amount   Rate  Tax amount  Deferred 

Tax Assets 

Employees’ benefit liabilities 171 24.0% 43 43 

Other current liabilities 6 27.9% 2 2 

Other current assets 63 27.9% 18 18 

Trade receivables 49 24.0% 12 12 

Leasing 12 27.9% 3 3 

Cash Flow Hedge 45 27.9% 13 13 

Total Deferred tax assets 346   91 91 
 
 
 

The following table shows the breakdown of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2017. 
 

 (in thousands of Euro)         

Deferred tax assets  Pre tax 
amount   Rate  Tax amount  Deferred 

Tax Assets 

Other current assets 63 27.9% 18 18 

Employees’ benefit liabilities 77 27.9% 32 32 

Inventory 13 27.9% 3 3 

Trade receivables 75 24.0% 18 18 

Other 87 27.9% 24 24 

Total Deferred tax assets 315   95 95 
 
 
 

Deferred tax credits are recognised as it is probable that future taxable income will be so high that 
temporary tax differences can be used against them. The Group estimates there will be sufficient 
future taxable income. 
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4.8 Inventories 
Inventories amounted to 5,045 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (5,271 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

Inventories December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 Change Change % 

     
Gross value of raw materials, 
accessories and consumables 2,842  3,155  (313) -9.9% 

Provisions for obsolete raw 
materials   (11)  11  -100% 

Total raw materials, 
accessories and 
consumables 

2,842  3,144  (302)  -9.6% 

     
Semi-finished products 506 460  46  10.0% 
Provisions for obsolete 
intermediate goods 

 (1)  1  -100% 

Total semi-finished 
products 506  459  47  10.2% 

     
Finished products 1,790  1,773  17  1.0% 
Provisions for finished 
products (93)  (105)  12  -11.4% 

Total finished products 1,697  1,668  29  1.7% 
     

Total inventories 5,045  5,271  (226)  -4.3% 
 
 
 
 

The following table shows the allocations and reversals of the provisions for inventories. 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         
Provisions for 
inventories 

December 31,  
2017 Accruals Reversals December 31,  

2018 
Provisions for inventories 117 93 117 93 

 
 
 

Accruals to provisions for inventories amount to 93 thousand Euro. They are classified as Cost of 
goods sold. 
Provisions for inventories are mainly determined by referring to products expiration, when the 
expiration date no longer allows the product to enter into the sales cycle. 
In addition, at the end of the period, the Group monitors any obsolete and slow-moving material. 
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4.9 Trade receivables 
Trade receivables amounted to 11,763 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (10,678 thousand 
Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Trade receivables December 
31, 2018 

December 31,  
2017 Change Change % 

Trade receivables (Italy) 10,793  9,829  964 9.8% 

Trade receivables (UE) 393  502  (109)  -21.7% 
Trade receivables (Extra-UE) 765  510  255  50.0% 

Provision for badt debt (188)  (163)  (25)  15.3% 

Total trade receivables 11,763  10,678  1,085  10.2% 
 
 

The increase of Trade receivables (Italy) is related to greater revenue volumes. There are no 
significant increases in disputes. 
Trade receivables (Extra–UE) increased because of longer payment terms granted to JV Pharcomed. 
BioDue accepted to have longer payment terms in order to allow Pharcomed Corp. expand its 
business in Americas. This delay affected the average day trade receivables outstandings. 
 

Provision for bad debt is determined considering: uncertain chargeability trade receivables, Group 
customers specific conditions, any guarantees provided in favour of the Group, appropriate 
evaluation of the disputes and the possibility of recovering expired credits. 
Provisions for bad debt are deemed appropriate by Directors to cope with foreseeable future credit 
losses. 
Changes in provisions for bad debt were as follows: 
 

 (in thousands of Euro)         

Provisions for bad debt December 
31, 2017 Accruals Reversals December 

31, 2018 
Provisions for bad debt 163  60  35  188  

 

Exchange differences as of December 31, 2018 have been recorded in financial statements. 
Changes in exchange rates between December 31, 2018 and the date of financial statement editing 
are not meaningful. 
 
As of December 31, 2018 there is no trade receivables with maturity exceeding 5 years. 
 

4.10 Tax receivables 
Tax receivables amounted to 190 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (779 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Tax receivables December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2018 Change Change % 

VAT 190 639  (449)  -70.3% 
Ires (Income Tax)  140  (140)  -100.0% 
Research and development 
tax offset (L. 190/2014) 165  165  

Total tax receivables 355 779 (424)  -54.4% 
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4.11 Other current assets 
Other current assets amounted to 64 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (46 thousand Euro as 
of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Other current assets December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 Change Change % 

Advances 12  3  9 >100% 
Other receivables 13  2  11 >100% 
Prepayments 39  41  (2) -4.9% 

Total other current assets 64  46  18 39.1% 
 
 
 

As of December 31, 2018 there are no othe current assets with maturity exceeding 5 years. 
 
 

4.12 Other current financial assets 
Other current financial assets amounted to 26 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018. The following 
table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         
Other current financial 
assets 

December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 Change Change % 

Loan to Pharcomed 26  26 100% 
Total other current financial 
assets 26  26 100% 

 
 

4.13 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents amounted to 3,254 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (534 thousand 
Euro as of December 31, 2017).  
Cash and cash equivalents are freely available. The Group does not foresee significant costs for 
making them available. 
 

The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Cash and cash equivalents December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 Change Change % 

Bank and postal Deposits 3,253  507  2,746  >100% 
Cash Deposits 1  27  (26)  -96.3% 
Total cash and cash 
equivalents 3,254  534  2,720  >100.0% 
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4.14 Equity 
 

As shown in Statement of changes in equity, changes as of December 31, 2018 are given by: 
(i) destination of net profit as of December 31, 2017, for 1,250 thousand Euro to extraordinary reserve 
and 138 thousand euro to legal reserve; 
(ii) distribution of dividends for 669 thousand Euro; 
(iii) decrease of IAS19 reserve for 67 thousand euro. This riserve has a negative balance of € 152.524 
as of December 31, 2018. 
 

As of December 31, 2014, the share capital amounted to 3,600,000 Euro and it was composed of 
3,340,800 shares, each of which represented an equal fraction of the share capital. 
 

On April 27, 2015, the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting deliberated to vary the number of shares 
from 3,340,800 to 10,022,400. It also stated to issue new ordinary shares for 1,126,500. These new 
shares had no nominal value and right of profit, but the right of option was excluded, since the 
increase in share capital was aimed at admission to trading on AIM Italia and it was destined for a 
placement to investors. 
 

On May 18, 2015, the Company’s ordinary shares were admitted to trading on AIM Italia / 
Alternative Capital Market, a multilateral trading system organized and managed by Borsa Italiana 
S.p.A. Trading of the Company’s ordinary shares began on May 20, 2015. 
 

The placement price was 3.55 Euro per share. Admission to the AIM increased the cash availability 
for 3,999,075 Euro, and this led to an increase in share capital for 405,540 Euro and the a new 
reserve (Share capital contributions) for 3,593,535 Euro. 
 

During the year 2018, the company purchased 61,000 treasury shares for a total of 331,129 Euro. 
As of December 31, 2018 the share capital amounted to 3,674,411 Euro and it was composed of 
11,148,900 shares (of which 61,000 treasury shares), each of which represents an equal fraction of 
the share capital. 
 
v 

(in thousands of Euro)             

Description Amount 
 

Reserve 
tipology 

Chance 
to use 

Available 
amount 

 
Distributable 

amount  

Non 
Distributable 

amount 
Share capital 3,674 Capital   3,674  3,674 
Share capital contributions 3,594 Capital  A-B-C  3,594 3,594  

Revaluation Reserve 146 Capital  A-B-C  146 146  

Legal Reserve 844 Profits  A-B  844  706 
Extraordinary Reserve 6,850 Profits A-B-C  6,850 6,850  
Merger Reserve 36 Profits A-B-C  36 36  
Extraordinary 
Transformation Reserve 21 Capital  A-B-C  21 21  

Retained earnings 532 Profits  A-B-C  532 532  
LEGEND: “A" Capital Increase, "B" Loss Allowance, "C" Distribution to shareholders, “D” Other statutory 
restrictions 
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Reserves from other components of the comprehensive income statement 
Other comprehensive income/losses include the accounting of TFR and TFM actuarial effects in 
accordance with IAS19 and of the accounting for a “cash flow hedge” derivative. 
The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     
Employee benefit plans and Directors benefit plans 
measurement (IAS 19) and cash flow hedge derivative 

December 31,   
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

Cash flow hedge derivative 45  
Actuarial income/(losses) 86 1 
Tax effect (32) - 

Comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 99 1 
 
 

4.15 Non current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
Non current interest-bearing loans and borrowings amounted to 8,704 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2018 (4,119 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their 
breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)   
 

      

Non current interest-bearing 
loans and borrowings 

December 31,   
2018 

 December 31,   
2017 Change Change % 

Non current interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 8,153   3,893  4,260 >100% 

Non current lease liabilities 551   226  325  >100% 
Total non current interest-bearing 
loans and borrowings 8,704   4,119  4,585 >100% 

 
 

The Group does not have any covenant on interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 
 
 
 

4.16 Provisions for risks and charges 
Provisions for risks and charges amounted to 636 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (605 
thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)         

Provisions for risks and charges December 31,   
2018 

December 31,   
2017 Change Change % 

Provisions for sales agents indemnity 581  550  31  5.6% 
Provisions for other risks 55  55      
Total provisions for risks and 
charges 636  605  31  5,1% 

 
 

Provisions for other risks are related to probable non-conformity on manufactured products. 
 
There are no significant pending litigations and disputes of legal, fiscal or contractual origin.  
The Group, supported by the opinion of its lawyers, believes that no litigation or dispute may lead to 
a negative outcome with relevant effects. 
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4.17 Employees’ benefit liabilities 
Employees’ benefit liabilities amounted to 305 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (261 
thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)       

  
Employees

’ benefit 
liabilities 

Directors’ 
benefit 

liabilities 

Total 
employees’ 

benefit 
liabilities 

Value as of December 31, 2017 195 66 261 
Benefits paid (29) (63) (92) 
Service cost  36 36 
Interest cost 3 11 14 
 Actuarial Losses/(Income) due to experience 3 122 125 
 Actuarial Losses/(Income) due to changes in demographic 
assumptions 

   

 Actuarial Losses/(Income) due to changes in financial 
assumptions (6) (33) (39) 

Actuarial Losses  (3) 89 86 

Value as of December 31, 2018 166 139 305 
 
 

Employees’ benefit liabilities and Directors’ benefit liabilities are accounted in accordance with 
IAS19 for benefit plans and include the estimated debt to be paid to each employee at the end of the 
job contract. This debt is discounted on the basis of employee estimated time exits. These are 
calculated using actuarial methods. 
 
The main assumptions adopted are summarized in the following tables: 
 

Summary of Economic Technical Basis 

Financial Assumptions  

Yearly discount rate 1.57% 

Yearly inflation rate 1.50% 

Yearly increase of TFR 2.65% 
 
 

Summary of demographic technical basis 
Demographic assumptions 
 Death Death Rate tables RG48 published by the 

State General Accounting Office  

 
Inability Tables with indication of age and sex 

published by  
the National social security institute   

 Retirement 100% upon reaching the “AGO” 
requirements (Compulsory general 
insurance)    

 
 

Yearly Frequency of Turnover and TFR 
Advances  
 Advances Turnover  
  2.00% 3.50%% 
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The table below summarizes the sensitivity analysis of the Employees’ benefit liabilities for each 
actuarial assumption at the end of the year, showing the effects (in gross amount) that would have 
occurred in case of changes in the actuarial assumptions reasonably possible on that date: 
 
in thousands of Euro 

Sensitivity analysis of the main valuation parameters at 
December 31, 2018 
 
Changes in assumptions Balance 

+1% on turnover rate  178 
-1% on turnover rate 180 
+1/4% on inflation rate 182 
-1/4% on inflation rate 176 
+1/4 % on discount rate 174 
-1/4 % on discount rate 184 

 
The table below summarizes the sensitivity analysis of the Directors’ benefit liabilities at the discount 
rate used in the estimate, showing the effects (in gross amount) that would have occurred in case of 
changes in the reasonably possible actuarial assumptions to that date 
 
 
in thousands of Euro 

Sensitivity analysis of the main valuation parameters at 
December 31, 2018 

 

Changes in assumptions Balance 

+1/4% on discount rate 865 
-1/4% on discount rate 932 

 
Finally, the table below sumarizes the forecasted disbursements: 
 
in thousands of Euro 
 

Forecasted disbursements 

Years 
Employees’ 

benefit 
liabilities 

 Directors’  
benefit liabilities 

1 18  158 
2 9  1 
3 8  1 
4 8  2 
5 8  2 
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4.18 Deferred tax liabilities 
Deferred tax liabilities amounted to 61 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (125 thousand Euro 
as of December 31, 2017).  
 
The following table shows the moviments occurred during the year: 
 

(in thousands of euro)         

Deferred tax liabilites December 31, 
2017 Accruals Reversals December 31, 

2018 

Deferred tax liabilities 125 10 74 61 
 
 
 

4.19 Trade payables 
Trade payables amounted to 5,543 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (7,209 thousand Euro as 
of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of euro)         

Trade payables December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Trade receivables Italy 5,419  7,124  (1,704)  -23.9% 
Trade receivables UE 125  81  43  53.1% 
Trade receivables Extra UE (1)  4  (5)  <-100.0% 

Total Trade payables 5,543  7,209  (1,666)  -23.1% 
 
 
 

4.20 Current Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
Current Interest-bearing loans and receivables amounted to 1,691 thousand Euro as of December 31, 
2018 (2,742 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017). The year 2017 amount of 2,742 included 
current interest-bearing loans and borrowings for 2,495 thousand Euro and current financial 
liabilities for 247 thousand Euro. As of December 31, 2018 there are no current financial liabilities. 
 

(in thousands of euro)         
Current interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings 

December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Current liabilities to a shareholder 
for the purchase of treasury shares   247  (247)  -100.0% 

Current bank liabilities 50  1,378  (1,328)  -96.4%  
Current bank interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings 1,461  959  502  52.3% 

Current leasing liabilities 180  158  22  13.9% 
Total Current interest-bearing 
loans and borrowings 1,691  2,742  (1,051)  -38.3% 

 
 

The Group does not have any covenant on the interest-bearing loans and receivables. 
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4.21 Tax payables 
Tax payables amount to 534 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (198 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of euro)         

Tax payables December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Irap (Income Tax) 33  15  18  >100% 
Ires (Income Tax) 300  300   
Professionals withholding tax 41  41     

Employee withholding tax 160  142  18  12.7% 

Total Tax payables 534  198  336  >100% 
 
 
 

4.22 Other current liabilities 
Other current liabilities amounted to 771 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (847 thousand 
Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of euro)         

Other current liabilities December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Social security liabilities 374  345  29  8.4% 
Employee liabilities 356  479  (123)  -25.7% 
Other liabilities 41  23  18  78.3% 

Total other current liabilities 771  847  (76)  -9.0% 
 
 
 
  



 

 

  
Financial Statements as of December 31,  Page  56 

 

5. Notes to Statement of 
income 

 
 
 

5.1 Revenues 
Revenues amounted to 38,544 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (35,723 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017).  
The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
(in thousands of euro)           

Revenues December 31, 
2018 % December 31, 

2017 % Change % 

Industrial 20,414 53.0% 19,451 54.4% 5.0% 
Pharcos 8,427 21.9% 8,199 23.0% 2.8% 
Selerbe 6,300 16.3% 5,326 14.9% 18.3% 
BiOfta 3,276 8.5% 2,692 7.5% 21.7% 
Others 127 0.3% 55 0.2% >100% 

Total revenues 38,544 100.0% 35,723 100.0% 7.9% 

 
In year 2018 revenues totaled 38.5 million Euro, with an increase of +7.9% compared to 2017. 
 
 

In particular: 
- Industrial revenues amount to 20.4 million Euro, (+4.9%), improving the growth path 

recorded in the first nine months of 2018;  
- Pharcos revenues amount to 8.4 million Euro (+2.8%);  
- Selerbe revenues amount to 6.3 million Euro (+18.2%); the growth is mainly due to the sales 

of private-label products to pharmacists and herbalists; 
- BiOfta revenues amount to 3.3 million Euro revenues, (+21.7%), confirming the work 

undertaken by the commercial network on ophthalmologists.  
 

The analysis of these values therefore highlights the important growth of the own brands Pharcos, 
Selerbe and BiOfta, which recorded an increase of +11.0% compared to 2017, in line with the 
Company’s objectives and strategies. Finally, the geographical breakdown of revenues shows an 
increase in the foreign revenues of +27.7%, higher than that recorded by the domestic revenues of 
+5.3%, in line with the strategic orientation aimed at strengthening the process of 
internationalization and opening of new markets. 
 
(in thousands of euro)           

Revenues December 31, 
2018 % December 31, 

2017 % Change % 

Domestic 33,172 86.1% 31,515 88.2% 5.3% 
Rest of the world 5,372 13.9% 4,208 11.8% 27.7% 

Total revenues 38,544 100.0% 35,723 100.0% 7.9% 
 
 

The above mentioned revenues are fully recognized according to the methodology “point in time”. 
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5.2 Other revenues 
Other revenues amounted to 225 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (557 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of euro)     

Other revenues December 31, 
2018 

December 31,  
2017 Change Change % 

Insurance refunds 6 8 (2) -25.0% 
Gains from non current asset sales 19 91 (72) -79.1% 
Other revenues 365 458 (93) -20.3% 

Total other revenues 390 557 (167) -30.0% 
 
 

Among the other revenues and income of year 2017 there are 279 thousand Euro for the sale of 
REWCAPTM machines, self built by the company. The company did not have this kind of sales during 
2018. 
 
 

5.3 Cost of goods sold 
Cost of goods sold amounted to 16,935 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (16,376 thousand 
Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of euro)         

Cost of goods sold December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Primary raw materials 8,672 7,750 922 11.9% 
Secondary raw materials 7,761 7,919 (158) -2.0% 
Other raw materials 285 267 18 6.7% 
Other costs for subsidiary and 

th  t i l  
292 552 (260) -47.1% 

Chenge in inventories of finished 
products and semi-finished 
products 

(75) (112) 37 -33.0% 

Total Cost of goods sold 16,935 16,376 559 3.4% 
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5.4 Service costs 
Service costs amounted to 8,356 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (8,767 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of euro)         

Service Costs December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Other service costs 533 443 90 20.3% 
Insurance contracts 123 100 23 23.0% 
Software support 127 141 (14) -9.9% 
Directors fees, statutory auditors fees and 
indipendent auditors fees 1,081 1,128 (47) -4.2% 

Commissions on sales 3,757 4,659 (902) -19.4% 
Administrative and financial services 577 510 67 13.1% 
Employee services 34 174 (140) -80.5% 
Production services 897 513 384 74.9% 
Commercial and marketing costs 536 497 39 7.8% 
Maintenance costs 136 114 22 19.3% 
Utilities costs 555 488 67 13.7% 

Total Service costs 8,356 8,767 (411) -4.7% 
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5.5 Personnel costs 
Personell costs amounted to 6,294 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (5,573 thousand Euro as 
of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of euro)         

Personnel costs December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Wages and salaries 4,677 4,208 469 11.1% 
Social security costs 1,268 1,081 187 17.3% 
Benefit plans costs 349 282 67 23.8% 
Other employee costs  2 (2) -100% 

Total personnel costs 6,294 5,573 721 12.9% 
 
 
 
 

The number of personnel is shown in the following table: 
 

Employees December 31, 
2017 Recruitments Exits December 31, 

2018   Average 

Clerks and executives 44 8 2 50 49 
Workers 116 11 21 106 114 

Total employees 160 19 23 156 163 
 
 

The Company adopts the National collective agreement referring to "Chemistry, Rubber, Glass - 
Small and medium industry". 
 
 

5.6 Other operating costs 
Other operating costs amounted to 823 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (883 thousand Euro 
as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of euro)         

Other operating costs December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change % 

Representation costs 313 284 29 10.2% 
Rents and rentals 105 166 (61) -36.7% 
IMU (tax on buildings) and other 
i di t t  

75 91 (16) -17.6% 
Membership fees and other annual 

t  
61 36 25 69.4% 

Provision for bad debt costs 60 55 5 9.1% 
Other costs 209 251 (42) -16.7% 

Total Other operating costs 823 883 (60) -6.8% 
 
 
 

The Company does not shows the provision for bad debt in a specific profit and loss item because the 
amount is not significant.  
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5.7 Depreciation and amortization 
Depreciation and amortiation amounted to 1,548 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (1,398 
thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of euro)         

Depreciation and amortization December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change 

% 

Intangible assets depreciatiom 60 55 5 9.1% 

Tangible assets depreciation 1,475 1,330 145 10.9% 

Investment properties depreciation 13 13   

Total depreciation and amortization 1,548 1,398 150 10.7% 
 
 
 

5.8 Financial income and expenses 
Financial income and expenses have a negative balance in both years. They amounted to 21 thousand 
Euro as of December 31, 2018 and to 153 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2017. The following table 
shows their breakdown: 
 
 

(in thousands of euro)         

Financial income / (expenses) December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change 

% 
Interest income and other financial 
income 63 15 48 >100% 

Exchange rates income 43 5 38 >100% 
Financial income 106 20 86 >100% 
     
Interest costs and other financial 
expenses (109) (64) (45) 70.3% 

Exchange rates costs (17) (109) 92 -84.4% 
Financial expenses (126) (173) 47 -27.2% 
     

Total financial income / (expenses) (20) (153) 133 -86.9% 
 
 

5.9 Income taxes 
Income taxes amounted to 1,285 thousand Euro as of December 31, 2018 (1,072 thousand Euro as of 
December 31, 2017). The following table shows their breakdown: 
 

(in thousands of euro)       
 

Income taxes December 31, 
2018 

December 31, 
2017 Change Change 

% 
IRES 1,040 771 269 34.9% 
IRAP 245 215 30 14.0% 
Current taxes 1.285 986 299 30,3% 
     
Deferred taxes (46) 70 (116) <-100% 
Other (59) 16 (75) <-100% 

Total income taxes 1,180 1,072 108 10.1% 
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The following table shows the reconciliation between the effective IRES and IRAP costs and the 
income theoretical tax costs: 

 
 

(in thousands of euro)     

Income tax recovery / (expense)   December 31, 
2018   December 31, 

2017 
Profit before income tax  4,956  3,129 
Theoretical income tax IRES 24.00% (1,189) 24.00% (751) 
Theoretical income tax IRAP 3.90% (193) 3.90% (122) 

Theoretical income taxes  (1,382)  (873) 

Other permanent deductions  180  48 
Other non-deductible permanent expenses  (31)  (47) 
Non-deductible amortizations  (23)  4 
Revaluation and devaluations of investments    0 
Interests costs and financial expenses  4  (14) 
Penalties and other taxes  (12)  (12) 
Devaluations and other provisions  (2)  8 
Other changes  17  (21) 

Total  (1,249)  (907) 
Permanent differences IRAP (including 
employee costs)  (54)  (79) 

Total income taxes 26.29% (1,303) 31.51% (986) 
 
 
 

5.10 Earnings per share (basic and diluted) 
Applying IAS 33, data used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share are shown. 
Basic earning per share is calculated as a ratio between net profit for the period attributable to equity 
holders of the Parent company and the weighted average number of listed shares during the period 
in exam. There are no diluted profit effects on earnings per share. 
 
The following table shows the data used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share. 
 

(in Euro) December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

Net profit for the period – attributable to ordinary equity holders of the 
Parent company  3,775,614 2,056,768 

Average ordinary shares listed in the period 11,132,640 11,148,900 

Basic and diluted profit for the period attributable to ordinary 
shares (Euro) 0.34 0.18 
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6. Net financial indebtedness 
 
Net financial indebtness is calculated in respect to “ESMA – European Security and Markets 
Authority” recommendations (“ESMA update of the CESR recommendations 809/2004 - The 
consistent implementation of Commission Regulation (EC) No implementing the Prospectus 
Directive”, March 20, 2013). 
 
The following table shows net financial indebtedness as of December 31, 2018 and as of December 
31, 2017. 
 
 

(in thousands of euro)     

  December 31,  
2018 

December 31,  
2017 

A. Cash 1 27 
B. Cash Equivalents 3,253 507 
C. Trading and Available for Sale Securities   

D. Liquidity (A) + (B) + (C) 3,254 534 

E. Current financial assets 26  
F. Current bank debt 50 1,378 
G. Current portions of non current debt 1,641 1,117 

Leasing 180 158 
Bank loans 1,461 959 

H. Other current financial  247 
Current liabilities to a shareholder for the purchase of  
treasury shares 

 247 

I. Current financial debt (F) + (G) + (H) 1,691 2,742 

J. Net current financial indebtedness  (I) – (E) – (D) (1,589) 2,208 

K. Non current loans and borrowings 8,704 4,120 
Leasing 551 227 
Bank loans 8,153 3,893 

L. Issued bond   

M. Other non current loans   

N. Non current financial indebtedness (K) + (L) + 
(M) 8,704 4,120 

O. Net financial indebtedness  (J) + (N) 7,115 6,328 
 
 

A more detailed analysis of the matter is given in the Directors Report on operations. 
  

https://context.reverso.net/traduzione/inglese-italiano/Trading
https://context.reverso.net/traduzione/inglese-italiano/Available-for-Sale+Securities
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The following table shows the reconciliation between the changes in non-current and current 
financial liabilities as of December 31, 2018 and as of December 31, 2017. 
 
 
(in thousands of euro)     

Non current and current 
financial liabilities 

December 31,  
2017 Cash flow 

Non 
monetary 

changes 

December 31,  
2018 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 6,230 3,390  9,620 
Leasing liabilities 384 346  730 
Derivatives   45 45 
Liabilities due to a shareholder for the 
purchase of  
treasury shares 

247 (247)   

Total non current and current 
financial liabilities 

6,861 3,489 45 10,395 

 
 (in thousands of euro)     

Non current and current 
financial liabilities 

December 31,  
2016 Cash flow 

Non 
monetary 

changes 

December 31,  
2017 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4,692  1,538  - 6,230  
Leasing liabilities 1,081  (697)  -  384  
Liabilities due to a shareholder for the 
purchase of  
treasury shares 

489  (242)  -  247  

Total non current and current 
financial liabilities 

6,262  599  -  6,861  

 
 
 
 

7. Related parties  
 
 

Related parties operations were made applying conditions in line with the market, i.e. conditions 
independent parties would apply. 
In order to determine whether related parties operations were made in line with the market, the 
Group analyzed both: quantitative conditions, related to the prices and the elements linked to the 
prices, and the reasons why the Group decided to make operations with related parties rather than 
with third parties. 
 
Related parties operations did not include atypical or unusual operations. 
 
In addition to IAS24 prescriptions on “Notes to financial statements on related parties operations”, 
Consob communication 6064293 (issued on July 28, 2006) requires to disclose the incidences that 
related parties operations (classified according to IAS24) have on the financial and income 
statements. 
 
The following table shows those incidences. The incidences, that related parties operations have on 
the Group net profit and cash flows, should be analyzed considering the main related parties 
operations are identical to the analogue operations with independent third parties. 
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In summary the following table shows related parties operations. 
 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

 December 
31, 2018 %  December 31, 

2017 %  

     
Equipment bought by companies related 
to equity holders and directors of 
BioDue S.p.A. 

49 0.4%   

Property, plant and equipment 49 0.4%   

Other non current financial assets due 
from Pharcomed Corp. 95 100.0%   

Other non current financial assets 95 100.0%   

Non current assets 144 0.9%   

     
Trade receivables due from Labiotre 
S.r.l. 4 0.0% 10 0.1% 

Trade receivables due from Pharcomed 
Corp. 715 6.1% 517 4.8% 

Trade receivables due from Farcoderma 
S.r.l. 1 0.0%   

Trade receivables due from companies 
related to equity holders and directors of 
BioDue S.p.A 

210 1.8% 245 2,.3% 

Trade receivables 930 7.9% 772 7.2% 

Other current financial assets due from 
Pharcomed Corp. 26 100.0%   

Other current financial assets 26 100.0%   

Current Assets 956 4.7% 772 4.5% 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,100  2.9% 772 2.4% 

     
Trade payables due to Labiotre S.r.l. 270 4.9% 484 6.7% 
Trade payables due to Farcoderma S.r.l. 15 0.3%   
Trade payables due to equity holders 
and directors of BioDue S.p.A. 

  191 2.6% 

Trade payables due to statutory auditors 
of BioDue S.p.A. 2  3 0.0% 

Trade payables due to companies related 
to equity holders and directors of 
BioDue S.p.A. 

1,331 24.0% 1,583 22.0% 

Trade payables 1,618 29.2% 2,261 31.4% 

Current liabilities 1,618 18.9% 2,261 20.6% 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,618  8.9% 2,261 14.0% 
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The following table shows income data of related parties: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)     

 December 31, 
2018 %  December 31, 

2017 %  

     
Revenues from LaBiotre S.r.l. 6 0,0% 5 0,0% 
Revenues from Pharcomed Corp. 1,111 2.9% 697 1.9% 
Revenues from companies related to equity 
holders and directors of BioDue S.p.A. 2 0,0% 11 0.0% 

Revenues 1,119 2.9% 713 2.0% 
Other revenues from LaBiotre S.r.l.    0.0% 
Other revenues from Pharcomed Corp.   14 2.6% 
Other revenues from companies related to 
equity holders and directors of BioDue 
S.p.A. 

  82 43.3% 

Other revenues   96 45.8% 
     
Costs to LaBiotre S.r.l. (1,903) -11.2% (1,808) -11.0% 
Costs to Farcoderma S.r.l. (8) -0.0%   
Costs to companies related to equity holders 
and directors of BioDue S.p.A. (3,972) -23.5% (4,423) -26.9% 

Cost of goods sold (5,883) -34.7% (6,231) -37.8% 

Costs to LaBiotre S.r.l. (28) -0.3% (6) 0.1% 
Costs to Pharcomed Corp. 78 0.9%   
Costs to Farcoderma S.r.l. (46) -0.6%   
Costs to equity holders and directors of 
BioDue S.p.A.   (279) 3.2% 

Costs to statutory auditors of BioDue S.p.A. (14) -0.2% (11) 0.1% 
Costs to companies related to equity holders 
and directors of BioDue S.p.A. (5) -0.1% 109 0.3% 

Service costs (15) -0.2% (187) 2.1% 
Costs to LaBiotre S.r.l.   5 0.6% 
Costs to equity holders and directors of 
BioDue S.p.A   (1) -0.1% 

Costs to companies related to equity holders 
and directors of BioDue S.p.A. (37) -4.5% (89) -10.1% 

Other operating costs (37) -4.5% (85) -9.6% 
Costs to companies related to equity holders 
and directors of BioDue S.p.A. (3) -0.2%   

Amortization and depreciation (3) -0.2%   
     
Operating profit (4,819) -100.2% (5,695) -173.5% 
     
Finance Expenses from Pharcomed Corp. 23 1.5%   
Finance Income 23 1.5%   
Finance Expenses to Pharcomed Corp. (17) 15.8% (27) -15.6% 
Finance Expenses (17) 15.8% (27) -15.6% 
     
Pre tax profit (4,813) -97.1% (5,722) -182.9% 
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8. Interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings 
 

The Group did not enter into agreements or sign financial contracts or other acts, whether or not 
linked to one another, whose effects do not result from the financial statements but which effects 
may expose the parent company to risks or generate significant benefits. 
 
 

The following table shows a breakdown of financial debts with bank institutions, already briefly 
illustrated in the previous paragraphs 4.15 for the non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
and 4.20 for current interest-bearing loans and borrowings: 
 
(in thousands of Euro)         

Interest-bearing 
loans and 
borrowings  

Type Initial 
debt 

Mortgage 
amount 

as of 
December 

31, 2018 

Delivery 
date 

Expiration 
date 

Debt as of 
December 

31, 2018 

Current  
debt 

Non 
current 

debt 

Debt 
over 5 
years 

Bank Loan 
CREDEM 

Unsecured 
loan 95  30.11.16 30.08.21 55 20 35  

Bank Loan 
CREDEM 

Unsecured 
loan 998  24.04.16 28.04.21 505 201 304  

Bank Loan Banca 
Intesa 

Unsecured 
loan 800  30.01.17 30.01.24 587 113 464 10 

Mortgage Loan 
Chianti Banca 

Mortgage 
Loan  500 1,000 08.06.16 30.06.26 381 48 201 132 

Mortgage Loan 
Banca Intesa 

Mortgage 
Loan  1,300 2,600 31.08.16 31.08.23 874 185 689  

Mortgage Loan 
Banca Intesa 

Mortgage 
Loan 1,800 3,600 15.02.17 30.01.27 1,511 177 735 599 

Bank Loan Banca 
Intesa 

Unsecured 
loan 1,000  29.01.18 19.01.21 695 333 362  

Bank Loan BNL Unsecured 
loan 2,000  31.07.18 30.07.21 2,000 249 1,751  

Mortgage Loan 
Banca Intesa 

Mortgage 
Loan 3,000 5,250 28.11.18 15.12.28 3,000 145 1,381 1,474 

Total loans and 
borrowings 
nominal value 

 11,493 12,450   9,608 1,471 5,922 2,215 

Amortized cost      (39)    

Derivative Fair 
value       45    

Total net value      9,614    
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9. Other notes 
 
 

9.1 Directors fees, statutory auditors fees and independent auditors fees 
 

Directors fees, statutory auditors fees and independent auditors fees to be paid in year 2018 are as 
follow: 
- Directors fees, 965 thousand Euro, 
- Statutory auditors, 36 thousand Euro, 
- Independent auditors EY S.p.A., 55 thousand Euro (of which (i) 20 thousand Euro in relation to the 
audit of the financial statements, (ii) 17 thousand Euro in relation to the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements and (iii) 18 thousand Euro in relation to the limited audit of the half-year 
interim condensed consolidated financial statements). 
 
 

9.2 Derivatives and other financial instruments issued 
 

The Company did not issue other financial instruments as by n. 19 par. 1 article 2427 Civil Code. 
 
 

9.3 Stock Option 
 

On April 26, 2018 shareholders’ meeting authorized a share capital increase of maximum 300,000 
ordinary shares for the Stock Option Plan Service (in the years 2018-2020). Stock Options may be 
assigned to Directors and employees of the parent company, the subsidiaries, the associates and joint 
ventures. 
The Stock Option Plan is an incentive program that fosters the loyalty of parent company-
subsidiaries-associates-joint ventures top management and executives. 
The Stock Option Plan links stock option rights to the Group strategic achievements. So it makes 
possible for the top management and the executives to share the Group goals. 
The Board of Directors of BioDue S.p.A. will assign Stock Option rights after the approval of the 
financial statements for the year 2018 by the shareholders’ meeting. 
 
 

9.4 Treasury shares 
 

On April 26, 2018 the shareholders’ meeting authorized the buyback of maximum 200,000 treasury 
shares. 
Treasury shares buyback is mainly aimed to form a treasury shares stock, in coherence with BioDue’s 
strategic objectives. Those shares can be used in the context of possible extraordinary operations, 
including the allocation to the counterparts of our own brand trade relations. 
As of December 31, 2018 the parent company owned 61.000 treasury shares (in reduction of the 
equity for 331 thousand Euro). 
 
 

9.5 Information on the fair value of financial instruments 
 

The Company holds financial instruments, interest rate swaps, with the aim of hedging financial 
risks relating to changes in interest rates on existing medium-long term loans. 
The table below shows the situation relating to the type of hedging transaction put in place and the 
outcome of the same as at 31 December 2018: 
 

(in thousands of Euro)       

Type Borrowing 
rate (fixed) 

Credit rate 
(variable) 

Starting 
date 

Expiry 
date 

Notional 
Capital 

Fair Value 
as of 

December  
31, 2018  

Interest Rate Swaps 0.75% Euribor 6m 17.12.2018 15.12.2028 3,000 (45) 
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Derivative instruments have been considered as cash flow hedging instruments. They have a direct 
impact on shareholders’ equity. As of December 31, 2018, the derivative financial instrument of the 
Company has exceeded the effectiveness assessment. 
 

9.6 Research and development 
 

During the year, research and development activities continued on projects deemed particularly 
innovative, both through its own staff and through consulting activities. 
The positive outcome of these innovations will generate good results in terms of turnover with 
positive effects on the Company’s financial results. 
Considering that these activities are a part of the operating activities of the company, the related 
costs are charged to the income statement. 
This activity also generated a tax receivable amount of 128 thousand Euro in 2017 and 165 thousand 
Euro in 2018. 
 
 

9.7 Information on management and coordination activities 
 

According to the art. 2497-bis c. 4 of the Civil Code, we certify that the company is not subject to the 
management and coordination of others. 
 
 

9.8 Financial risk management 
 

The Company has financial liabilities consisting mainly of bank loans and lease contracts. Their 
maturity is medium and long term. 
 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is defined as the possibility that the Company cannot maintain its payment 
commitments due to the inability to find new funds (funding liquidity risk), the Company cannot sell 
its assets (asset liquidity risk), or the Company has to pay high costs to cope its obligations. 
This risk is linked to the possible difficulties the Company could meet in obtaining in the right time 
the fund necessary to support its operating activity.  
Cash flows, fund needs and liquidity are highly monitored, with the aim of guaranteeing an effective 
and efficient management of financial resources. 
The Company does not have any covenant on the interest-bearing loans and receivables. 
 

Risks related to interest rates 
The Company holds assets and liabilities sensitive to changes in interest rates. These assets and 
liabilities are necessary for the management of liquidity and financial requirements.  
These assets and liabilities are subject to a rate risk that is in part mitigated through fixed rate 
financing contracts and through the stipulation of derivative contracts to cover variable rate loans. 
 

Credit risk 
The Company is exposed to the risk that the claims may not be honored at maturity, because of the 
obligator financial conditions. 
So credit risk is related to the increase in seniority of credits, the risk of insolvency and the increase 
in claims under insolvency proceedings. 
The consequent loss of value may result in partial or total cancellation from the financial statements. 
The Company adopts a credit management policy aimed to: assess customers reliability, monitor 
expected recovery flows, issue payment reminders, allow extended credit conditions where deemed 
necessary or appropriate and manage legal claims litigation.  
Almost all the trade receivables at year end were not past due. 
 

Exchange rate risk 
The Company carries out operations in currencies other than Euro. This exposes BioDue S.p.A. to 
the risk arising from fluctuations in exchange rates between different currencies. 
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9.9 Information pursuant to Law 124/2017  
The following table shows the public contributions collected by the Company during 2018 
 

Receiving 
eNTITY 

Lender 
Entity Reason Contribution 

Amount 

Amount 
collected 

in 2018 

 

 

BioDue S.p.A. 
 

Tuscany Region / 
Regione Toscana 
 

LR 32/02 - DGR 857/2018 - Changes 
to the Public Notice for non-curricular 
internships “Giovanisì” 
 

10,200 
 

3,600 
 
 

BioDue S.p.A. 
 

National social 
security institute 

Contribution waiver for new hires with 
permanent employment contracts 
carried out by any employer during 
2015, according to L. Finanziaria 2015 
(L. 190/2014, article one, paragraphs 
118 and following) 
 

63,374 
 

63,374 
 
 

BioDue S.p.A. 
 

National social 
security institute  

Contribution waiver for new hires with 
permanent employment contracts 
carried out by any employer during 
2016, according to L. Finanziaria 2016 
(Law 208/2015, single article, 
paragraphs 178/181) 
 

2,622 
 

2,622 
 
 

BioDue S.p.A. 
 

National social 
security institute  

Incentive to recruit young members of 
the "Youth Guarantee" Program, 
ANPAL directorial decree n. 3 of 
02.01.2018, modified by the 
directorial decree n. 83 of 5.03.2018 

2,454 
 

2,454 
 
 

BioDue S.p.A. Fondimpresa Training Plan 194622 11,800 11,800  

BioDue S.p.A. 
Ministry of 
Economic 
Development 

Research and development L. 
190/2014 year 2017 128,746 128,000  

BioDue S.p.A. 
Ministry of 
Economic 
Development 

Research and development L. 
190/2014 year 2018 165,006 -  

BioDue S.p.A. 
Energy Services 
Manager Institute - 
GSE S.p.A. 

Solar thermal collector incentive – DM 
28.12.12 11,412 2,282  

BioDue S.p.A. 

Ministry of 
Economic 
Development - 
General Directorate 
for business 
incentives 

Sabatini contribution on interests, 
art.2 D.L. 69/2013 - Law 98/2013 15,435 -  

 
 

9.10 Dividends 
In execution to the Shareholders' Meeting resolution dated April 26, 2018 the Company distributed 
a 0.06 Euro per share dividend to the Shareholders. This refers to the profit achieved in 201. Totla 
dividends amounted to 0.7 million Euro with release date on June 5, 2018. 
 
 

9.11 Subsequent events 
Appointment of Banca Intermobiliare as a new Nominated Adviser 
On January 31, 2019, the Company appointed Banca Intermobiliare di Investimenti e Gestioni S.p.A. 
("BIM")  as Nominated Adviser, with effect from February 4, 2019. 
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Expansion of the industrial plant in Sambuca Val di Pesa for 2,800 square meters and construction 
of the automated warehouse 
In February 2019, the Board of Directors deliberated the 2,800 square meters wide expansion of an 
existing production plant (of which 300 square meters for offices) and the construction of a 400 
square meters wide new annexed automated warehouse, in the industrial area of Sambuca Val di 
Pesa (Florence), where all Group’s plants insist. This expansion completes the purchase of the 5,300 
square meters wide entire industrial building where liquid food supplements are currently produced. 
With this purchase, the plants owned by the group will have a total surface of about 21,000 square 
meters (of which 1,500 square meters for offices), with 5,400 square meters wide service areas.  
 
The investment will be completed before December 31, 2019. It amounts in total to 4.7 million Euro 
divided as follows:  

- 2.0 million Euro for the purchase of the industrial building;  
- 0.7 million Euro for the purchase of a new automated warehouse annexed to and serving 

the entire industrial building; 
- 2.0 million Euro for the purchase of new production lines compliant to industry 4.0. 

 

9.12 Non-recurring significant events and transactions 
During 2018, there were no significant non-recurring transactions entered into by the Company. 
 
 

9.13 Transactions deriving from atypical and / or unusual operations 
The company did not carry out: 
- atypical and / or unusual transactions, or  
- those transactions which (due to their significance / relevance, the nature of the counterparties, 

the object of the transaction, the methods to determine the transfer price and the timing of the 
event) could give rise to doubts in order to: the correctness / completeness of the information in 
the financial statements, the conflict of interest, the safeguard of the corporate assets and the 
protection of minority Shareholders. 

 

10. Proposal for approval 
 

Dear Shareholders, the Board of Directors proposes to you, to: 
1) approve the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 of BioDue S.p.A. 

which closed with a profit amounting to 3,775,613.38 Euro; 
2) attribute the profit amounting to 3,775,613.38 Euro as follows: 

• to shareholders as dividends 1,108,790.00  Euro, equal to 0.10 Euro per share; 
• to the legal reserve 16,823.38  Euro; 
• to the extraordinary reserve 2,650,000.00  Euro. 

 
 

Barberino Tavarnelle (Florence), March 28, 2019 
 
 

Vanni Benedetti 
Chairman of the Board of Directors of BioDue S.p.A. 
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Board of Statutory Auditors Report to the Shareholders’ meeting 
due to art. 2429 co. 1 civil code 

Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018 
 
(translation from the original Italian text) 
 
 
 
to the Shareholders’ meeting of BioDue S.p.A. 
 
 
 
Premise 
In 2018, the Board of Statutory Auditors has performed the functions provided for in civil code, articles 
from 2403 and following. The Independent audit has been performed by EY S.p.A.  
The Statutory Auditors activities have been inspired by the provisions of the law and by the Rules of 
conduct of the Board of Statutory Auditors issued by the Italian National Council of Chartered Accountants 
and Accounting Experts. 
The Statutory Auditors carried out the self-assessment, with a positive outcome, for each member of the 
Board. 
 
 
The Board of Directors made available the following documents approved on March 28, 2019: 

-Directors’ Report on operations as of December 31, 2018; 
-Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018; 
-Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018. 

The aforementioned documents are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) adopted by the European Union pursuant to Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the 
European Parliament and of the European Council of July 19,2002. 
 
 
 
 
Supervisory activities pursuant to civil code, articles 2403 and following 
We monitored that company’s activities have been performed in compliance with the law, the Bylaws and 
with respect for the principles of correct administration. 
We attended Shareholders’ meetings and Board of Directors’ meetings. On the basis of the information 
available, we have not detected any violation of the law or the Bylaws, nor operations that are manifestly 
imprudent, risky, in potential conflict of interest or such as to compromise the integrity of the corporate assets. 
During the meetings, we obtained from the Directors information on the general performance of the 
management and on its foreseeable evolution, as well as on the most significant transactions, due to their size 
or characteristics, carried out by the Company and its subsidiaries. Based on the information acquired, we 
have no particular observations to report. 
As far as our responsibility is concerned, we supervised the adequacy and functioning of the Company's 
organizational structure, also by collecting information from the heads of the functions. In this regard, we have 
no particular comments to report. 
As far as our responsibility is concerned, we supervised the adequacy and functioning of the administrative-
accounting system, as well as the reliability of the latter to correctly represent the management facts, by 
obtaining information from the department managers and examination of company documents. In this regard, 
we have no particular observations to report. 
  



We have constantly monitored the independence of the person in charge of the Independent Audit, and we 
did not find critical aspects. 
Pursuant to art. 2408 civil code, no complaints were received from the shareholders. 
In 2018, the Board of Statutory Auditors issued 2 opinions. 
During the supervisory activity, as described above, no other significant facts to be mentioned emerged. 
 
 
Comments regarding the Financial Statements and its approval 
The Board of Statutory auditors certifies that: 
• the Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018 have been prepared in compliance with International 

Accounting Standards (IAS / IFRS), as indicated by the Board of Directors in the Notes; 
• in particular, in the Directors’ Report on Operations and in the Notes, the Directors have complied with 

the provisions of current legislation regarding information on the risk management and internal audit in 
relation to the financial reporting process; 

• the Notes to the Financial Statements, in addition to the specific indications provided for by the law and 
by the accounting standards regulations, provide the information deemed appropriate to represent the 
financial and economic values of the Company; 

• the information provided in the Directors' Report on operations is complete and comprehensive, including 
that relating to the main events that occurred after the end of the year and its foreseeable evolution. 

 
 
Today, the Independent Auditors issued the Reports to the Financial Statements and the Consolidated 
Financial Statements without changes and no relevant information. The Board of Statutory Auditors read and 
examined them. 
 
 
By the results of the activity carried out, the Board of Statutory Auditors does not find reasons to prevent the 
approval of the Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018, as prepared by the Directors. 
The Board of Statutory Auditors has no grounds for impeding the proposed allocation of the net profit for the 
period of euro 3,775,613.38, made by the Directors. 
 
 
Comments regarding the consolidated financial statements 
We examined the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2018.  
In relation to them, we report the following. 
They are the second Consolidated Financial Statements prepared by the Company in compliance with the 
IFRS and following the control acquisition of Labiotre S.r.l., which took place on December 11, 2017. 
Since we are not in charge of analytical control over the content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, we 
monitored the general layout given to them, their general compliance with the law due and their structure. In 
this regard, we have no particular observations to report. 
In order to assess the determination of the consolidation area, the examination of the Group’s composition 
and the shareholding relationships did not give rise to findings. 
The Independent Auditor, in charge also to audit the Consolidated Financial Statements, issued a Report 
without changes. The Board of Statutory Auditors was in contact with the Independent Auditor. 
Furthermore, the Independent Auditor established the regularity and correspondence of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, of the Consolidated Statement of Income and of the Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows, with the accounting records of the parent company and the information obtained by the subsidiaries 
included in the scope of consolidation. 
We verified the compliance of the Consolidated Financial Statements with the facts and information of which 
we became aware following the completion of our duties. We have no observations in this regard. 
 
  



 
Florence, April 12, 2019 
 
 
the Board of Statutory Auditors 
 
Signed by: 
 
Dott. Luciano Conti  Rag. Alfredo Bartolini    Prof. Luca Bagnoli 
(Chairman)   (Acting Statutory Auditor)  (Acting Statutory Auditor) 
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Independent auditor’s report pursuant to article 14 of Legislative
Decree n. 39, dated 27 January 2010 and article 10 of EU Regulation
n. 537/2014
(Translation from the original Italian text)

To the Shareholders of
BioDue S.p.A.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BioDue S.p.A. (the “Company”), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the statement of income, the statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the regulations and standards on ethics and
independence applicable to audits of financial statements under Italian Laws. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union, and, within the terms provided by the law, for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

The Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and,
when preparing the financial statements, for the appropriateness of the going concern assumption,
and for appropriate disclosure thereof. The Directors prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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The statutory audit committee (“Collegio Sindacale”) is responsible, within the terms provided by the
law, for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia) will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia), we have
exercised professional judgment and maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit. In
addition:

- we have identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, designed and performed audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion; the risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

- we have obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;

- we have evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors;

- we have concluded on the appropriateness of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern; if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to consider this matter in forming our opinion; our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report;
however, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern;

- we have evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We have communicated with those charged with governance, identified at an appropriate level as
required by ISA Italia, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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Report on compliance with other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion pursuant to article 14, paragraph 2, subparagraph e), of Legislative
Decree n. 39 dated 27 January 2010

The Directors of BioDue S.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of the Report on Operations of
BioDue S.p.A. as at December 31, 2018, including its consistency with the related financial
statements and its compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

We have performed the procedures required under audit standard SA Italia n. 720B, in order to
express an opinion on the consistency of the Report on Operations, with the financial statements of
BioDue S.p.A. as at December 31, 2018 and on its compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, and in order to assess whether it contains material misstatements.

In our opinion, the Report on Operations is consistent with the financial statements of BioDue S.p.A.
as at December 31, 2018 and comply with the applicable laws and regulations.

With reference to the statement required by art. 14, paragraph 2, subparagraph e), of Legislative
Decree n. 39, dated 27 January 2010, based on our knowledge and understanding of the entity and
its environment obtained through our audit, we have no matters to report.

Florence, April 12, 2019

EY S.p.A.
Signed by: Lapo Ercoli, partner

This report has been translated into the English language solely for the convenience of
international readers.
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	j) Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement
	k) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
	m) Inventories
	Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
	Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for, as follows:
	n) Cash and short-term deposits
	o) Provisions for liabilities and charges
	p) Post-employment benefits
	q) Revenue from contracts with customer
	r) Other income
	s) Public contribution
	t) Costs
	u) Taxes
	w) Earnings per share
	Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the Group's ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

	3.5 Changes in accounting and disclosure principles
	IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
	In July 2015, IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replacing IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings together all three aspects of the project on accounting ...
	IFRS 15: Revenues from contracts with customers
	IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and introduces a new five-step model that applies to revenues from customer contracts. IFRS 15 requires the recognition of revenues for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity believes it is entitle...
	IFRS 15 is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with full or amended retrospective application.
	The Group applied the new standard retrospectively from the date of mandatory application. The application of the standard did not have an impact on the opening shareholders' equity of the Group.
	In applying IFRS 15, the Group has considered the following points:
	IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions — Amendments to IFRS 2
	Amendmends to IAS 40: Transfer of investment
	IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration
	Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
	Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Clarification that measuring investees at fair value through profit or loss is an investment-by-investment choice
	Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards - Deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters
	IFRS 16 Leases

	3.6 Standards issued but not yet effective
	IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
	IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment
	The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirement...
	 Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
	 The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities
	 How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates
	 How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances
	Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
	Under IFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding’ (the SP...
	The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019, with earlier application permitted. These amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the Group.
	Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
	The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or co...
	Amendmends to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
	The amendments to IAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, ...
	 Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the...
	 Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the ...
	The amendments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is recognized in profit or loss.
	An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement.
	Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognized in other comprehensive income.
	The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted.
	Amendmends to IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
	The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term...
	The amendments also clarified that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any losses of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognized as adjustments to the net investment in the associate o...
	Annual cycle of improvements 2015-2017
	These improvements include:
	 IFRS 3 Business Combination: The amendment clarifies that an entity re-evaluates the interest held in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business;
	 IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: The amendment clarifies that an entity does not re-evaluate the interest held in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business;
	 IAS 12 Income taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity must account for all income taxes arising from the payment of dividends in the same way;
	 IAS 23 Borrowing costs: The amendment clarifies that an entity must account for loans originally incurred to develop an asset, as part of other loans when the asset is ready for use or for sale.
	The amendment is in force for the financial years starting on 1 January 2019 or later. Early application is allowed. The Group will apply the interpretation on the date of entry into force.


	4. Operating segments
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	5.5 Other non-current assets
	5.6 Other non-current financial assets
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	5.12 Other current financial assets
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	5.20 Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings
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	10. Other notes
	10.1 Directors fees, statutory auditors fees and independent auditors fees
	10.2 Other financial instruments issued
	The Group did not issue other financial instruments as by n. 19 par. 1 article 2427 Civil Code.
	10.3 Stock Option
	10.4 Treasury Shares
	10.5 Information on the fair value of financial instruments
	10.6 Financial risk management
	10.7 Information pursuant to Law 124/2017
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